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Chairman’s Statement

+ [ A

On behalf of the board of directors, | hereby present to our
shareholders the annual report of China Chengtong Development
Group Limited (the “"Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the
“"Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018 (the “Year").

During the Year, in response to the complicated external environment,
the Group promoted the transformation and upgrading of its existing
businesses with improved quality and efficiency and explored new
business opportunities, all these resulted in a significant increase of
profit in the Year. During the Year, the Group recorded a turnover of
approximately HK$1,020.89 million (2017: approximately HK$1,353.12
million), representing a decrease of approximately 25% as compared
with that of last year. Profit attributable to owners of the Company
during the Year amounted to approximately HK$113.44 million
(2017: approximately HK$23.36 million), representing an increase of
approximately 386% as compared with that of last year. A decrease
in turnover during the Year as compared with that of last year was
mainly due to the scaling down of the steel trading business by the
Group for prudent risk management. During the Year, the Group has
seized the opportunities associated with the launch of the Free Trade
Zone Policy in Hainan Province to dispose of its 100% equity interests
in Haikou Cuidao Hotspring Resort Hotel Company Limited (“Cuidao
Hotspring Hotel"”), which contributed mainly to the significant
increase of profit for the Year. The non-recurring gain on the disposal
was approximately HK$110.80 million.

The Group is currently principally engaged in property development
and property investment, finance leasing, bulk commodity trade and
hotel and marine travelling services. For property development and
property investment, the Group's overall strategy is to dispose of
certain projects to have cash resources to fund the Group's strategic
transformation. For finance leasing, three sale-and-leaseback projects
were completed during the Year. The Group also strengthened
the exploration and research in new leasing business, in areas
such as energy saving and environmental protection, equipment
manufacturing, inventory lease, etc. With regard to bulk commodity
trade, the Group will continue to carry out the relevant business
prudently with stringent risk control. For hotel and marine travelling
services, we have (1) speed up the upgrade and renovation of /&
BMESEEEAERE(the “"Undersea World Hotel”), to enhance
its image with operational efficiency and profitalility; (2) to enhance
foothold in Hainan and further exploring new tourism resources by
grasping strategic opportunities arising from the establishment of the
Free Trade Zone in Hainan.
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In respect of the exploration of new businesses, Chengtong Trading
(International) Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, and the subsidiaries
of Honghua Group Limited (“Honghua Group”, the shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “"Stock Exchange"”) (Stock Code: 196)), have signed a
series of contracts regarding overseas rig leasing projects. This was
the first business cooperation between the Group and Honghua Group
after the Group's subscription of the placing shares of Honghua Group
in May 2017 It was also the first overseas leasing business of the
Group. The Group will continue to explore further overseas leasing
business arising from the business opportunities presented by the
"One Belt, One Road" national strategy.

Looking forward, the Group will further focus on its strategic
directions. While the Group will endeavour to better develop its
existing businesses, the Group will leverage and integrate the
resources advantages of its controlling shareholder and continue to
explore and develop new businesses, and to cultivate and generate
new sources of profit.

Lastly, I, on behalf of the board of directors, would like to express
my sincere gratitude to our shareholders, business partners and
communities for their continuous support and care to the Group.
We would also like to express our gratitude to the management and
employees of the Group for their hard work during the Year.

Zhang Bin
Acting Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 February 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded a
consolidated turnover of approximately HK$1,020.89 million
(2017: approximately HK$1,353.12 million), representing a year-
on-year decrease of approximately 25%. This year, the profit
attributable to the owners of the Company was approximately
HK$113.44 million (2017: approximately HK$23.36 million),
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 386%.
The significant increase in profit was mainly because of (i) the
Group completed the disposal of the equity interests in Cuidao
Hotspring Hotel in December 2018, which resulted in a non-
recurring gain on disposal of a subsidiary of approximately
HK$110.80 million (2017: HKS$ nil); and (ii) the Company had fully
redeemed the RMB600 million bonds issued by it in May 2017,
leading to no related interest expenses being recorded during
the year, which resulted in a year-on-year significant decrease in
finance costs by approximately 50% to approximately HK$6.51
million (2017: approximately HK$12.95 million).

The Board did not recommend the declaration of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

Segment Revenue and Results

The revenue of the Group was mainly derived from the five
business segments in the PRC, including property development,
property investment, finance leasing, bulk commodity trade and
hotel and marine travelling services. The details of segment
revenue and results are as follows:

(1) Property Development

The sales revenue from property development of the Group
was generated from two projects in CCT-Champs-Elysees
in Zhucheng City of Shandong Province of the PRC and
“Chengtong International City” in Dafeng City of Jiangsu
Province of the PRC. The two aforementioned projects
altogether brought a turnover for the Group's property
development segment of approximately HK$60.99 million
(2017: approximately HK$109.21 million), representing
a year-on-year decrease of approximately 44%, and the
segment profit before tax when compared to that of last
year decreased by 16% to approximately HK$20.48 million
(2017: approximately 24.25 million). Details of the two
aforementioned projects are as follows:
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(1)

Management Discussion and Analysis

Zhucheng City of Shandong Province — CCT-Champs-
Elysees

The CCT-Champs-Elysees project, which is wholly
owned by the Group, is located at the northern side
of Eastern Section of No. 1 Mizhou West Road,
Zhucheng City, Shandong Province, the PRC (Lot
No. 01213003). The project has a total site area of
approximately 146,006 square metres and has been
developing in three phases. The project is located in a
county level city, which is a third— and fourth-tier city
in the PRC. During the year under review, affected
by policies including state stringent regulations and
tightened bank credit, the demand for new flats in
Zhucheng City was low which led to a decline in
the sales revenue of the project. During the year,
the area of residential apartments of the project
sold was approximately 8,928 square metres (2017:
approximately 18,702 square metres), representing
a year-on-year decrease of approximately 52%. In
addition, six parking spaces were sold (2017: 37).
No record of commercial properties sold during
the year (2017: 242 square metres). The average
unit selling price per square metre for residential
apartments of the project was approximately
RMB5,833, representing an increase of approximately
12% as compared to approximately RMBb5,215
per square metre in last year. Mainly because of
the decrease of areas sold as compared to that
of last year, the sales revenue of the project was
approximately HK$60.61 million (2017: approximately
HK$109.21 million), representing a year-on-year
decrease of approximately 45%. The profit before tax
amounted to approximately HK$23.38 million (2017:
approximately HK$26.42 million), representing a year
on-year decrease of approximately 12%.

As at 31 December 2018, the unsold area of phases
I, II'and Il of CCT-Champs-Elysees project included
residential area of approximately 29,392 square
metres (as at 31 December 2017: approximately
37,920 square metres) and commercial spaces
of approximately 1,410 square metres (as at 31
December 2017: approximately 1,410 square
metres) (excluding the leased area of approximately
7,565 square metres (as at 31 December 2017:
approximately 7,565 square metres)).

Construction works of phase Il of CCT-Champs-
Elysees project have been commenced. Parts of
the project were sold, while the whole project is
expected to be completed and delivered by 2020.
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(ir)

Dafeng City of Jiangsu Province — Chengtong
International City

The Group holds 66.67% equity interest in
“Chengtong International City”, which is located
at North Portion of Lot No. 2, Port Serviced Area,
Dafeng Ocean Economic Development Area, Dafeng
City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC. The total site area
is approximately 118,974 square metres and the first
phase was developed in two sections. Dafeng City is
a third and fourth-tier city of the PRC. Given that the
project is situated far from major cities and the real
estate market in the region remains stagnant, the
residential area of the project sold was approximately
92 square metres during the year (2017: nil). The sales
revenue of the project was approximately HK$0.38
million (2017: nil). The loss before tax amounted to
approximately HK$2.91 million (2017: loss before
tax amounted to approximately HK$2.17 million),
representing a year-on-year increase in loss of
approximately 34%.

As at 31 December 2018, the unsold area of
Chengtong International City project included
residential area of approximately 10,930 square
metres (as at 31 December 2017: approximately
11,022 square metres) and commercial spaces
of approximately 9,540 square metres (as at 31
December 2017: approximately 9,540 square metres).

Land Resources Development

It remains the Group's plan to dispose of the land situated
in Dafeng City, Jiangsu Province. Sl B K Z8EMEER A
Al (unofficial English translation being Chengtong Dafeng
Harbour Development Limited) ("Dafeng Development”),
a 66.67%-owned subsidiary of the Company, held a parcel of
industrial land situated in the south of Shugang Highway, Dafeng
City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC and three parcels of residential
and commercial land situated at lot number 1 to 3 in the Port
Serviced Area, Ocean Economic Development Zone, Dafeng City,
Jiangsu Province.

2018 Annual Report FERE

(i)

g

ITEFE A E T — 8 B

AEBEBEMNTPEIHE KX
EMALSFLEERERO R
RIS 257 BRI B 2 [ 3638 B
FR4 | 66.67 % M #E - 48 BR
BH1M8,974F H K ERED
MIZE - KEMBHN
RERZ -WGEHE T AR EE
EEEARTRAREREANE
HMEMSGHEREX XFER
ZEEEHZEEEELHI2F
FAR(ZZE—+F:4&) BH
HEWANBEISE L (ZE
—tF &) BREAEELE
Mo91BIL (ZE—+F B
RIS BLBE21787T) - Rtk
BB IN4I34%

R_ZE—NF+_A=+—
A #WBEEHEBEERAELZ
FE=EE410,930F 7K (B
—E—t+FF+ZA=+—8:
#11,022F FRK) REEEE
#9540 F AR (R ZFE—+
F+-A=+—H: 49,540
FK) e

T bR B A

AEENEFFTELETIHEREM L
o RN T H66.67 % s 2 M B A A
BALEBMAEERAR ([KYAR])
BE—SBURNPBEIIHE NEHRE AR
AAM T ¥R RN IHE AL
mEF
ER b IR A P A A o

HEEARREE —ZE2=1Z



Management Discussion and Analysis

On 3 July 2014, the Group entered into two resumption
agreements with Dafeng Land Reserve Center and Management
Committee of the Jiangsu Dafeng Harbour Economic
Development Zone (the "Dafeng Harbour Committee”)
and two compensation agreements with the Dafeng Harbour
Committee and TH AKEEEIEREEBR 2 F (unofficial
English translation being Jiangsu Dafeng Harbour Holdings
Group Limited). Details of the relevant agreements related
to the resumption of land were set out in the Company's
announcement dated 3 July 2014. However, the relevant land has
not been resumed as of 31 December 2018 and the date of this
annual report.

(2) Property Investment

The rental income from property investment of the Group
was generated from the commercial properties of CCT-
Champs-Elysees project in Zhucheng City, Shandong
Province, the PRC. As at 31 December 2018, the leasable
area of the project was approximately 7,565 square metres,
which was the same as that of last year. Due to the
increase in rent for renewed tenancy agreements during
the year, the rental income amounted to approximately
HK$2.64 million (2017: approximately HK$2.41 million),
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 10%.
The profit before tax was approximately HK$2.29 million
(2017: approximately HK$2.15 million), representing a year-
on-year increase of approximately 7%.

(3) Finance Leasing

During the year under review, the turnover from the
finance leasing business amounted to approximately
HK$53.26 million (2017: approximately HK$52.69 million),
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 1%.
The profit before tax was approximately HK$44.14 million
(2017: approximately HK$44.63 million), representing a
year-on-year decrease of approximately 1%. The decrease
in profit was mainly attributable to the increase in
administrative expenses when compared to that of last
year.
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(4)

Bulk Commodity Trade

During the year under review, turnover from bulk
commodity trade business segment was approximately
HK$865.24 million (2017: approximately HK$1,145.87
million), representing a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 24%. Segment profit before tax was
approximately HK$4.34 million (2017: approximately
HK$9.52 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 54%. The details of the trading of coal and
steel and non-ferrous metal under bulk commodity trade
operated by the Group are as follows:

(1)

(i1)

Trading of Coal

During the year, the Group achieved the sales volume
of coal trading of approximately 0.86 million tons
(2017: approximately 1.01 million tons), representing
a year-on-year decrease of approximately 15%.
Turnover was approximately HK$614.72 million (2017:
approximately HK$684.77 million), representing a
year-on-year decrease of approximately 10%. The
average unit selling price increased by approximately
1.7% from approximately RMB590 per ton in last
year to approximately RMB600 per ton during the
year under review. However, due to the year-on-
year decrease in sales volume and increase in
administrative expenses, the profit before tax was
approximately HK$1.75 million (2017: approximately
HK$6.95 million), representing a significant year-on-
year decrease of approximately 75%.

Trading of Steel and Non-ferrous Metal

During the year under review, the sales volume
of steel under bulk commodity was approximately
60,745 tons (2017: approximately 131,679
tons), representing a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 54%. There was no record of any sales
volume of non-ferrous metals (2017: approximately
300 tons). The turnover was approximately
HK$250.52 million (2017: approximately HK$461.10
million), representing a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 46%. The average unit selling price of
steel increased by 22% year-on-year to approximately
RMB3,404 per ton, which resulted in a year-on-
year increase in gross profit by approximately 1% to
approximately HK$4.81 million (2017: approximately
HK$4.77 million), thus offsetting the negative impact
of falling sales volume on gross margin. The profit
before tax was approximately HK$2.59 million (2017:
approximately HK$2.57 million), which was nearly the
same with that of last year.
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(5) Hotel and Marine Travelling Services

The hotel and marine travelling services mainly consist of:
marine travelling business, hotel operation and travelling
agency business.

(1)

(i)

Marine Travelling Business

During the year under review, the turnover of the
marine travelling business was approximately
HK$36.30 million (2017: approximately HK$36.66
million), representing a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 1%. The gross profit decreased by
approximately 4% from approximately HK$19.73
million in last year to approximately HK$19.02 million,
which, together with an increase in the selling
and administrative expenses, resulted in a profit
before tax of approximately HK$2.27 million (2017:
approximately HK$4.75 million), representing a year
on-year decrease of approximately 52%.

Hotel Business

The turnover of the hotel business was approximately
HK$1.56 million (2017: approximately HK$4.99
million), representing a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 69%, which was mainly due to the
closure of the hotel since March 2018 to renovate
its aged facilities which had turned guests away
in last periods. With the decrease in turnover,
the gross profit decreased by approximately 67%
from approximately HK$4.00 million of last year
to approximately HK$1.31 million. Moreover, the
renovation of hotel rooms during the year generated
a loss on disposal and write-off of equipment of
approximately HK$0.64 million in total. However, due
to the suspension of hotel business and there was
a significant decrease in selling and administrative
expenses, the loss before tax amounted to
approximately HK$6.86 million (2017: loss before
tax amounted to approximately HK$10.02 million),
representing a year-on-year decrease in loss of
approximately 32%.
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(iii) ~ Travelling Agency Business

The turnover of the travelling agency business was
approximately HK$0.90 million (2017: approximately
HK$1.28 million), representing a year-on-year
decrease of approximately 30%. The profit before
tax was approximately HK$0.48 million (2017:
approximately HK$0.46 million), representing a year-
on-year increase of approximately 4%.

The above three businesses contributed a total segment
turnover of approximately HK$38.76 million (2017:
approximately HK$42.93 million), representing a yearon-
year decrease of approximately 10%. The segment loss
before tax amounted to approximately HK$4.11 million
(2017: segment loss before tax amounted to approximately
HK$4.80 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 14%.

Other Income

Other income mainly included the interest income from
deposits, short-term investments and other financial
assets/available-for-sale financial assets of approximately
HK$45.84 million (2017: approximately HK$49.01 million),
representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately
6%. The total amount of other income was approximately
HK$58.58 million (2017: approximately HK$54.83 million),
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 7%.

Selling and administrative expenses

During the year under review, the selling expenses was
approximately HK$14.06 million (2017: approximately
HK$14.59 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 4%. The administrative expenses amounted
to approximately HK$92.34 million (2017: approximately
HK$99.42 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 7%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gain on Disposal of a Subsidiary

In December 2018, the Group completed the disposal
of the interests in Cuidao Hotspring Hotel which was
originally planned for operating hotspring hotel or elderly
business, and recorded a non-recurring gain on the disposal
of a subsidiary of approximately HK$110.80 million (2017:
HK$ nil). Details of the agreement in relation to the
disposal of the interests in Cuidao Hotspring Hotel were
set out in the announcements of the Company dated 11
September 2018 and 29 October 2018.

Finance Costs

During the year under review, the finance costs mainly
composed of the interest on bank borrowings. The total
finance costs were approximately HK$9.04 million (2017:
approximately HK$21.72 million), representing a year-on-
year decrease of approximately 58%. After deducting the
finance costs of approximately HK$2.53 million (2017:
approximately HK$8.77 million) which were capitalised
during the year under review, the net finance costs were
approximately HK$6.51 million (2017: approximately
HK$12.95 million), representing a year-on-year decrease
of approximately 50%. The significant decrease in finance
costs was mainly attributable to the decrease in related
interest expenses from approximately HK$14.33 million
of last year to HK$ nil for the year, as the Company fully
redeemed the RMB600 million bonds issued by it in May
2017.
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Ill. OUTLOOK

. AIREE
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Looking back at 2018, the world economy grew in different
directions from synchronised recovery. The American economy
recovered strongly while the economic growth of the Eurozone
and emerging economies slowed down. Major central banks
across the globe adopted different monetary policies. During the
year, the Federal Reserve raised interest rates four times, the
central banks of Europe and Japan continued to maintain ultra-
low interest rates and the central bank of China reduced deposit
reserve ratio four times in a row. In 2018, facing a complex
and volatile domestic and international environment amid the
interest rate hikes by the Federal Reserve and China-US trade
war, China’s GDP hit RMB90 trillion for the first time with the
growth rate slowing down to 6.6%. In general, China's economy
remained stable and manageable.

Looking forward, the recovery of world economy will still
face various deep-seated problems such as escalating trade
disputes, rising debt levels and the changes of monetary
policies of developed economies. A number of international
institutions recently expected that the world economy would
slow down in 2019. In the short term, China’'s economy wiill
still be under considerable downward pressures, and China will
further the supply-side structural reform to promote the high
quality development of its economy. In the medium-long term,
China will still possess favorable development conditions and
enormous development potentials.

In the face of opportunities and challenges, the Group will
closely monitor the latest international and domestic economic
and financial development, evaluate the situation and seize
the opportunities. While implementing the improvement in
quality and efficiency and exploring the potential of its existing
businesses, the Group will continue to explore new businesses
and develop new drivers for profit growth.

In respect of the integrated development and the transformation
and upgrade of its existing businesses: for finance leasing, while
putting more efforts on exploring overseas leasing business, the
Group will make good use of the background advantage of its
controlling shareholder of being a state-owned capital operation
company, vigorously explore the business demand in areas
such as equipment manufacturing, energy conservation and
environment protection and infrastructure construction, gradually
expand its business scale; in relation to property development
and property investment, the Group's overall strategy is to
selectively withdraw from some projects so as to have the cash
flows to serve its strategic transformation; with regard to bulk
commodity trading, the Group will continue to cautiously develop
business relating to bulk commodity trading with stringent risk
control; regarding hotel and marine travelling services, on one
hand, the Group will complete the upgrade and renovation of
the Undersea World Hotel in the coming year, and on the other
hand, it will seize the strategic opportunities brought by the
establishment of free trade zone (port) with its establishment in
Hainan to further expanding new travelling resources.
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V.

Management Discussion and Analysis

In respect of the exploration of new businesses: the Group will
rely on the resources advantages of China Chengtong Holdings
Group Limited ("CCHG"), the controlling shareholder of the
Group, focus on the “One Belt, One Road” national strategy,
continue exploring new businesses areas, expand overseas
financing channels and improve its international business level.
Meanwhile, the Group will focus on new business direction,
increase its effort in recruiting talents, reinforce internal control
structure and management, and improve the capability in risk
management.

After the business adjustment and optimisation in recent years,
the Group has a relatively high proportion of cash assets, which
has laid a solid foundation for the next transformation and
development during the current economic downturn. The Group
will proactively seize market opportunities and strive to make
innovation, so as to create more values for the shareholders.
The Board has full confidence in the future development of the
Group.

ASSET STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND
FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group continues to maintain a sound financial position.
As at 31 December 2018, equity attributable to owners of the
Company amounted to approximately HK$2,761.71 million (as
at 31 December 2017: approximately HK$2,838.61 million),
representing a decrease by approximately 3% as compared
with the equity attributable to owners of the Company as at 31
December 2017.

As at 31 December 2018, the total assets of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$3,590.30 million, representing an
increase by approximately 0.4% as compared to the total assets
as at 31 December 2017 The amount of total current assets of
the Group was approximately HK$3,011.70 million, accounting
for approximately 84% of the total assets and representing
an increase by approximately 11% as compared to the total
current assets as at 31 December 2017 The total non-current
assets of the Group amounted to approximately HK$578.61
million, accounting for approximately 16% of the total assets and
representing a decrease by approximately 33% as compared to
the total non-current assets as at 31 December 2017
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As at 31 December 2018, total liabilities of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$693.16 million, representing an increase
of approximately HK$104.81 million as compared with that as
at the same date of last year. The total non-current liabilities
of the Group amounted to approximately HK$51.79 million
and accounted for approximately 7% of the total liabilities and
represented a decrease of approximately HK$29.84 million as
compared with that as at the same date of last year. The total
current liabilities of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$641.37 million and accounted for approximately 93% of
the total liabilities, representing an increase of approximately
HK$134.65 million as compared with that as at the same
date of last year. The current ratio (calculated as total current
assets over total current liabilities) was approximately 4.7
times, representing a decrease of approximately 0.7 time as
compared to the current ratio of approximately 5.4 times as at
31 December 2017 Despite the decrease in current ratio, the
liguidity of the assets of the Group remains strong.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had cash and deposits
(including pledged bank deposits, deposits in other financial
institution and bank balances and cash) of approximately
HK$907.42 million, accounting for approximately 25% and
approximately 31% of the total assets and the net assets
respectively, representing an increase of approximately HK$67.51
million as compared with the cash and deposits as at the same
date of last year. As at 31 December 2018, the Group's bank
borrowings were approximately HK$274.10 million, representing
an increase of approximately HK$59.70 million as compared with
the bank borrowings as at 31 December 2017 of approximately
HK$214.40 million. Bank borrowings of approximately HK$74.10
million was of one-year term and the remaining balance of
HK$200 million was a revolving loan with the final repayment
date in the year of 2020. The interest rates of the bank
borrowings ranged from approximately 2.67% to approximately
5.9% per annum. It is expected that the Group will have
sufficient financial resources to cope with the commitments and
liabilities for the following year.
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V. SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Details of the significant investments in the portfolio under other
financial assets as at 31 December 2018 are as follows:

. EX®E

R-Z-—N\F+_A=+—RH HEth&#&
BEANERREFBOT:

Approximate
percentage to

Approximate the Group's Changes
investment Fair value as at audited total in fair
Approximate amount as at 31 December assets as at  value during
Interest rate 31 December 2018 31 December the year 2018
Description of investment per annum 2018 (HK$'000) 2018 (HK$’000)
ERZB-N\F
RZB-N\E& +ZA=+-H
RZE-\f +ZA=+-H FEERER ZB-N\EFm
+ZA=+-H BAEE HEEMN LEEEH
REEL BUENE BEDRESE (BBTT) BHESHL (BBFTT)
Honghua Group (Stock code: 196) (Note 1) N/A HK$195,580,000 104,140 2.9% (66,040)
(Note 2)
FESE (RMHRS%:196) (A1) TEA ol (Hzt2)
195,580,0007T
Unlisted trust schemes managed by and 3.3%-8.9% RMB365,417211 421,847 1.7% 5,431
investment product issued by PRC banks (Note 3)
and financial institutions
BPENRTREREEEEN AR (H53)
FrmEEAERBIINREER 365,4172117C
Unlisted interest bearing wealth management 4.0%-7.0% RMB65,000,000 74,100 2.1% -
products in PRC banks
FEMRTHEFLTEMER AR
65,000,0007C
Interest bearing structured bank deposits 2.9%-4.5% RMB210,000,000 239,400 6.7% -
with PRC banks
RERM S EBERTER AR
210,000,0007T
Note 1: The principal businesses of Honghua Group are manufacturing Krat1: RESENTEEBAREEER BF
of drilling rigs, offshore engineering, manufacturing of oil & T2 S ARmAERE MRS EER
gas exploitation equipment and providing drilling services. The B AEBERELEESBERDEE B
Group held 254,000,000 shares of Honghua Group, representing 254,000,000/% ' HE R EEEBRAF
approximately 4.7% of the total issued shares of Honghua Group as EREBHEHETRNERLNL7% -1
at the date of this annual report. During the year, the Group did not FR -AEELERNEEELEEETMAR
receive any dividend income from Honghua Group. Bz
Note 2:  This financial asset is measured at fair value through other Matz2 : AREMEEDNRAFEFAHEMEEYK
comprehensive income (non-recycling). = (RAs@ABR) 2 &2
Note 3:  This financial asset is measured at fair value through profit or loss. KiEs . AeBMEEDRATFEFABZZFE

-
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VI.

VII.

During the year, the 3-year term notes issued by HNA Group
(International) Company Limited with an annual interest rate of
8.125% was redeemed on maturity date in December 2018. The
total interest income from this notes during the year ended 31
December 2018 was approximately HK$13,043,000.

For more details of the Group's other financial assets, please
refer to note 26 to the financial statements in this annual report.
Looking ahead, the Group anticipates to receive investment
income from these investments and we intend to actively
explore other potential investment opportunities to maximise
shareholders’ value.

DEBT TO EQUITY RATIO

The debt to equity ratio (calculated by dividing total interest-
bearing borrowings by total equity) as at 31 December 2018 was
approximately 9%, representing an increase by approximately
2% as compared with the debt to equity ratio of approximately
7% as at 31 December 2017 which indicated a stable financial
position and a low gearing level of the Group.

TREASURY POLICIES

The business activities and operation of the Group are mainly
carried out in Mainland China and Hong Kong, with transactions
denominated in RMB, HKD and United States dollars, which
exposes the Group to foreign currency risks. The HKD-
denominated bank borrowings of the Group of approximately
HK$200 million were based on floating interest rates, which
exposed the Group to interest rate risks. The Group will
use interest rate and foreign currency swaps and forward
foreign exchange contracts as and when appropriate for risk
management and hedging purposes with a view to managing
the Group's exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange rate
fluctuations. It is the Group's policy not to enter into derivative
financing transactions for speculative purposes. It is also the
Group's policy not to invest in financial products with significant
underlying leverage or derivative exposure including hedge funds
or similar instruments.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

INTEREST RATE RISK

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's bank borrowings were
denominated in HKD and RMB, of which the RMB-denominated
bank borrowings of approximately RMB65 million were based
on fixed interest rates, and the HKD-denominated borrowings of
approximately HK$200 million were based on floating interest
rates. The floating interest rates are stabilised at a low level
because the banks in Hong Kong have sufficient capital and
strong liquidity and there is no urgent need to increase the
interest rates. Although the Group does not have any hedging
measures against such interest rate risks, the Group will
continue to closely monitor the risks arising from such interest
rate fluctuation. When interest rate rises, hedging instruments
will be used in due course against the interest rate risks caused
by the HKD-denominated bank borrowings which are based on
floating interest rates.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

During the year under review, the Group's businesses were
principally conducted in RMB, while most of the Group's
assets and liabilities were denominated in HKD and RMB. Any
fluctuation in the exchange rate of HKD against RMB may have
an impact on the Group's results. As at 31 December 2018, the
net assets of the Group’'s business within the territory of the
PRC were approximately RMB2,605.86 million. According to
HKASs, such amount of net assets denominated in RMB should
be converted at the exchange rate applicable as at the end of
the reporting period. Due to the decrease in foreign exchange
reserve by approximately HK$135.02 million as a result of the
depreciation of RMB during the year under review, there had
been a decrease in net assets of the Group. Although foreign
currency fluctuations did not pose significant risks to the Group
during the year under review and the Group does not have any
hedging measures against such exchange risks currently, the
Group will continue to closely monitor the risks arising from such
currency fluctuations.

.
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X. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

(a)

(b)

As at 31 December 2018, pledged bank deposits of
the Group in the sum of approximately HK$1.26 million
were pledged as security for banking facilities granted
to mortgagees (as at 31 December 2017: approximately
HK$1.32 million). The remaining balance of approximately
HK$2.56 million of the Group's pledged bank deposit (as
at 31 December 2017: approximately HK$2.69 million) was
guaranteed deposits.

On 29 March 2016, the Group entered into a guarantee
agreement with China Chengtong Coal Investment Limited
(“Chengtong Coal"), a subsidiary of the ultimate holding
company of the Company, pursuant to which the Group
provided a guarantee by pledging its office premise with
net book value of approximately HK$45.37 million as at
31 December 2018 and issuing a guarantee letter to the
Supreme People’'s Court of Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous
Region to the extent of approximately RMB53.54 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$61.04 million) for a period
of three years or such shorter period as may be approved
by the court. The guarantee provided to Chengtong Coal
was for the purpose of supporting a property preservation
order on certain subject assets in a litigation between
Chengtong Coal and its debtors.

. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

Please refer to notes 38, 43 and 44 to the financial statements in
this annual report.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS
Mr. Zhang Bin

Mr. Zhang, aged 50, is an executive Director, acting Chairman of
the Board and the Managing Director of the Company. Mr. Zhang
joined the Group in July 2010. He was appointed as an executive
Director with effect from 30 January 2014, as the Managing Director
with effect from 15 June 2017 and as acting Chairman of the Board
with effect from 1 December 2018. He is also a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Zhang holds an EMBA degree from
China Europe International Business School and a Doctorate degree
from Peking University. He also undertook postdoctoral research in
Rutgers University and North Carolina State University in the United
States. Mr. Zhang has rich experience in corporate management. Mr.
Zhang is currently a director of China Chengtong Hong Kong Company
Limited ("CCHK"), which has an interest in the shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO").

Mr. Wang Tianlin

Mr. Wang, aged 46, is an executive Director and a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wang joined the Group in February
2007. Mr. Wang obtained his Bachelor and Master degrees from Beijing
Institute of Technology and in 2003, he obtained his Master degree
in Business Administration in Finance from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong. Mr. Wang was previously the secretary to the board
of directors of Sihuan Pharmaceutical Company Limited, the shares
of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and also was
the assistant to the president of CCHK. He is currently an executive
director and general manager of China Huandao Group Limited
(formerly known as China Huandao Group Co.), a subsidiary of CCHG.
Mr. Wang has extensive experience in corporate governance, capital
management and business administration.

Professor Chang Qing

Professor Chang, aged 61, is an independent non-executive Director.
Professor Chang joined the Group in January 2013. Professor Chang
studied Economics at Jilin University and obtained his Master
degree in Economics from Jilin University in 1985 and PhD degree
from Chinese Academy of Social Sciences. He has over 30 years
of experience in economic and financial field. He is currently the
chairman of Jinpeng International Futures Co., Ltd., a professor
of College of Economics and Management of China Agricultural
University, supervisor of Futures and Financial Derivatives Association
of China Agricultural University and a member of the expert
committee of China Securities Journal. Professor Chang is now acting
as an independent non-executive director of Kangda International
Environmental Company Limited and Honghua Group (both companies
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange). He also
previously served as independent directors of Tibet Summit Resources
Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Tibet Summit Industry Co. Ltd) and TBEA
Co., Ltd. (both companies are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange)
as well as Yuan Long Ping High-Tech Agriculture Co., Ltd., Rongfeng
Holding Group Co., Ltd. and Shenwu Environmental Technology Co.,
Ltd. (all three companies are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange).
Professor Chang was a council member of the Shanghai Futures
Exchange and the vice president of the expert committee of China
Futures Association.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

SEhSHREEREBRERFE

Mr. Lee Man Chun, Tony

Mr. Lee, aged 65, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Lee
joined the Group in November 2013. Mr. Lee obtained a Master degree
in Business Administration from Chu Hai College of Higher Education
in 1981. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has over 40 years of experience in accounting, capital
markets, corporate management, finance and banking. Previously, he
worked for and held senior positions with Standard Chartered Bank
(Hong Kong) Limited and Sanwa International Finance Ltd. Mr. Lee was
an executive director of Shenwan Hongyuan (H.K.) Limited (formerly
known as Shenyin Wanguo (H.K.) Limited) (the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) from June 2000 to
June 2017 and served as its chief executive officer during the period
from July 2000 to March 2012.

Professor He Jia

Professor He, aged 64, is an independent non-executive Director.
Professor He joined the Group in September 2015. He holds a Doctor
of Philosophy degree in Finance from the Wharton School of University
of Pennsylvania, the United States. Currently, he is the leading
professor of the Faculty of Financial Mathematics and Engineering
at the South University of Science and Technology of China, a jointly-
appointed professor at the Tsinghua University, Cheung Kong Visiting
Chair Professor of the Ministry of Education and an executive director
and academic member of the China Society for Finance and Banking.
Professor He currently acts as a financial consultant for the Chengdu
and Quanzhou municipal governments. He is also an editor of China
Financial Economics Review, and is serving as a member of the
editorial boards of a number of journals, including China Accounting
and Finance Review and Research in Banking and Finance. Professor
He is currently an independent non-executive director of Bank
of Tianjin Co., Ltd., OP Financial Investments Limited and CITIC
Securities Company Limited (the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange) and an independent director of
Shenzhen Xinguodu Technology Co., Ltd. (a company listed on ChiNext
of Shenzhen Stock Exchange), Tibet Huayu Mining Co., Ltd., Tsinghua
Tongfang Co., Ltd. (both companies are listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange) and China Investment Securities Co., Ltd. He previously
served as an independent director of Shenzhen Soling Industrial
Co., Ltd. (a company listed on Small and Medium Enterprises
Board of Shenzhen Stock Exchange). He was also a professor of
the Department of Finance and a director of the MBA program in
Finance at the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Professor He was a
commissioner of the Planning and Development Committee of China
Securities Regulatory Commission from June 2001 to August 2002,
and a director of integrated research institute of the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange from June 2001 to October 2002.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Chan Siu Kay

Mr. Chan, aged 59, is the financial controller of the Company and
a director of several subsidiaries of the Company. He joined the
Company in May 2014. Mr. Chan holds a Master degree in Business
Administration from the University of Strathclyde in the United
Kingdom and a Master degree in Corporate Finance from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a Certified Public
Accountant of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He is also an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators. He is also a Fellow Certified Professional Economist of
The Hong Kong Society of Economists Limited. Mr. Chan has gained
over 26 years of experience in audit, accounting, taxation, corporate
finance and IPO from working in an international audit firm and a
number of listed companies.

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ms. Tse Ching Wah

Ms. Tse, aged 37 is the company secretary of the Company. Ms.
Tse joined the Group in October 2012. She holds a Master degree in
Corporate Governance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
She is a fellow member of both The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.
She is also a member of both The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales. She has extensive experience in accounting,
auditing, corporate governance and merger and acquisition activities
from working in an international accounting firm and a Hong Kong
listed company.
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Corporate Governance Report
EXREGHS

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report of
the Group for the Year.

The Group considers that good corporate governance is vital to the
healthy and sustainable development of the Group and the Group
strives to uphold high standard of corporate governance continuously.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company had complied with all the
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code ("CG Code") as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) for the Year, save as
disclosed below:

Mr. Yuan Shaoli resigned as the Chairman of the Board with effect
from 1 December 2018. Upon his resignation, due to the time needed
by the Company to find suitable candidate for the replacement, Mr.
Zhang Bin performs both the roles of the Managing Director and the
acting Chairman of the Board, which constitutes a deviation from
Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code which provides that the roles
of chairman and chief executive should be separate and should be
performed by different individuals. The Company is identifying suitable
candidate(s) for the relevant position(s) in order to re-comply with
Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance practices
to ensure those continue to meet the requirements of the CG Code,
and acknowledges the important role of the Board in providing
effective leadership and direction to the Company's business, and
ensuring operational transparency and accountability.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company
during the Year are summarised as follows:

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board provides leadership for the Company in the interests of the
shareholders, approves policies, strategies and plans, and oversees
their implementation to sustain the healthy growth of the Company.

The Board is responsible for all major matters of the Group, and the
approval and monitoring of all material changes in policies, including
risk management strategies, dividend policy, appointment of directors
and other significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the company secretary of the
Company, with a view to ensure that the Board's procedures and
all applicable rules and regulations are followed. In general, each
Director can seek independent professional advices in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expenses, upon making request to
the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are delegated to the Managing Director, executive
Directors and senior management. Approval from the Board has to
be obtained prior to entering into any significant transactions by the
aforementioned personnel.
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Composition

The composition of the Board encompasses the necessary balance of
skills and experiences desirable for effective leadership of the Group
and reflects the independence in decision-making of the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprised the following
Directors:

Executive Directors

ZHANG Bin (Acting Chairman of the Board and Managing
Director, appointed as acting Chairman with
effect from 1 December 2018)

WANG Tianlin

Independent non-executive Directors

CHANG Qing

LEE Man Chun, Tony

HE Jia

The list of Directors (by category) is disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company and on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Listing Rules.

During the Year, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive directors representing not less than one-third of
the Board, with at least one independent non-executive director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of
the existing independent non-executive Directors of his independence
pursuant to the requirements of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines set out
in the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors bring a wide range of
business and financial expertise and relevant experience to the
Board and provide independent opinions for decision-making of the
Board. Through active participation in Board meetings, taking the
lead in issues involving potential conflicts of interest and serving on
committees of the Board, all independent non-executive Directors
make positive contributions to the orderly management and effective
operation of the Company.

Appointment and Succession Planning of Directors

The Company has established the nomination committee
(“Nomination Committee”) and adopted formal, considered and
transparent procedures for the appointment and succession planning
of Directors. Appropriate candidates as properly selected by the
Nomination Committee will be proposed to the Board for approval.
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Corporate Governance Report
EXREGHS

The Board and the Nomination Committee as a whole are responsible
for reviewing the Board composition, developing and formulating the
relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of Directors,
monitoring the appointment and succession planning of Directors and
assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors.
The Board reviews its own structure, size and composition regularly
to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, one
third of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation every
year and any new Director appointed to fill a causal vacancy or as an
addition to the Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election at such meeting.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the Directors
standing for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company. Detailed information of the Directors standing for
re-election will be set out in the circular of the Company in relation
to the forthcoming annual general meeting to be despatched to the
shareholders.

All independent non-executive Directors were appointed for a fixed
term expiring on 30 June 2019.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness of the
Board and to maintain the highest standards of corporate governance
and recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity in the Board.
In August 2013, the Board adopted a Board Diversity Policy which was
updated in January 2019.

The Company believes that diversity of the Board can be achieved
through consideration of a number of factors when deciding on
appointments of Directors, including but not limited to skills, regional
and industrial experience, cultural and educational background, race,
gender, age, length of service and any other factors that the Board
deems appropriate from time to time. In implementing its perspectives
on Board diversity, the Company will also take into account factors
based on its own business model and specific needs from time to
time.

The composition, experience and balance of skills in the Board are
regularly reviewed to ensure that the Board retains a core of members
with longstanding knowledge of the Group alongside new Director(s)
appointed from time to time who bring(s) fresh perspectives and
diverse experiences to the Board. The Nomination Committee has the
primary responsibility for identifying suitably qualified candidates to
become members of the Board and, in carrying out such responsibility,
will give adequate consideration to the Board Diversity Policy. The
Nomination Committee believes that the current composition of the
Board is based on the history and actual conditions of the Company
and it reflects an achievement of full consideration of factors of Board
diversity.

The Board will review the Board Diversity Policy on a regular basis to
ensure its continued effectiveness.
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Board Meetings
Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals for reviewing and approving the
Group’s financial and operating performance, discussing annual and
interim results and considering and approving the overall strategies of
the Company.

During the Year, four Board meetings were held.
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The individual attendance record of each Director at the Board &EZNAFEAREETS R 2EARNEER
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Number of
Attendance/
Number of Board
Name of Directors Meetings Held
HERE £1T
EENE EEEERE
ZHANG Bin 4/4
i’ O
WANG Tianlin 3/4
TR&®
CHANG Qing 4/4
G |
LEE Man Chun, Tony 4/4
FED
HE Jia 4/4
IS
YUAN Shaoli (resigned with effect from 1 December 2018) a4/4
RBR (B=F—N\F+ZA—HEFF)
Practices and Conduct of Meetings EEEHRGH
Meeting schedules and agenda of each meeting are normally made E&#BEXRAGIEZNEZERBETETEL
available to the Directors in advance. Notices of regular Board Tﬂ TEE- %%AW'J?TQS%L%HM REERIT
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meetings. For other Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice E@@Eé R ?’Y‘Hj/\ﬁ 5o
is generally given.
Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable ZZ@XHER—VEE TEXAISEHER

information are sent to all Directors in a timely manner before each
Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors apprised
of the latest development and financial position of the Company and to
enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each Director
also have separate and independent access to the senior management
whenever necessary.
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The company secretary of the Company assists the Chairman of the
Board to prepare the agenda for the Board meetings and ensures that
all applicable rules and regulations are followed in each meeting. Draft
agenda is sent to all Directors in advance to allow Directors to include
any matter they would like to discuss in the meeting. Draft minutes
are circulated to all Directors for review and amendment as soon as
practicable after the meeting is held. All Board members will be given
a copy of the finalised minutes approved by Directors who attended
the meeting.

Should a Director have any conflict of interest in any proposed
transactions, the Director concerned will not participate in the
discussion and will abstain from voting on related resolutions.
Directors without any conflict of interest will be present at meetings
to vote and resolve on such issues.

Chairman and Managing Director

The Chairman of the Board provides leadership and is responsible
for ensuring that relevant duties and responsibilities have been fully
and appropriately executed by the Directors in accordance with
good corporate governance practice. With the support of the senior
management, the Chairman of the Board is also responsible for
ensuring that each of the Directors can timely receive adequate,
complete and reliable information and appropriate briefing on issues
arising at Board meetings.

The Managing Director is responsible for leading the management to
implement policies, strategies as well as all goals and plans adopted
and approved by the Board, and is in charge of the Company’s day-to-
day operations.

During the Year, Mr. Yuan Shaoli served as the Chairman of the Board
until his resignation which took effect on 1 December 2018. Mr.
Zhang Bin has been serving as the Managing Director during the Year.
Following the resignation of Mr. Yuan Shaoli, Mr. Zhang Bin also serves
as the acting Chairman of the Board.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely, the executive
committee ("Executive Committee”), audit committee (“Audit
Committee”) , remuneration committee ("Remuneration
Committee”) and Nomination Committee, each overseeing and being
responsible for affairs in different aspects of the Company. All Board
committees of the Company are established with defined written
terms of reference.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company's expenses.
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Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises all executive Directors. The
Executive Committee is responsible for the daily business operation
and management of the Company, the execution of decisions and
strategies of the Board within the scope of authorization granted by
the Board. The Executive Committee regularly reports to the Board
regarding the Group's business operation and seeks its advice and
approval on matters involving material decision-making.

As at the date of this report, the Executive Committee comprised
Mr. Zhang Bin (chairman of the Executive Committee) and Mr. Wang
Tianlin. Mr. Yuan Shaoli was a member of the Executive Committee
during the Year until his resignation as an executive Director with
effect from 1 December 2018.

Audit Committee

During the Year, the Audit Committee comprised three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lee Man Chun, Tony (chairman
of the Audit Committee), Professor Chang Qing and Professor He Jia.
Mr. Lee Man Chun, Tony is an independent non-executive Director who
possesses the appropriate professional accounting qualifications and
financial management expertise. None of the members of the Audit
Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing external
auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(a)  to review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the internal auditor or
external auditor before submission to the Board;

(b)  to review the relationship with the external auditor by reference
to the work performed by the auditor, its fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor;
and

(c) to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.

The Audit Committee has held three meetings during the Year to
review the financial results and reports, capital management system,
internal control system and the re-appointment of the external auditor.

During the Year, there were no material uncertainties or events or
conditions that might cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

There was no disagreement between the Audit Committee and
the Directors in respect of matters about selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of an external auditor.

During the Year, the Company's annual results for the year ended 31
December 2017 and the interim results for the six months ended 30
June 2018 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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Remuneration Committee

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprised
two independent non-executive Directors, namely Professor He Jia
(chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Lee Man Chun, Tony
and an executive Director, namely Mr. Zhang Bin.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
policy and structure of the Company as well as the remuneration
packages of the Directors and the senior management. The human
resources department of the Group is responsible for collection
and administration of the human resources data and making
recommendations to the Remuneration Committee for consideration.
The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no Director or any of his associates will
participate in deciding on his own remuneration. The remuneration
of the Directors and the senior management will be determined by
reference to the performance of the individual and the Company as
well as market conditions.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Year to
review the remuneration policy and structure of the Company and
remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior management.

Nomination Committee

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprised
two independent non-executive Directors, namely Professor Chang
Qing (chairman of the Nomination Committee) and Mr. Lee Man Chun,
Tony, and an executive Director, namely Mr. Zhang Bin. Mr. Yuan Shaoli
was a member of the Nomination Committee until his resignation as
an executive Director with effect from 1 December 2018. Mr. Zhang
Bin was then appointed as a member of the Nomination Committee in
place of Mr. Yuan Shaoli on 1 December 2018.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for nominating candidates
for directorship appointment and succession, reviewing the
composition and structure of the Board from time to time and making
recommendations to the Board in order to ensure the balance of
expertise, skills and experience among the members of the Board.
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According to the Nomination Policy adopted by the Company,
appointments of Board members will be made on a merit basis and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria. The selection
criteria used in assessing the suitability of a candidate include:

° the candidate's academic background and qualifications
(including professional qualifications, skills and knowledge which
are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy);

° the candidate’s relevant experience in the industry;
° the candidate’s character and integrity;

° the candidate’s willingness and capacity to devote adequate time
in discharge of a director’s duties;

° whether the candidate can contribute to the Board a diversity
of perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, race,
cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service;

° (where the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an
independent non-executive Director) whether the candidate is in
compliance with the criteria of independence under the Listing
Rules; and

° any other factors as may be determined by the Board from time
to time.

In terms of nomination procedures, any Board member may nominate
or invite a candidate for appointment as a Director to be considered
by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee will then
evaluate the personal profile of the candidate based on the selection
criteria set out above, undertake due diligence in respect of such
candidate and make recommendation for the Board’'s consideration
and approval. For nomination of independent non-executive Director,
the Nomination Committee will also assess the candidate’'s
independence in accordance with the CG Code and the Listing Rules.
For re-appointment of retiring Directors, the Nomination Committee
will review the candidate’'s overall contribution and performance
(including the candidate’'s attendance at Board committee meetings,
Board meetings and general meetings, his/her level of participation
and performance on the Board), and make recommendations to the
Board and shareholders for re-election at general meetings.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting to
discuss the re-election of the Directors. The Nomination Committee
has also discussed about the resignation of Mr. Yuan Shaoli as the
Chairman of the Board during the Year and the succession planning of
the Board. While Mr. Zhang Bin, the Managing Director, was appointed
as the acting Chairman of the Board, the Nomination Committee will
continue to identify suitable candidate for the relevant position in order
to re-comply with Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code which requires
that the role of chairman and chief executive be performed by different
individuals.
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Board Committee Meetings
Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance
The individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings

of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee held during the Year is set out below:

EEZRTEH
ERABREFHELRY

BEERNAFEANEZZES FHREER
RAZBEERZER D FEEHIIWT

Number of Attendance/Number of
Board Committee Meetings Held
HERE £2TEFZRAET BRE

Audit Remuneration Nomination
Name of Directors Committee Committee Committee
EFENSE EKEARY FHERS REER®
ZHANG Bin (More) Not applicable 1/1 0/0
ok O () TEA
CHANG Qing 3/3 Not applicable 11
| i A
LEE Man Chun, Tony 3/3 11 11
FED
HE Jia 3/3 11 Not applicable
(EIRES i A
YUAN Shaoli (Were) Not applicable Not applicable 11
RIBE M TEA TiE A

Note: Mr. Yuan Shaoli ceased to be a member of the Nomination Committee with
effect from 1 December 2018. Mr. Zhang Bin was appointed as a member
of the Nomination Committee on 1 December 2018. All meetings of the

Nomination Committee during the Year were held prior to 1 December 2018.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions (the "Code of Conduct”) on
terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they had complied with the requirements of the
Code of Conduct and the Model Code during the Year. No incident of
non-compliance of the Code of Conduct or the Model Code by the
Directors was noted by the Board during the Year.

The Company has also set out written guidelines on terms no less
exacting than the Model Code for securities transactions by the
employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside
information of the Company due to their responsibilities and duties. No
incident of non-compliance of the written guidelines by the employees
was noted by the Board during the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has not established a corporate governance committee.
Instead, the full Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions such as developing and reviewing the
Company's policies and practices on corporate governance, reviewing
and monitoring the training and continuous professional development
of the Directors and senior management, reviewing and monitoring
the Company's policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, etc. The Board is also responsible for
reviewing and has during the Year reviewed the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in this corporate governance report.

Every Board member has full access to the advice and services of the
company secretary of the Company with a view to ensuring that the
Board procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.
They are also entitled to have full access to Board papers and related
materials so that they are able to make an informed decision and to
discharge their duties and responsibilities.
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SUPPORT AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials regarding
the duties and responsibilities of being a director, the relevant laws
and regulations applicable to directors, duty of disclosure of interest
and business of the Group and the Directors have been updated by
the Company on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance
and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.
There is a procedure agreed by the Board to ensure that the Directors,
upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstance, at the Company’s expenses.

According to the training records provided by the Directors to the
Company, each of the existing and former Directors has participated
in continuous professional development during the Year by attending
seminars/in-house briefing/reading materials on the following topics to

ESXBRERRER

EREFHREHEMETES CRAEREME
BRARESEZHEBEILRD  #EREZEE
RASEER 2 ABESIER - ARFEAZE
EXERAMLTHAREBEREER T
RHBERBN MERRFEBLERATREND
XEREM -EFECATRF BEFANE
HERERER EEENBERTSRBUEES
R-BRAXRRRA-.

RIBEZRAARARHZIFIRE  SRERA
TEFCHER RAFERAEBBLFEEHE TS
THEEHE / ABER/HEMRSETA2
HBEEELRR UERREHREZMBER

develop and refresh their knowledge and skills: GEN
Topics on
Name of Directors training covered
EEgR FRAEZ Bl EE
(Note)
(Ht7)
ZHANG Bin a, b, c
o
WANG Tianlin a, b c
F R
CHANG Qing a, b, c
= =
/B
LEE Man Chun, Tony a, b cd
FE2
HE Jia a, b c
IR ES
YUAN Shaoli (resigned with effect from 1 December 2018) a, b, c
RBB(B=F—NF+ZH—HEFHT)
Notes: M et
(a) Corporate governance and regulatory matters for listed companies (a) ARG EEAREESE
(b)  Corporate finance (b)) DERE
(c) Finance and accounting (c) HIBREs
(d)  Investment management d KEEE
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RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF
THE PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION

The Board is responsible for presenting a fair, true and clear annual
and interim reports, inside information announcements and other
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements. The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing the financial statements of the Company for the Year.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor's Report on pages 85 to 89 of this annual report.

The remuneration of the external auditor of the Company in respect
of audit services and non-audit services for the Year amounted
to approximately HK$1,070,000 and HK$180,000 respectively. An
analysis of the remuneration of the external auditor of the Company is
set out below:

PHREIGWS
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|

EXZeafRBLETRAREBEER TR
R -HERBRENFERPHRE AFHEE
RERHEMATHREEN EFNTEAREN
REAAFEENTBERENBRE -

B BN X B OMNIS A BAM 5 00 E Bt B 7 R FR R
BEMENBAFNAFEREFESAEE9A
(B ZBERE] -

RRBEMINEZEMMRANFEEREFZR
BRIEERRE MESAME S N AEBE
1,070,0007T }& 7 #180,0007T ° AN A FISMNE#Z &
BB BN & D ATE ST

Amount of Fee

#5H

(HK$'000)

(B¥Fr)

Audit services FEIZRE 1,070
Review on interim financial information R ERB IS & R 180
Total Bt 1,250
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The organization structure of the Company has defined lines of
responsibilities and appropriate responsibilities and authority were
delegated to senior management. The Board is responsible for the
establishment and effective operation of the risk management and
internal control system. The Company has also established a risk
management department, of which one of the executive Directors
serves as the general manager, to be responsible for the internal audit
function and to assist the Board to review the risk management and
internal control system of the Group on an ongoing basis. However,
such system aims at limiting the risks of the Group to an acceptable
level but not at eliminating all risks. Hence, such system can only
provide reasonable assurance that there will not be any error in
financial information and record, and there will not be any fraud.
The system can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has established effective and operational procedures to
identify, assess and manage major risks faced by the Group. Such
procedures will be updated from time to time to reflect the changes
in rules and regulations, and serve as a guideline for updating the
risk management and internal control system in a timely manner.
The Board considers that as at the date of this annual report, the risk
management and internal control system is adequate and effective in
safeguarding the assets of the Group and protecting the interests of
shareholders, customers and employees of the Group.

The Executive Committee is responsible for implementing the
procedures approved by the Board to identify, assess and manage
major risks faced by the Group. Such procedures include the design,
operation and supervision of suitable risk management and internal
control system to mitigate and control risks. Major procedures
established for reviewing the suitability and compliance of the risk
management and internal control system are as follows:

o the Board is responsible for the supervision of all business
activities of the Group and the implementation of strategic
plans and policy. The Executive Committee is responsible for the
effective daily operation of the Group and for ensuring that the
Group operates in accordance with the objectives, strategy and
budget of the Group;

° the Audit Committee periodically reviews the work of the risk
management department, external auditor, regulatory bodies
and the Executive Committee in respect of the risk management
and internal control system, and assesses the feasibility and
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
system; and
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o the risk management department also formulates the
annual internal audit plan and procedures, conducts periodic
independent reviews on the operations of individual divisions
and subsidiaries to identify any irregularities and risks, develops
action plans and makes recommendations to address the
identified risks, and reports to the Audit Committee on any key
findings and progress of the internal audit process. The Audit
Committee, in turn, reports to the Board on any material issues
and makes recommendations to the Board.

In strict compliance with the requirements of Code Provision C.2.1
of the CG Code, the Board conducts a comprehensive review of the
risk management and internal control system on an annual basis. The
review includes an assessment of the prevailing internal control and
risk management practices of the Group and covers various aspects
including financial control, operational control, compliance control and
risk management.

During the Year, the Board has reviewed the review report of the
risk management department in respect of the Group's resources,
staff qualifications and experience in accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions as well as training courses and budgets,
and had conducted a comprehensive review of the risk management
and internal control system of the Company covering the period from
1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018. Compared with 2017, there has
been no significant or major change in the nature and extent of the
risks faced by the Group as well as the ability of the Company to cope
with the changes in business and external environment. The Board
considered that the internal control and risk management system of
the Company is adequate and effective and the Company has complied
with the code provisions on internal control and risk management of
the CG Code.

In addition, the Company has formulated policies on information
disclosure and regularly reminded Directors and employees to properly
comply with relevant policies on inside information while notifying
the Directors, senior management and employees the latest guidance
announced by the regulatory body on such information disclosure from
time to time to keep all of them abreast of the latest information.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the Year, Ms. Tse Ching Wah, who is an employee of the
Company, acted as the company secretary of the Company. In
delivering her service as company secretary of the Company, Ms.
Tse has direct contact with the Chairman of the Board, the Managing
Director and other senior management of the Company to ensure that
good information flows among the Directors and that Board policy,
procedures and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.
She is also responsible for facilitating professional development
training of the Directors.

Ms. Tse has confirmed that during the Year, she had taken no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, all the resolutions of general meetings
are conducted by way of poll.

Poll results will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company on the day of the relevant general meeting.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. The
Chairman of the Board as well as the chairman of each of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
or in their absence, other members of the Board or the respective
committees, and where applicable, the independent Board committee,
are available to answer questions at the general meetings.

During the Year, the Company had held one general meeting (being the
annual general meeting held on 22 June 2018). The attendance record
of the Directors in such general meeting is as follows:

Name of Directors

EEKS

REEME

B ETARA FTARRA RN RARS AR
ST o

fa

BREZERGCEHBBRRKRE
Bk X2 P R AN 2 R A8 U o

BUTEXREH

77

ARBBRAGREREEESREHT —@E
BOFE -BEELF BELHZEEIF HM
ZESIFEMRBZERIRFRYEHERRAKR
g MEERE MAEFSHEIZES
(WER)BYEELZB G ZEMKBAERRA
& LRELRER -

RAFER ARAHABTT —RABERAE (R
“E-NERAZTZBRETHRRBFK
) BEERNBRRAGZHFERBRMT:

Attendance

&

ZHANG Bin

gkl

WANG Tianlin

F X7

CHANG Qing

BB

LEE Man Chun, Tony

FE2

HE Jia

il fE

YUAN Shaoli (resigned with effect from 1 December 2018)
REB (BT NE+ZH—HEFT)

11

11

11

11
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The Company will continue to enhance communications and
relationships with its shareholders and investors to keep them abreast
of the Company’'s developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt
with timely.

Currently, investors can access the Company's information through

the website of the Stock Exchange and the Company's website at
www.irasia.com/listco/hk/chengtong.
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SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS

(1)

(2)

Procedures for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting (“EGM")

In accordance with sections 566 to 568 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
("“Companies Ordinance”), shareholder(s) of the Company
representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the
shareholders having a right to vote at general meetings of
the Company may require the Directors to convene an EGM.
The written requisition must state the general nature of the
business to be dealt with at the EGM and must be signed by the
shareholder(s) concerned and deposited at the principal office
of the Company for the attention of the company secretary in
hard copy form or sent to the Company in electronic form. The
requisition may consist of several documents in like form, each
signed by one or more of the shareholders concerned.

If the Directors do not, within 21 days after the date on which
the written requisition is received by the Company, proceed duly
to convene an EGM on a date not more than 28 days after the
date of the notice convening the EGM, the shareholder(s) who
requested the meeting, or any of them representing more than
one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene an EGM, provided that the EGM so convened shall not
be held after the expiration of 3 months from the said date.

The EGM convened by shareholders shall be convened in the
same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which general
meetings are to be convened by the Directors.

Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders’ enquiries about their shareholdings can be
directed to the Company's branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited.
Other shareholders’ enquiries can be directed to the Company
Secretarial Department of the Company or the company
secretary of the Company by post to the principal office of the
Company at Suite 6406, 64/F, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong or by e-mail to public@hk217.com.
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(3) Procedures for putting forward resolutions at general
meetings

Shareholders are requested to follow sections 615 and 616 of
the Companies Ordinance for including a resolution at an annual
general meeting (“AGM"). The requirements and procedures are
set out below:

(i) Any number of shareholders representing at least 2.5% of
the total voting rights of all shareholders having a right to
vote on the resolution at an AGM to which the requisition
relates, or at least 50 shareholders having a right to vote
on the resolution at an AGM to which the requisition
relates, may submit a requisition in writing to put forward a
resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to
be moved at an AGM.

(i) The Company shall not be bound by the Companies
Ordinance to give notice of the proposed resolution or to
circulate a statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in the proposed resolution
to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice
of an AGM unless a copy of the requisition specifying the
resolution of which notice is to be given and signed by
the shareholders concerned (or 2 or more copies which
contain the signatures of all the shareholders concerned)
is deposited at the principal office of the Company for the
attention of the company secretary in hard copy form or is
sent to the Company in electronic form not later than (i) 6
weeks before an AGM to which the requisition relates; or
(ii) if later, the time at which notice is given of that AGM.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company has not amended its constitutional documents during
the Year.
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1 ABOUTTHIS REPORT

1.1 Reporting Guidelines

1.2

This environmental, social and governance report
("ESG Report”) aims to provide information on the
performance in the environmental and social aspects
of the Group during the period from 1 January 2018
to 31 December 2018 (“Reporting Period”), which
focuses on the environmental and social issues which
the stakeholders concerned and those related to the
sustainable development of the Group, aiming to enable
the stakeholders to better understand the philosophy,
measures and relevant performances in relation to the
sustainable development of the Group. This ESG Report
should be read in conjunction with the section headed
"Corporate Governance Report” in pages 24 to 40 of this
annual report in order to have a full understanding on the
Group's relevant performances.

Scope of This ESG Report

Unless otherwise indicated, the reporting scope of
this ESG Report covers the principal businesses of the
Group, including property development and investment,
finance leasing, bulk commodity trade and hotel and
marine travelling services, which were managed and/or
operated by the Group’s headquarter in Hong Kong and the
Company's subsidiaries, including:

(i) HWMBEREWHBRAFR (unofficial English translation
being Zhucheng Phoenix Landmark Company Limited)
("Zhucheng Phoenix”");

(i)  KLHM2 (unofficial English translation being Dafeng
Development);

(i) WBEEEEZEHHERAF (unofficial English translation

being Chengtong Development Trading Company

Limited) (“Chengtong Development Trading "),

LR ER AR AR (unofficial English translation
being Chengtong Energy Guangdong Company
Limited) (“Chengtong Energy”);

(iv)

(v} BEEBEEEKRIFREBRAF (unofficial English
translation being Hainan Huandao Hotel and Travel
Investment Co., Limited) ("Huandao Hotel
Investment”) and its subsidiaries; and

(vi) FAmEMHEARR AR (unofficial English translation

being Chengtong Financial Leasing Company Limited)

(“Chengtong Financial Leasing”).
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1.3 Basis of Preparation

This ESG Report is prepared by the Company in accordance
with the Environment, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide ("ESG Guide"”) under Appendix 27 to the Listing
Rules. The Group’'s management approaches, strategies,
relevant significance and targets of environmental and
social aspects are disclosed in respective sections of this
ESG Report.

1.4 Declaration on Reporting

This ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the
four reporting principles of the ESG Guide, including
disclosing content in compliance with the principles of
materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency. The
Group determines the key disclosures of this ESG Report
through an analysis of materiality and discloses quantifiable
environmental and social performance in an identical
statistical approach as applied in the Group's 2017 ESG
Report. Furthermore, the Group has disclosed information
in this Report in compliance with the “comply or explain”
provisions in the ESG Guide.

1.5 Feedback to This ESG Report

Should you have any comments concerning the content of
the ESG Report of the Group, please feel free to contact
the Secretarial Department or the company secretary of
the Company by post to the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong at Suite 6406, 64/F, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong or by e-mail to public@hk217.
com.

LISTEN TO OPINIONS OF STAKEHOLDERS

Through this ESG Report, the Group expects to respond to
the concerns of different stakeholders on our performance
of environmental and social responsibilities and to consider
opinions of stakeholders in its corporate sustainability
management work. During the Reporting Period, the Group
conducted materiality analyses with regard to different
environmental and social issues, and conducted a survey of
stakeholders in the form of questionnaire to understand their
opinions on the sustainable development work of the Group.

The Group considers issues at the environmental and social
levels in a comprehensive manner and demonstrates the
materiality of different issues to stakeholders and the Group
in a matrix diagram. In particular, issues in the blue box are of
the highest materiality. The materiality of each issue has been
ranked with number 1 to 14, with the material issues ranked the
top seven being highlighted in subsequent chapters in response
to the expectations and concerns of stakeholders. In addition
to its application in the preparation of this ESG Report, results
of the materiality analyses are also referred by the Group to
the sustainable development planning work, with a view to
addressing issues that are most material to both stakeholders
and the Group and effectively promoting the sustainable
development of the Company.
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REREVRERRREESESW
Materiality Analysis of the Sustainable Development Issues of
Chengtong Development
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3 CARING FOR EMPLOYEES

Employees are important assets to the Group. A sophisticated
human resources management facilitates to attract and retain
outstanding talents. The Group has established a series
of standardised human resources management policies to
systematically manage human resources, laying a critical
foundation for the Company's sustainable growth.

3.1 Talent Selection

The Group complies in all material respects with national
and regional laws and regulations of Hong Kong and
Mainland China such as the Labour Contract Law of
The People’s Republic of China ( {fF ZE A R £ FE & &
A [.) ), the Employment Ordinance ( ({2 {E & H1) )
of Hong Kong, and adopts a fair and open employment
management policy. Due to the nature of its business
and the locations of its operations, the Company has
adopted the “Human Resources Management System”
and the “"Employees’ Code of Conduct”, which regulate
the Group's employment policies. Each of the Company's
subsidiaries has also formulated employment policies
applicable to their operations. The employment policies
contain clear recruitment and dismissal practices,
remuneration and benefit system, leave system,
attendance system, performance management and
appraisal systems and code of conduct, etc.

As to staff recruitment, the Group has established
a set of highly transparent recruitment procedures.
After preliminary screenings conducted by the human
resources department, candidates will then be invited
to attend written tests, interviews and personality tests.
Thereafter, candidates will be invited to attend professional
tests conducted by relevant departments and the
suitable candidate will eventually be selected after being
interviewed by the Company’'s management.

The Group treats people of different ages, genders, races,
nations, religions, or with physical disabilities equally and
offers them equal job opportunities with respect. The Group
offers paid leaves to the staff pursuant to the national and
regional laws and regulations of Hong Kong and Mainland
China, including casual leaves, sick leaves, marriage
leaves and maternity leaves. The application procedures
and arrangements of different types of leaves are clearly
stated in the employment policies. For termination of
employee contracts, the Group has stipulated detailed
provisions regarding the establishment, termination and
compensation of contracts in the labour contracts signed
with employees.
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In order to attract and retain talents, the Group provides
competitive remuneration packages with reference to
market benchmarks. The employee's remuneration is
reasonably determined with reference to their duties,
performance and individual conditions and characteristics
by the human resources department. Furthermore, the
Group also provides comprehensive benefits, including
social insurance, medical insurance, Mandatory Provident
Fund, study allowances and transportation subsidies. The
Group advocates work-life balance. Working hours of the
employees are determined according to the nature of their
jobs. Five-day week with an average of eight working hours
per day is generally implemented.

At the end of the Reporting Period, the Group had a total
of 267 employees. The following shows the employee
structure by gender, employment type, age group and
region:

Number of employees (by gender)
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Number of employees (by employment type)

BIA B (ZHEREEDNS)

Male

BHET ZHET

Number of employees (by age group)

BEI A (SFREANDS)

@ Female o

Senior management . Mid-level management

SREERE N EEE
Professional position . General position
E-E 35 —RRE

Number of employees (by region)
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During the Reporting Period, the Group had a total of RARSEHR - AEERBER S TH
76 departing employees, with a total employee turnover TN BB TRALLELE22% A
percentage of approximately 22%. The following shows the TRTRRER - FEAER RSl 5
statistics of employee turnover percentages by gender, age M8 TRmALLEZE-

group, and region.

Approximate employee turnover percentage in the relevant gender group

EHRENENNREIRKBHILE

22% 22%

Male Female
BEMET ZMET

Approximate employee turnover percentage in the relevant age group

EHRFERENNREIRKXBENHILE

31%
20%
. 7
16 to 30 30 to 40 40 to 50 Over 50
16-305% 30-405% 40-505% 508% A £

Approximate employee turnover percentage in the relevant region
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Hong Kong Mainland
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3.2 Safety First 3.2 R2EL

The Group has always placed high importance on health
and safety of our employees, and is committed to provide
employees with a safe working environment and strives
to eliminate occupational hazards. The Group's production
safety and management committee is responsible for
monitoring all production safety matters of the Group
and effectively protecting the safety and health of our
employees. The Group also provides relevant accident
insurance for its employees in accordance with the
requirements of laws and regulations of Hong Kong and
Mainland China such as the Labour Law of the People's
Republic of China ((FZEARLMELE L) ), the
Regulations of Insurance for Employment Injury ( (T
SR AEMH) ) and the Occupational Safety and Health
Ordinance of the laws of Hong Kong ( (Bt Z 2 N2
&) ), in all material respects so that employees can
work at ease. During the Reporting Period, the Group
strictly observed the relevant national and regional laws
and regulations in all materials respects and did not report
any death or work-related injuries resulting from safety
accidents or major accidents.

On the other hand, the Group has formulated “Production
Safety Management Measures” and “General Contingency
Plans in respect of Production Safety Incidents” with
reference to relevant laws and regulations, setting out
the requirements in six aspects, namely education and
training, troubleshooting, cost management, emergency
rescue, information delivery, and incident investigation
and handling, which apply to all subsidiaries of the Group.
Furthermore, safety management is included in the annual
performance appraisals of the general managers of each
subsidiary and is linked to their performance bonus to
ensure the implementation of various rules and regulations.
These systems have also clearly defined the structure
of the Company’s safety management organisation, the
duties of the safety management units, the organisation
of meetings and trainings on safety, safety management
inspections, safety measures for production sites and
equipment, protective measures for construction safety
and hygiene, casualty management, and other aspects,
ensuring the health and safety of employees being
safeguarded in multiple areas.
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For fire safety, Zhucheng Phoenix, a subsidiary of the
Company, has formulated a “Fire-fighting and Evacuation
Emergency Drill Plan” to provide clear guidelines on its
fire drill procedures. Its employees carry out fire drill and
training regularly in accordance with the plan to promote
fire safety awareness and self-help skills, which in turn
minimises harm, loss and impact caused by fire.

With regard to hotel and marine travelling business, the
Group arranges various emergency rescue drills, including
marine rescue and rescue in scenic areas, at least twice
a year for its employees who worked in hotels and/or
marine travelling facilities. During the Year, S 2 58
&t 58 15 B BR A A (unofficial English translation being
Hainan Huandao Underwater World Hotel Limited), a
subsidiary of the Group, organised a safety management
training and convened a kick off meeting regarding safety
management for all employees and staff of outsourced
entities. The meeting focused on safety training regarding
marine travelling business in relation to operation, shipping
and security for the purpose of ensuring the safety of its
employees and tourists.

During the Reporting Period, the Group arranged a number
of occupational health and safety training with a total of
231 employees participated in.
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3.3 Employee Development

The Group has established a broad career development
platform for its employees and provided diverse
development opportunities. The Group optimises
employees’ career development based on the
characteristics of different positions. With regard to
promotion and position development opportunities, the
Group provides optimised ranking solutions to achieve
same remuneration for same rank, and refines the duties
and qualification requirements. Employees can pursue a
managerial or professional career at their own decisions.
Annual performance appraisals are conducted to learn the
daily work performance of employees and expectations of
both parties of the employment, and is one of the effective
ways to select competent employees so as to grant
promotion.

The Group implements a systematic employee promotion
system. The “Employee’s Code of Conduct” of the Group
has regulates the employee promotion systems and the
procedures:

Submit to
human resources
department
for evaluation,
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IFERREE

compliance with
the policies of the
Company

ZF AERPIEF
LIgE R8P 2 R B R

for approval
REEERR
THREHE
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3.4 Nurturing Talents 3.4 BEAF
In order to facilitate new employees to adapt to the AR EIZRRABAERNT
working environment of the Group, the human resources EIRF - AEBANBRIENHE
department of the Group will provide them with an TABYBANE TLHEABEI -
orientation training course, introducing them to the BINEBENEAEENSS 3£
background, structure, philosophy and goals of the Group. B ESKEES
The Group's “Human Resources Management System” REER (AESERFIE) RAETE
regulates the employee training policies and continuously TR 8RB TIREA M
offers internal and external trainings for employees. The INEBEE BN - MELEE I 2 B M A insa s
internal training aims at strengthening the flexibility of B AN B IR E /) ZE A E P
human resources allocation of the Group and learning BIERl A REIEN TR AEES
more about the inter-departmental collaboration and HFIRBEBF R RAEBEEEER
interface. Various departments of the Group formulate M E RSB EBINAS - flan- £
training courses according to business needs and updates MAEI - SEEREI - B EE
of relevant laws and regulations, such as, training on the BRMHEEI BT RE IR
Listing Rules, accounting standards, risk management BHilE-

knowledge, labour regulations and the Employee’'s Code of
Conduct, etc.

The following shows the statistics relating to the employee NTERASEERAHREHANE
training of the Group during the Reporting Period: TZIEREIE

Approximate percentage to the total number Approximate percentage to the total number of

of employees of the relevant gender employees of the relevant type of position
HHARNEI#BHXHLLE GHARCFES TEBHXHLLE
90% 98% 88%
(]
82% 80% >
59 %
Male Female Senior Mid-level Professional General
BMET ZMET management management position position

BREEE SREEE BEEL  —REQ

Average hours of employee training Average hours of employee training
(by gender) (by employment type)
BEIZAFEHHH (RENS) BIZNFEYHY (REMSREIS)
39.1 40.3

217
17.7 14.6 13.3
Male Female Senior Mid-level Professional General
=MET ZHET management management position position
SRERE TREEE SEEL 0 —REQ
(Hour) (Hour)

(/NBE) (/1EF)
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3.5 Labour Rights 3.5 IS

The Group respects and upholds various internationally
recognised human rights and consciously resists any
actions disregarding human rights. The Group complies in
all material respects with national and regional laws and
regulations of Hong Kong and Mainland China such as
the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China ( (/%
ARFEMBE L EHE) ), the Law of the People’'s Republic
of China on the Protection of Rights and Interests of
Women and Children ( (F#E AR LB G Z T ERE =R
#3%) ), the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the
Protection of Minors ( (R ZE AR HZMEIRKF AREE) ),
the Provisions on Prohibition of Child Labour ( <%tk A
FETHME) ) and the Employment Ordinance of the laws
of Hong Kong ( (/E1& &%) ). The Group strictly prohibits
the use of child labour and forced labour under any
circumstances, protects employees’ privacy and complies
with the national policies over public holidays and paid
leaves. Under the comprehensive laws and internal policy,
the interests of the employees are safeguarded by the
Group. During the Reporting Period, the Group complied
in all material repsects with relevant national and regional
laws and regulations which had significant influence on the
Group and no violation of relevant laws and regulations was
reported.

AEBESMEEBRR QRN ER
AR BB EBHERDER AT
R AKBE-—BERMEEXNTEE
ST AhEARXMELEE) (h
EARANBER LA ERRRE
E) (P EARKMBIARKF AR
EX) (BULERBETIRE) ME
BED CRBIGD)D) SEERTER
HWEIR R A RER - BT
BRTERETMBRHET REB
THEARETERRENEHRA
MEHARBRENE - AEEEZEN
ERMABHENRET - EERET
MRS B EIRIE - RAHEMA - K
SERMBERTEEETHAS
EBAEAYENHEBER RibEA
RS TEREERBRERER
EENRE -
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group understands the importance of environmental
protection for promoting sustainable development. The Group's
business premises are mainly offices, hotels, marine travelling
facilities and construction sites, of which the main environmental
impacts may potentially include greenhouse gases and air
pollutant emissions from the electricity and fuel usage, discharge
into water and land during the operations of hotels, vessels and
construction sites, solid waste generation as well as electricity
and fuel consumption. The Group has formulated targeted
environmental management policies for different businesses
with reference to national and local environmental laws and
regulations, and proactively implemented different environmental
measures, endeavoring to reduce the environmental impacts
during its operations.

During the Reporting Period, the Group observed in all material
respects, the Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China ( (FZE AR KEFBEIRFZ(REE) ), the Energy
Conservation Law of the People's Republic of China ( (% A
REFMBISTHEEIRL) ), the Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Prevention and Control of Pollution From Environmental
Noise ( (FREAREFBEIRBERESLHEE) ), the Law of
the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of
Atmospheric Pollution ( (R ZEARZLMBE KRR IFEBHARZE) ),
the Water Law of the People’s Republic of China ( {(FFZE AR
FEL7KE) ), the Marine Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China ( (fZE AR KEME G FRERE
J&) ), the Solid Waste Pollution Prevention and Control Law of
the People’s Republic of China ( {/FZE A R H AN E & 8 FE )5 2
IREPHJAE) ), the Law on Environmental Impact Evaluations of
the People’s Republic of China ( (ZE AR L FBIIRF LT
J%) ) and other national and local laws and regulations, managed
air pollutants, greenhouse gases, discharge into water and land,
hazardous and non-hazardous wastes, construction noises, etc.,
and no violation of relevant laws and regulations was reported by
the Group during the Reporting Period.

4.1 Exhaust Gas and Sewage Management

In compliance in all material respects with national and
local laws and regulations, such as the Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China ( (/%
AREMBIREREL) ), the Water Law of the People’s
Republic of China ( {(FZEARZFEKE) ), the Marine
Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China ( (P EAREFIBGFIREIREE) ), the Regulations
of Beijing Municipality on Prevention and Control of
Atmospheric Pollution ( {db =R KR 5 LB GG ),
the Regulations of Shandong Province on Environmental
Protection ( (LU A IREREEH) ), etc., and internal
environmental protection policy, the Group exerted
management and control on air pollutant and sewage.
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Vessels are the main offshore facilities for the Group's
marine travelling services. In order to minimise air pollutant
emission caused by the using of vessels, Huandao Hotel
Investment, a subsidiary of the Group, required that
engines should be shut down when vessels are at berth
and not in use. It also strengthened vessel travelling route
planning and shortened vessel berth waiting time to avoid
unnecessary fuel consumption and air pollutant emissions.
In terms of vessel maintenance and management, Huandao
Hotel Investment regularly arrange for body cleaning as
well as inspection and maintenance on slipway to reduce
the friction between vessel and water during navigation
to ensure normal operation, thereby reducing fuel
consumption and air pollutant emissions.

In order to minimise air pollutant emissions arising
from the using of vehicles by employees during their
attendance, the Group's Beijing office has formulated the
Administrative Regulations on Business Vehicles ( (&
BEBEEEEIETE) ) providing that the Group should take
into consideration of factors such as emission reduction
and energy conservation when purchasing vehicles and
that thorough examination and maintenance are required
to conduct regularly for all vehicles to keep them in good
operation and discharge in compliance with statutory
requirements. Meanwhile, the Group's Beijing office
strictly controls the frequency of employees’ use of
vehicles and encourages the sharing of one vehicle among
several employees when going out to reduce the impact of
vehicle emissions on air quality.

RIE - HEBKEIBHRS

MARAEEE EIRERENETE
BERM RTRERDMMERAE
B ZER)SRMBER - NEEHTE R
ARESBERELMMERRIER
RECHER -EREERTEH B
BB E IR A R E M AR E R A R R
F2UEASIZE - R AR B AR
REIFARE MARFE SRS B8
T E R IR R %= R 2
MER - ERBEEFTE BEBEE
RETEHLHMM EMBETH S
BEMBERE B M AR 8
IKEEEIE ) R WEAR IE B AF » 1E TR
DIRELEFE R ZE RO5 RN -

RTBERVETHHRAERA
BEAZERISRMBER - AEBEL S
REGFT T ARBEFEEBRE) -
RERBEEREBERSZ BAK
HMERGEERE  MAEWEE
HETH RS RRE - MRFEER
BAER MBI GIED EK A
B AEEIERRAERARIEHE T
EREHmNAR BTIINHRERE
HREH UWRLEREREERE
ENRE-
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The Group also manages the waste gas and wastewater
generated during the construction process. Zhucheng
Phoenix and Dafeng Development, subsidiaries of the
Group, have established an accountability system on the
prevention and control of dust pollution, and have adopted
dust prevention measures such as covering, hoarding,
totally enclosing, spraying, washing and greening during
the construction period pursuant to the local environmental
protection regulations of the construction sites, such as
the Administrative Measures on the Prevention and Control
of Dust Pollution of Shandong Province ( {15 & 5 EE5 4
fsaEIRH#E%) ) to reduce the impact of dust generated
from the construction process on the surrounding air
quality. The sewage treatment facilities at the construction
sites and the main constructions of the projects of
Zhucheng Phoenix and Dafeng Development are designed,
constructed and put into use at the same time, and are
connected to municipal pipeline to ensure proper treatment
of sewage.

The volume of pollutant emission generated by the Group
due to the business operation during the Reporting Period,
together with the comparative figures for the year ended
31 December 2017, is as follows:

REB IR 3 TBEPFTE LM E
REBEXKETER AEBEMB LR
AEMEE R A EFHERTTIHE
BARBREAES WREE T
WERERRO WM QLUREHEF R
PAEIENE) - R e T AR REUE
2 BE R BB ML RIEE
B EE 6 bt - R b iBIREE AR Y5 BE
HRASEREZNTE -FBREEK
N2 E T 3005 7K Be 12 5%t B2 78
BEXRTERKRN BLRRAR
ﬁ%ﬁ%A%ﬁ%ﬁ’ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁ
G e

AEERAREMARNEXEZEM
EENASRDERERBE_F
—tE+ZA=+-HAILFEZL
BREEMT

Unit

2018 2017 B I
Emission of Air Pollutant by Vessels
B i ZE 3RS S W BE I
Emission of CO 4,686 5,193 Kg
Co#EmE Fr
Emission of NOx 18,172 14,424 Kg
NO«BF i & T
Emission of SOx 449 408 Kg
SOHEm 2 Fr
Emission of PMzs 1,328 1,076 Kg
PMa2sBE 2 T=
Emission of PM1o 1,434 1,145 Kg
PMofk il & TR
Emissions of Air Pollutant by Vehicles
REZRS{DEER
Emission of CO 1,223 921 Kg
COo#EmE Fr
Emission of NOx 399 344 Kg
NO«HE PR &= T
Emission of SO« 1 1 Kg
SOHE = Fr
Emission of PMzs 15 15 Kg
PMzsHE i & TR
Emission of PMio 16 16 Kg
PMioBE ik & Fr
Wastewater Discharge
BE K HER
Total Volume of Sewage Discharge 60,821 72,736 Ton
JAIKBER AR 8 NI
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4.2 HiREfEH

The major environmental impacts caused during the
operation process of the Group's offices are energy,
water resource and office supply consumption as well
as carbon emission resulted from energy usage. In order
to reduce the use of natural resource and lower carbon
emission, the Group has formulated and implemented
various environmental protection measures targeting daily
operation of the offices in accordance with national laws
and regulations such as the Environmental Protection Law
of the People’s Republic of China ( (/%= A R AR5 R
%) ) and the Energy Conservation Law of the People’s
Republic of China ( (P ZE AR ZLMBIELRLIRZE) ), and
encourages its employees to implement those measures.
Specific environmental protection measures formulated by

AEBENRLNECLEBREPEIE
B REIEFERLIR - KER &AM
HIRGERTE  BREAERME
BXHRBETN © ARt A AR A B IR FNFE
BB E  AEBERE (PEAR
HABRFFEEE) M (PEARK
MEEEHRERE) FRZERER -
HERAEMHELEHNELEE
TERBRRER ABE THIT-
AT RAEEIERBAZEFENR
BRREEAS:

the Group's Beijing office are set out below:

Saving Electricity °
B 4 A E .

Saving Water °
B 4 A 7K

Reduce usage of office supplies °

B E R AR M .

Only turn on necessary lighting during day time
BRRAME S L ERAE

Maintain the temperature of airconditioning to not lower than
26°C during summer time

BERZEREHETMERER26E

Replace with LED lighting system and energy-saving light tubes
in offices

MAELNALEDRA RGN LB E

Turn off the monitor and power of the computers, or set to
energy saving/hibernation mode when it is not in use
BEARTEAREANBERENER AREADE MEREKX
Post labels to remind for energy saving

RELIRRIRE  IREEI A ELIR

Switch off all the lights, computers, printers, etc. after work and
designate persons to confirm

TR EREAERE S ITHRE - THEARER

Use office equipment with Grade 1 energy efficiency standard
A — e R BN R

Promote water conservation among employees on their own
initiative

RIEETIBEHHANK

Install water-saving toilets and water tap

72 3% B 7K B BT AN B 7K K BE BB

Use residue water resources to clean and irrigate plants

AR EBKERETERMZEED

Achieve paperless office through office automation system
mBRABBEERS  HITEKLEHED

Adopt double-sided printing, reuse used paper, communicate
through emails more frequently and minimise paper usage
KACEITH BFEAANA ZAEFHG SR HKRER
Recycle used paper and conduct garbage sorting and recycling
FEAR B iR 5 BRI
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The Group has also installed video conference system
and encouraged subsidiaries to use video conference in
substitution of business travelling, which could not only
enhance work efficiencies of the Group but also reduce
carbon footprint and emission of greenhouse gases.

In addition, Zhucheng Phoenix, a subsidiary of the Group,
has introduced various green construction designs in
proactive response to the Implementation Opinion
on the Promotion of Green Construction of Shandong
Provincial People’'s Government ( {ILE & A R BT
RANBEEZERETHNEBER) ) promulgated
by the local government. For example, in its property
development business, it implemented the standards for
building energy-saving design of 75% energy-saving for
residential construction and 65% energy-saving for public
construction, and installed adaptive lighting system for
the public areas and aisleway in the buildings. Meanwhile,
it also introduced various environmental protection
measures, such as setting up light collection wells in
basement parking lots and glass curtain walls in public
areas to reduce electricity consumption caused by usage of
lighting devices.

2018 Annual Report FERE
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Since its business does not operate in areas where water
resources are scarce, the Group does not involve the
issue of access to water. However, the Group strived to
implement water conservation measures and its water
consumption decreased by approximately 16% during the
Reporting Period as compared with 2017.

The volume of resource consumption and greenhouse
gas emission generated by the Group due to the business
operation during the Reporting Period is as follows:

RIE - HEBKEIBHRS

BERAEBMNEBT TS REKER
R R A R 2 E - I N K SKER
FERAKRHME  AEBE EEH
KFENE  AEERAREHAR-F
—EFEHKL16% °

AREAERE BNEEHLEMD
EAMERNERRAE RBK
EMT:

Unit
B

Usage of Resource

BRERE

Total Electric Power Consumption’
BHMERE

Density of Electric Power Consumption
BIHREE

Total Gasoline Consumption (Vehicle)
FUREREREE (RE)

Density of Gasoline Consumption (Vehicle)
EHRERE ()RF)

Total Diesel Oil Consumption (Vehicle)
emEEEE (RE)

Density of Diesel Oil Consumption (Vehicle)
SOmBEREE (9%E)

Total Gasoline Consumption (Vessel)
FUREREEE (MAE)

Density of Gasoline Consumption (Vessel)
FURHRERE (M)

Total Diesel Oil Consumption (Vessel)
Seh EREEE (MfR)

Density of Diesel Oil Consumption (Vessel)
SOmBEREEE (Mf)

Total Fuel Consumption (Vessel)
BEREREEE (ffa)

Density of Fuel Consumption (Vessel)
DR EREEE (M)

Total Natural Gas Consumption
RARERBEE

Density of Natural Gas Consumption
RARHEEE

Total Purchased Steam Consumption
SNBE AR EERE

Density of Purchased Steam Consumption
IMNBEIREV N BT E

Total Water Consumption

BIEKE

Total Density of Water Consumption
BREKEE

2,835,607 Kwh
T R B
50 Kwh/m? of the floor area?
TR/ FHKEE®E?
50,205 Liter

ﬂ_
1,859 Liter/vehicle®
S mAE
5,548 Liter
ﬂ_
1,387 Liter/vehicle
S EWAE
38 Ton
N
4 Ton/vessel*
NPT IR
154 Ton
N
19 Ton/vessel
W/ AR
98 Ton
N
49 Ton/vessel
NP =TT
32,211 M3
3K
0.6 M?3/m? of the floor area
MEKSFEFKREEERE
29,607 GJ
Ep:
0.5 GJ/m? of the floor area
SRR KEEERE
69,978 Ton
N
1.2 Ton/m? of the floor area
AWE T KEEERE
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Unit
L)
Greenhouse Gas Emission (Scope 1 and Scope
2)
BEREHN (GE1MEEH2)
Emission by Vehicles (Scope 1) 130 Ton
BB (EEN) N
Emission by Vessels (Scope 1) 901 Ton
&R (SEEN) N
Greenhouse Gas Offset by the Group’'s Owned Trees
(Scope 1) 1 Ton
EEBARMAZEREEES (FEN) N
Emission by Energy Consumption (Scope 2) 2,346 Ton
BEAEAPER (HBE2) N
Emission by Purchased Steam Consumption (Scope 2) 3,257 Ton
SMNBFRRNE AR (FE2) N
Total Emission of Greenhouse Gas 6,623 Ton
MR ERBHME N
Total Density of Emission of Greenhouse Gas 0.1 Ton/m? of the floor area
LR ERBHENEE AWE TR KEEER
Notes: 1. Compared with 2017 the Group’s operating locations it HE-ZT—tFE AEERAKR

increased during the Reporting Period, resulting in an
increase in electricity consumption.

2. All environmental data in this ESG Report, with m? of
the floor area as the denominator for density calculation,
includes all the operating locations at reporting levels
covered by this ESG Report.

3. The vehicle fuel consumption density is calculated with
the respective number of gasoline and diesel vehicles,
i.e. 27 gasoline vehicles and 4 diesel vehicles.

4. The vessel fuel consumption density is calculated with
the respective number of gasoline vessels, diesel vessels
and fuel oil vessels, i.e. totally 10 gasoline vessels, 8
diesel vessels and 2 fuel oil vessels.
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4.3 Waste Management 4.3 BEDER

The Group attaches great importance to the management
of the generation of waste during its operation and hence
formulated waste management policies suitable for
different businesses, aiming to reduce the emissions of
both hazardous and non-hazardous wastes and minimise
their impacts on the environment. The Group has been
in compliance in all material respects with relevant
national and local laws and regulations in relation to
waste management, including the Solid Waste Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of
China ((HEARLMEEREEYSRERENEE) ), the
Regulation on the Administration of the Recycling and
Disposal of Electrical and Electronic Products Waste ( &
EERETEQLRKREREEZBKAI) ), the Administrative
Measures for the Disposal of Kitchen Wastes of Sanya
(=M EFNRERIE) ), the Waste Disposal
Ordinance of the Laws of Hong Kong, etc., and proactively
implemented the requirements of the relevant laws
and regulations into every aspect of its operation by
establishing internal management policies.

The Group's hotel and marine travelling businesses
involve the use of vessels. Improper vessel and employee
management may result in risk that pollutants such as oil
and solid waste will be dumped into the ocean illegally,
which will have a serious impact on the marine ecology.
Therefore, the Group has strict regulations on the operation
of marine vessels. Huandao Hotel Investment, a subsidiary
of the Group, has established Preventive Measures for
Pollution from Vessels ( (PR 5 ZREFEHE) ), strictly
prohibiting the discharge of hazardous wastes and non-
hazardous wastes such as solid wastes, sewage and oil
into the sea. Meanwhile, the Group educates its crews
about ocean protection through launching promotion
programmes and staff training, and requires them to
conduct sorting and collecting of hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes on the ships and then have government-
approved waste recycle entities to dispose when vessels
are at berth. The Group also stipulates that in the event of a
marine traffic accident or a contaminated waters accident,
subsidiary shall immediately report to the maritime
department and take emergency measures to prevent the
damages to the environment from expanding.

AEEERHEERELNBERY
MER  FIHIE TEA TREKH
BEEWEERER RS AEEEEY
MEBEEEZYOIRLREREY
BRIBMELANTE - AEBE—ERMA
BERHEETER KR HERE
EMERRBEEER B (P
EARATEE B EEY S RRED
BE) (ERERETEMDWRE
BERGH) (ZEmREBENEE
BHOR) RBEEED BV EE K
1) & - WiBE S E N E R R KT
B ERERNERZEIER -

AEBENEE RS LIREXBE SR
FAREER - TEMMMR B TER
BBEMS R ERBEENSTISRY
IEREREEFNRAR  SEEEF
HRELBREFE A AEEYH
BEMBNEERZERNAE
AEBHBLARAESBERERS
7 KHEARB S RRE ) - 2 1M
FVERRERY KNS ERE
MEZEEYES EBENRIEE - [
B BBEEERRETEI BE
i BB RE MR W ERE M EX
BRAEREEERMETOIRKRSE &
MMEFREERYXABRMERA
HIRE YD O W IE 1T R IR - AR E TR
REMBRAR-—BRELBLEXBE
BOMS oK I% = - RSB A8 5 8D
FisRes  WEIRIERIEE  PILEHIR
ERBIREK -
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In addition, as to the tourists’ visits to the beach under
the marine travelling business, Huandao Hotel Investment
also formulated the Management Policy for Environmental
Hygiene and Cleaning for Coastal Area and Beach ( it
B ERBHERZEESIE) ) to enhance the quality
of environmental hygiene and waste management work
in the beach areas under the operation of the Group. In
accordance with this policy, the beach areas are divided
into several areas, and each area has its designated cleaner
to handle the environmental hygiene and cleaning work.
The cleaners should properly clean the beach, and dispose
all kinds of wastes to designated waste station, where
such wastes will be transported to government-designated
waste yard by garden companies for further disposal,
such that all wastes are disposed on daily basis. For
seaweed and waste washed up by the waves on the beach,
the Group has established an environmental hygiene
leadership team which is responsible for the supervision
and administration of the environmental hygiene for the
whole beach area and regularly clean up marine litters, so
as to achieve four “No”, (i.e., No debris, No fruit peels and
waste paper, No stink water and No four pests) as well
as four “Clean” (i.e. Clean Road, Clean Green Belt, Clean
Walls and Clean Public Area).
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The Group also started from the source by adopting
policy of reducing the use of disposable products such
as disposable tableware and plastic bottled waters,
and implementing measures of reusing and recycling
wastes and wastes sorting. Consumable materials of the
photocopiers and printers such as ink boxes and toners
cartridges, non-reusable waste paper and discarded
computers will be sorted with other daily solid wastes and
recyclers will be arranged to recycle them. In addition, as
its business nature does not involve the use of packaging
materials, the Group does not disclose the relevant
information.

The volume and density of waste generated by the Group
due to the business operation during the Reporting Period
is as follows:

LB R IR R R - BREUR A2
BZEAm (MENEEAENBEEK)
BV - S HEFT A B A K AT B YRR R
V)3 SRR HE s o AR ENH - FT ENH 2
THETRM (MB2RENE) -
T BEANERANEENENSE
HEEMEFERBEZRMETOR
WP EETE - S5 AR
AEBNEBUEEL TS RBEM
EWE%’&%EE%@%%E%G
Zo

REB R AR E AN EEE L EM
EENBERMBENEENT:

Unit

L]
Discharge Volume of Hazardous Waste
FEEMELEE
Fluorescent Tube 41 Piece(s)
HAEE &
Density of Wasted Fluorescent Tube 0.0007 Piece(s)/m? of the floor area
BRABEEERE 8,/ FHREEmE
Used Batteries 85 Piece(s)
REE &
Density of Used Batteries 0.0015 Piece(s)/m? of the floor area
BEAELERE 8,/ FHREEmE
Cartridge 78 Piece(s)
28 &
Density of Wasted Cartridge 0.0014 Piece(s)/m? of the floor area
BREELATE 8,/ FHREEmE
Discharge Volume of Non-hazardous Waste
ETEMELEE
Wasted Paper 202 Kg
[BE FE 4 ok T
Density of Wasted Paper 0.004 Kg/m? of the floor area
BEERREERE Fr/FHKBRERR
Paper Recycled 137 Kg
G RS T

The Group's hazardous and non-hazardous waste generated
during the Reporting Period has not changed significantly
compared with the relevant data disclosed in the 2017 ESG
Report, and maintained at a low level. As the Group's waste
management policies were effectively implemented, the
waste generated by the Group did not have a significant
impact on the environment.

AEERAREHANEERES
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BRI - HEBKEBHS

5

FULFILLING SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

5.1

5.2

Supply Chain Management

The Group strives to develop and maintain a long-term
and close relationship with upstream and downstream
customers and suppliers. Each of the Group's subsidiaries
has established a bidding management system and
supplier evaluation system with standardised tender and
bidding procedures to ensure that the process of selection
of contractors and suppliers is fair and transparent.
According to the supplier evaluation system, apart from
the competitiveness of quotation, the Group also evaluates
the standard of the products and services provided by the
contractors and suppliers on a regular basis and assesses
the quality of the relevant products and services to ensure
the contractor and/or the supplier are in compliance with
the relevant standards. For example, a subsidiary of the
Group, Chengtong Development Trading, has formulated
the “"Management Method of Credit Evaluation on
Upstream Suppliers/Downstream Customers”, which
adopts qualitative indicators to evaluate upstream suppliers
and downstream customers. The regular and occasional
evaluations are conducted against social, economic and
governance risks, mainly with reference to the enterprise
qualification, reputation in the industry, financial condition,
actual performance of the contract, administrative penalty,
litigation involved etc. The above policies aim to enhance
the operation quality and overall efficiency of the Group,
as well as to ensure fund security, so as to strengthen and
improve risk management.

Besides, provisions for environmental protection are
incorporated into certain contracts signed by the Group and
contractors and/or suppliers, requesting the contractors
and/or suppliers to strictly observe the requirements of
environmental protection when performing their contractual
obligations so as to procure the supply chain to jointly
assume the responsibility of sustainable development.

Product Responsibility

The Group is committed to providing customers with
quality products and services. It actively expands property
investment business and enriches the types of projects in
bulk commodity and marine entertainment and improves
the quality of its products and services to attract new
customers and strengthen relationship with existing
customers.
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In respect of property development business, the Group
abides by the national laws and regulations in relation to
production safety of construction projects, such as the
Measures for Quality Repair of Housing Construction
Project ( (EEZETRESREME) )in all material
respects, regulates construction procedures and technique,
and requires those who are in specialised positions and
those who operate specialised equipment to possess
relevant qualifications and operation certificates. Various
tests and inspection are arranged before delivery of
products. Timely rectification measures are also carried
out when quality problems are found to ensure the safety
of the construction work. During the Reporting Period, the
Group has no products required to be recalled due to safety
and health reasons.

Ensuring the safety of the tourists is the primary task
of the Group’s hotel and marine travelling business. The
Undersea World Hotel of the Group has security staff in
charge of inspection of hotel safety, kitchen and firefighting
equipment. The hotel also frequently communicates with
local police and firefighting departments and update
security information of the surrounding area of the hotel. In
respect of hotel management on food safety and hygiene,
the Group strictly manages and controls food purchase
channels, and sets up the food safety and supervisory
department to arrange regular inspections for all food
processing plants and kitchens. With regards to the safety
of entertainment facilities on vessels, comprehensive
inspection for all entertainment facilities is conducted
every day before setting sail. Fire safety measures are
adopted on all operating vessels and crews are required to
participate in emergency drills on a regular basis and get
a clear picture of the escape routes and locations of the
safety device, to ensure that a quick response is prepared
in case of incidents.

The Group understands that providing customers with
premium services is conductive to business growth in the
long run. The Group establishes various communication
channels including telephone hotlines, website and
social media platform to strengthen its communication
with customers. The Group's subsidiary, Huandao Hotel
Investment, has established the “System of Handling
Complaint from Visitors” to standardise the handling
arrangements of various types of complaints from tourists,
and to classify and analyse the types of complaints,
so as to enable front-line staff to help resolve visitor's
unsatisfaction and needs in a more effective manner.
During the Reporting Period, the Group has received three
complaints in total in respect of the relevant products and
services for hotel and marine travelling business. Upon
receiving reasonable complaints, the Group has taken
remedial measures timely such as offering compensation,
issuing letter of apology etc., to treat all of the customers
in good faith and offer them the excellent services.

RIE - HEBKEIBHRS
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5.3

HEBKEBHS

According to national regulations, ID document-based real-
name registration is required when tourists checking in
at hotel. The operation of the hotel and marine travelling
business therefore involves a large amount of personal
privacy information. To safeguard data privacy and
intellectual property rights of the Group and its customers,
the headquarter in Hong Kong and the subsidiary Huandao
Hotel Investment have formulated the “Employee’s Code
of Conduct” and “File Management System” respectively,
requiring its staff to safeguard the confidentiality of
information. The Group also incorporates confidentiality
provisions in employment contracts to avoid personal
information of client leakage and safeguard customers’
privacy. In addition, the Group strictly abides by the
administrative requirements in its business location which
are applicable to the industry and has enhanced the
security management of the personal information of the
customers. If the employees require access to customers’
personal information, they must receive approval from
their respective supervisors or managers so as to avoid
unauthorised and improper use of customers’ personal
information. Furthermore, with regards to the protection
of intellectual property rights, the Group complies strictly
with relevant regulations and insists to purchase and use
licenced computer software and respects intellectual
property rights.

Laws and regulations of the state and industry on
advertising and labeling that have been complied with by
the Group include the Advertising Law of the People's
Republic of China ( (I ARKMBEIE % L) ), the Interim
Rules on Advertisement for Real Estate ((EHEREL
BHEITRTE) ) and the Announcement of the State
Administration for Industry and Commerce and Ministry of
Construction on Further Strengthening the Administration
of Real Estate Advertising ((BRIETHRERERD &
HHARE— L NRFHERESEENBA) ), etc., and
ensures that the advertisements released will comply with
the requirements of the government and the industry and
will not mislead the general public.

Anti-Corruption

The Group operates in good faith. Any form of bribery,
blackmail, fraud and money laundering may damage our
brand image and lead to material operational risks. Thus,
the Group has no tolerance for corruption. During the
Reporting Period, the Group abided in all material respects
by the national and local laws and regulations on anti-
corruption, including the Criminal Law of the People's
Republic of China ( (R #E AR FHMEIE) ), the Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China ( (/%
MARAMBE R TIEEFHFE) ), the Anti-Money Laundering
Law of the People’s Republic of China ( (fF & A R FE
¥E885%) ) and the Regulations on Practice Integrity of
Management of the State-owned Enterprises ( Bl &
XBEABRENMEETHT) ), etc., and has not been
involved in any litigation with respect to corruption.
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The “Employee’s Code of Conduct” of the Group clearly
specifies that staff should have strict integrity and shall
not engage in malpractices such as corruption or bribery,
secretly accepting any commission and gifts from
customers, as well as embezzling of funds. Approvals
shall be obtained before dealing with matters beyond the
staff authority. All staff of the Group were requested to
uphold integrity and behave honestly, and anyone who
violates the code of conduct of the Group shall be given a
warning, demotion or dismissal. In the event that any staff
is suspected of involving in corruption or criminal acts, the
Group is obliged to report to the Independent Commission
Against Corruption (ICAC) or the relevant government
authorities. As to the Group's internal reporting procedures
for corruption, an anti-corruption reporting hotline and email
have been set up. Staff may report corruption cases via
various channels so as to enhance the efficiency of anti-
corruption work.

5.4 Community Involvement

In addition to its commitment of pursuing its development,
the Group also takes a proactive attitude in practicing
corporate social responsibility and promotes positive
attitude. During the Reporting Period, the Group mainly
provides assistances to the poor in Mainland China and
practically supports the development of social charity.

The employees of the Group have actively responded to
the donation activities in the past few years. The clothes
donated by our employees have helped many people living
in poor mountain areas get through many cold winters.
During the Reporting Period, the clothes donated by
our employees have filled the donation box prepared by
the Group in a short time. The Group carefully checked,
sorted, packaged and arranged the donated clothing and
sent the sorted clothes to the poverty-stricken areas in
Miao Autonomous County, Zunyi City, Guizhou Province.
The activity was strongly supported by the whole Group,
providing love for people in poverty-stricken areas and
bringing warmth to people in need.
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Directors’ Report

SEEWRS

The Directors present the annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the Year.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The principal business of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to
the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 90 of this annual report.

The Board did not recommend the declaration of any final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2018 (as at 31 December 2017: nil).

In order to enhance transparency of the Company and facilitate
the shareholders of the Company and investors to make informed
investment decisions relating to the Company, the Board adopted a
dividend policy on 25 February 2019 (“Dividend Policy”).

According to the Dividend Policy, when determining whether to
declare any dividend in the future and the amount of dividend to be
declared, the Company shall consider a number of factors, including
but not limited to:

° the Group's actual and expected financial results;

o the general economic conditions and other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the business or financial
performance and position of the Company;

o the Company's business operation strategy, including expected
working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements
and future expansion plans;

o the Company's liquidity position;

° retained earnings and distributable profit reserves of the
Company;

o the contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends imposed
by the Company's lenders and other institutions; and

o any other factors that the Board considers to be applicable from
time to time.

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend distribution
proportion or distribution ratio. The declaration, payment and amount
of dividends will be subject to the Board's discretion. The Board will
review the Dividend Policy on a regular basis.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment and
investment properties for the Year are set out in notes 15 and 17 to the
financial statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Company are set out in note 34 to the
financial statements.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group for the Year are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages
94 to 95 of this annual report.

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company for the Year
are set out in note 36 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company had approximately
HK$86,028,000 distributable reserve as calculated under Sections
291, 297 and 299 of the Companies Ordinance (as at 31 December
2017: HK$96,401,000).

DONATIONS

The Group did not make any donation for charitable purpose during the
Year (2017: HK$383,000).
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BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, the Group is principally engaged in property
development and property investment, finance leasing, bulk
commodity trade and hotel and marine travelling services within the
region in the PRC.

Major Risks and Uncertainties

The results and business operation of the Group may be affected
by various factors. The major risks uncertainties are summarized as
follows:

I

/A

.

Property Development and Property Investment

In recent years, China has continued its control over the real
estate industry. The property development projects held by the
Group, namely CCT-Champs-Elysees and Chengtong International
City are situated in the third and fourth-tier cities in the PRC. As
the CCT-Champs-Elysees project of the Group has established
a positive local brand image, steady sales have been recorded.
The sales of Chengtong International City project of the Group
was still affected by a number of factors, including a high level
of inventory, relatively low foreign population, and downturn in
the regional market. The Group will pursue to exit the market of
property development business as opportunity arises and plans
to dispose of the land in Dafeng City of Jiangsu Province, the
PRC. Therefore, the overall risks were controllable.

Finance Leasing

The finance leasing projects of the Group mainly focus on the
lease back of local government infrastructure and public utilities.
Business and client types are relatively homogeneous and such
concentration of risks will affect the profitability of the Group.
In the future, the Group will actively explore a wide range of
business models, expand business streams and diversify risks.

Bulk Commodity Trading

Bulk commodity trading prices are affected by international and
domestic markets. Once there is a drop or intense fluctuations
in price, the profitability of the Group would easily be affected.
In the future, the Group will strengthen the supervision and
control on the business model of bulk commodity trade in order
to reduce the risks.
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IVv.

Hotel and Marine Travelling Services

The operation of the marine travelling business is subject to
the environmental protection policy and weather condition.
Adverse weather condition may affect the number of business
days of tourism activities and the profitability. The Group
will timely optimize the tourism projects and renew facilities
according to the market changes in order to maintain the market
competitiveness of its hotel and marine travelling business.

Economy

The business of the Group focus in the PRC, and therefore, the
Group would suffer from the risks arising from foreign currency
exchange, mainly due to its holding of assets and liabilities
which are denominated in RMB. Furthermore, the increase of
loan interests during the year will affect the Group's interest
expenses of loans. The fluctuation of exchange rate and the
adjustment of loan interests may have an impact on the results
of the Group. Although foreign currency and interest rate
exposure do not pose significant risks to the Group, and the
Group does not currently have any hedging measures against
such exchange and interest rate risks, the Group will continue
to closely monitor the risks which may arise from such currency
and interest rate fluctuation.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group constantly monitored the operation of its core businesses
in the PRC to ensure the compliance with the relevant PRC laws and
regulations.

I

Property Development and Property Investment

Zhucheng Phoenix and Dafeng Development, the subsidiaries of
the Company, are principally engaged in property development
and property investment businesses. During the Year and up
to the date of this directors’ report, the Group has been in
compliance in all material respects with the laws and regulations
in Mainland China that have a significant impact on its property
development and property investment businesses, including: the
Law on the Administration of Urban Real Estate of the People's
Republic of China (Order No. 18 of the President of the People’s
Republic of China) ((PEARKFEN T EMEERE) (P
ARKEMBEFSE185) ), the Law on Land Administration of
the People’s Republic of China (Order No. 28 of the President
of the People’s Republic of China) ( (I AR EME £ i & 3#
By (R ARKMBEEF S $28%%)), the Law on Urban and
Rural Planning of the People’s Republic of China (Order No. 23
of the President of the People's Republic of China) ( {H % A
RAEMBG LR EE) (FEARERE EF2SE23%)), the
Administrative Regulations on Development and Operation of
Urban Real Estate (Order No. 698 of the State Council of the
People's Republic of China) ( (T /F H = F 48 & B R IEH))
(REE AR KB R BIT< 569857 ) ), and judicial interpretations,
other regulations, local regulations and regulatory documents
issued or promulgated according to or in relation to these laws
and regulations. These laws and regulations aim to strengthen
the management of urban real estate, maintain the order of
real estate market, protect the legitimate rights and interests
of the parties interested in the real estate, and regulate the
construction of infrastructure and housing on the state-owned
land within the urban planning area as well as the transfer of real
estate development projects or the sale or leasing of commercial
housing conducted by real estate development enterprises.
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hi.

Finance Leasing

During the Year and up to the date of this directors’ report, the
Group has been in compliance in all material respects with the
laws and regulations in Mainland China that have a significant
impact on its finance leasing business, including: the Contract
Law of the People’'s Republic of China (Order No. 15 of the
President of the People’s Republic of China) ({#F#E A R FEH
ARE)(FEARKEMEEFSE15%) ), the Interpretations
of the Supreme People’s Court on Issues relating to the
Application of Laws in the Trial of Disputes over Finance Lease
(Court Interpretation [2014] No. 3) (@ ARE AN EIE &
EHEERUNEMTEREZEBENRE) OEE2014]35) ),
and judicial interpretations, other regulations, local regulations
and regulatory documents issued or promulgated according
to or in relation to these laws and regulations. These laws and
regulations aim to protect the legitimate rights and interests
of the contractual parties, maintain social and economic order,
guide the business activities of the finance leasing industry,
promote the economic development of the finance leasing
services, and guide the judicial authorities on hearing the
contractual disputes in respect of finance leasing.

Bulk Commodity Trade

During the Year, the bulk commodity trade business of the Group
mainly comprises trading of steel, non-ferrous metals and coal.
During the Year and up to the date of this directors’ report, the
Group has been in compliance in all material respects with the
laws and regulations in Mainland China that have a significant
impact on its bulk commodity trade business, including: the
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China (Order No. 15
of the President of the People’s Republic of China) ((FFZE AR
HMBEARE) (FEARELNMBEEFESEI55) ), the Property
Right Law of the People’'s Republic of China (Order No. 62 of
the President of the People’s Republic of China) ({FFZ#E AR
MEYEE) (PEARAMBEESH625%) ), the Negotiable
Instruments Law of the People's Republic of China (Order No.
22 of the President of the People’'s Republic of China) ({(ff %
ARZMBREE) (FEARKXMBEEFE L E225) ), Special
Provisions on Trading in Commodities on the Spot Market (for
Trial Implementation) ( (EMIBEMEHERXZERRE (H17) ),
and judicial interpretations, other regulations, local regulations
and regulatory documents issued or promulgated according
to or in relation to those laws and regulations. These laws
and regulations are applicable to the production and business
activities in relation to steel, non-ferrous metals and coal which
are conducted in the territory of the PRC and other sea territory
under the jurisdiction of the PRC, as well as to regulate the
national and industrial standards of the quality of the above
commodities, the supervision and management of the industry
and the standards of punishment for violation of relevant laws.
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IV. Hotel and Marine Travelling Services

The Group is also engaged in hotel and marine travelling services
business in Hainan Province, the PRC. During the Year and up
to the date of this directors’ report, the Group has been in
compliance in all material respects with the laws and regulations
in Mainland China that have a significant impact on its hotel and
marine travelling business, including: the Tourism Law of the
People’'s Republic of China (Order No. 57 of the President of the
People’s Republic of China) ({fF 2 A R H B iR #25%5) (A #E A
RAEME £ F S E6758)), the Law on Maritime Traffic Safety of
the People’s Republic of China (Order No. 57 of the President
of the People’s Republic of China) ({(F#E AR KAMEE B
ZRE)(REARALME EF<ES79) ), the Administrative
Measures for Public Security in the Hotel Industry (Order No.
588 of the State Council of the People’s Republic of China)
KIREFE AL BEIE) (PEARLME R < 5$5885) ),
and judicial interpretations, other regulations, local regulations
and regulatory documents issued or promulgated according
to or in relation to these laws and regulations. These laws and
regulations aim to protect the legitimate rights and interests of
the tourists and the operators of the travelling activities, maintain
the order of the tourism market, and specify the rules governing
operators of the hotel industry, vessels, seamen and operators
that sail, berth and operate in coastal area of the PRC, and the
relevant supervision and management system and the standards
of punishment.

The Group has established various management systems and
measures such as internal control and staff training to ensure the
compliance with laws and regulations in relation to the Group's
business and operation. As at 31 December 2018 and the date of this
directors’ report, no material breach of laws and regulations that has a
material impact on the Group's business and operation was noted by
the Group.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The Group understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with customers and provide them with quality products
and services. The Group enhances the relationship through continuous
interaction with customers to gain insight on the changing market
demand so that the Group can respond proactively.

During the Year, the aggregate amount of turnover attributable to
the five largest customers represented approximately 30% of the
Group's total turnover. Sales to the largest customer accounted
for approximately 9% of the Group's total turnover. The five largest
customers come from the bulk commodity trade business and four
out of the five largest customers commenced trading with the Group
since the year 2017 and the remaining one commenced trading with
the Group since the Year. No credit period was granted to customers
of bulk commodity trade business (2017: 0 day to 45 days). As at
31 December 2018, trade and bills receivables of the Group was
approximately HK$8.48 million. The Group has not provided for
impairment loss on trade receivables as the Directors are of the view
that trade receivables can be fully recovered. In addition, the Directors
consider that there is no significant risk associated with reliance on
major customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by
senior management.
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The Group is also dedicated to maintain good relationship with
suppliers and contractors as long-term business partners to ensure
stability of the Group's business.

During the Year, the aggregate amount of purchases (which means the
amount of purchases included in the costs of sale but does not include
purchases of items which are of a capital nature) attributable to the
five largest suppliers represented approximately 90% of the Group's
total purchases. Purchases from the largest supplier accounted for
approximately 40% of the Group's total purchases. The five largest
suppliers mainly came from the bulk commodity trade business and
they have commenced trading with the Group for 1 - 2 years. As at
31 December 2018, trade payables of the Group was approximately
HK$13.03 million, of which approximately HK$10.11 million will be
due within one year. The Group has established a supplier evaluation
system with standardized tender and bidding procedures for the
selection of suppliers. The Directors consider that there is no
significant risk associated with reliance on major suppliers.

None of the Directors, their close associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) and any shareholders which to the best knowledge of the
Directors owned more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital
had any interest in the Group's five largest customers or suppliers
during the Year.

Human Resources and Emolument Policy

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed a total of 267
employees (as at 31 December 2017: 304), of which 11 (as at 31
December 2017: 12) were based in Hong Kong and 256 (as at 31
December 2017: 292) were based in the Mainland China. During
the Year, the total staff costs of the Group (including directors
emoluments and provident funds) were approximately HK$62.80
million. Employee’s remunerations are determined in accordance with
their experiences, competence, qualifications, nature of duties, and
current market trend. Apart from basic salary, discretionary bonus and
other incentives are offered to employees of the Group to reward their
performance and contributions. The emoluments of the Directors are
determined having regard to the Company's corporate goals and the
individual performance of the Directors.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (“Share Option
Scheme") under which the Company may grant options to Directors
and eligible employees to subscribe for shares of the Company. The
Company has also adopted a share award scheme (“Share Award
Scheme”), under which shares of the Company will be awarded,
with the approval of the Board, to selected employees to recognise
their contribution and to give them incentives thereto in order to
retain them for the continual operation and development of the Group,
as well as to attract suitable personnel for the growth and further
development of the Group. Details of the Share Option Scheme and
the Share Award Scheme of the Company are set out in the section
headed “Equity-linked Agreements” in this directors’ report.
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Further discussion and analysis of the other aspects of the business
review as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance,
including but not limited to the key relationships of the Group with its
employees, customers and suppliers, and the Group's environmental
policies and performance, is set out in the ESG Report of the Company
on pages 41 to 65 and the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” set out on pages 6 to 20 of this annual report. Such
discussion forms part of this directors’ report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and as at the date of this directors’
report are as follows:

Executive directors
Mr. ZHANG Bin (Managing Director and appointed as acting

Chairman with effect from 1 December 2018)
Mr. WANG Tianlin

Mr. YUAN Shaoli (resigned with effect from 1 December 2018)

Independent non-executive directors

Professor CHANG Qing
Mr. LEE Man Chun, Tony
Professor HE Jia

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 21 to 23 of this
annual report.

Detailed information of the Directors standing for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company will be set out in the circular in
relation to the forthcoming AGM to be despatched to the shareholders.
No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has an
unexpired service contract which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

The Company has received from each of the existing independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to the Listing Rules and considers that each independent
non-executive Director is independent of the Company.

Three Directors, namely Mr. Zhang Bin, Mr. Wang Tianlin and Mr.
Yuan Shaoli have waived their salaries of approximately HK$800,000,
HK$496,000 and HK$949,000 respectively during the Year.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the Year and up to the date of this directors’ report, each of the
executive Directors named above holds directorship in certain of the
Company's subsidiaries. Other directors of the Company’s subsidiaries
incorporated in Hong Kong and British Virgin Islands include Li
Shufang, Zhang Yongging and Chan Siu Kay. Other directors of the
Company's subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC include Li Yun, Yan
Ning, Liu Peihong, Ni Xiangrong, Zhang Yongqing, Jiao Zhonglin, Zheng
Haichou, Li Rui, Zhang Chuanyi, Chu Guodong, Li Liangbin and Huang
Wenfeng.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the applicable laws, every Director shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he may sustain or incur in the execution of his duties
or otherwise in relation thereto pursuant to the Articles of Association
of the Company. Such provisions were in force during the course of
the Year and remained in force as of the date of this directors’ report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the Company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or an entity
connected with a Director had material interest (whether directly or
indirectly), was subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during
the Year.

COMPETING INTEREST

During the Year, none of the Directors and their respective close
associates had any business or interests in business which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the Directors and chief executive of the
Company who had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code are as
follows:
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Name of Director corporation interest shares shares share capital
REFELATHHEAHR HEERTERSF
EEER EEBER EaIM"E B% 15 58 B Kin&H Bk
Zhang Bin The Company Beneficial owner Ordinary 300,000 (Note) 0.0052%
RO ¥iN/NYS] ERBERA il (Bt7E)
Wang Tianlin The Company Beneficial owner Ordinary 400,000 (Note) 0.0069%
FR&R ZAN/NS| BERBEBEA il (Bt7)

Note: These are the shares awarded under the previous share award scheme
adopted by the Company which expired on 24 April 2017.

Apart from the foregoing, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had any interest or
short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to be
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, the following persons, other than a Director
or chief executive of the Company, had interests or short positions in
the issued shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Long Position

FEERRSARMREMKRMZER
ke

RIE-NF+_A=+—H0 RBARFER
o LB GPIFEIBCIERBFECTERRE
MR s AT AL (RRBEFHITHRAELR
SMRARREBRTROIEBRND T HEEEE

B
Approximate

percentage of
issued share

Number of capital of

Name of shareholder Nature of interest Class of shares shares the Company

#ih

EAFERT

KRR KM= B% {7 %8 51 Bir& B BFEES L

World Gain Holdings Beneficial owner (Note) Ordinary 3,022,154,119 52.03%
Limited (“"World Gain") Em# A A (f7:2) g

CCHK Controlled corporation (Note)  Ordinary 3,022,154,119 52.03%
BB RESER (A ) il

CCHG Controlled corporation (Note) ~ Ordinary 3,022,154,119 52.03%
B AR RESER (A ) T

Note: The entire issued share capital of World Gain is beneficially owned by CCHK,
the entire issued share capital of which is beneficially owned by CCHG. Both
CCHK and CCHG are deemed to be interested in all the shares held by World
Gain under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, no other person,
other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, had any
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into by the Company
during the Year or subsisting at the end of the Year are set out below:

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the AGM of the
Company held on 27 June 2013, the Company has adopted the Share
Option Scheme which shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years commencing on the date it was adopted and will end on 26
June 2023. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
incentives or rewards to participants thereunder for their contribution
to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-
caliber employees and attract human resources that are valuable to the
Group and any invested entity.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include (a) any
employee (whether full time or part time, including any executive
director but excluding any non-executive director) of, or any individual
for the time being seconded to work for, the Company, any subsidiary
or any entity in which any member of the Group holds any equity
interest (“Invested Entity”) or any employee or officer of the
controlling shareholder of the Company; (b) any non-executive director
(including independent non-executive directors) of the Company, any
subsidiary of the Company or any Invested Entity; (c) any suppliers of
goods or services to any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;
(d) any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity; (e) any person
or entity that provides research, development or other technological
support to the Group or any Invested Entity; (f) any shareholder of
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity or any holder of
any securities issued or proposed to be issued by any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity; (g) any adviser (professional or
otherwise) or consultant to the Group relating to any area of business
or business development of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity; and (h) any joint venture or business partner of the Group who
have contributed or may contribute to the development and growth of
the Group.

Ordinary shares of the Company may be allotted and issued upon
the exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme.
The total number of shares of the Company which may be allotted
and issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue as at the date on which the Share Option Scheme was adopted,
which was 484,073,477 shares, representing approximately 8.33% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this annual
report. The maximum number of shares which may be allotted and
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the issued
share capital of the Company (or the subsidiaries) from time to time.
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The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme of the Group (including both
exercised, cancelled or outstanding options) to each participant in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of
the Company for the time being. Any further grant of options in excess
of such limit in any 12-month period up to and including the date of
such further grant shall be subject to shareholders’ approval in general
meeting of the Company with such participant and his/her associates
abstaining from voting.

An offer of the grant of an option under the Share Option Scheme
may be accepted within 21 days from the date of grant together with
a remittance of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof.
An option may be exercised during such period as the Board may in its
absolute discretion determine, save that such period shall not be more
than 10 years from the date of grant.

Unless the Directors otherwise determine and state in the offer to a
grantee, a grantee is not required to hold an option for any minimum
period nor achieve any performance targets before any options granted
under the Share Option Scheme can be exercised.

The subscription price for the shares of the Company on the exercise
of the option shall be determined at the discretion of the Board
which shall not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Company's shares as stated in the Stock Exchange'’s daily quotations
sheet on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the
Company's shares as stated in the Stock Exchange'’s daily quotations
sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company's shares™® . Holding
period will be determined by the Directors upon granting.

Please refer to the circular of the Company dated 28 May 2013 for
more details of the Share Option Scheme.

During the Year, no option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
under the Share Option Scheme. There was no option outstanding at

the beginning and at the end of the Year.

Note: Pursuant to the Companies Ordinance, which came into operation on 3 March
2014, the shares of the Company have ceased to have nominal value.
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Share Award Scheme

The Company adopted the Share Award Scheme which became
effective on 1 July 2017 for a term of five years. The purpose of
the Share Award Scheme is to provide a means to (i) recognise the
contributions by certain selected employees and to give incentives to
them for the continual operation and development of the Group; and
(i) attract suitable personnel for the growth and further development
of the Group.

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, ordinary shares of the
Company will be awarded, with the approval of the Board, to selected
employees based on, inter alia, the employee’s work performance and
such other matters that the Board considers relevant. Shares awarded
under the Share Award Scheme will be offered to the selected
employees for no consideration but subject to certain conditions
(including vesting conditions) to be decided by the Board at the time
of grant of the shares awarded under the Share Award Scheme. A
selected employee shall be entitled to receive the awarded shares in
accordance with the vesting schedule upon the selected employee
having satisfied all vesting conditions specified by the Board at the
time of making the award. Vesting of the shares will be conditional on
the selected employee remaining an employee on the relevant vesting
date and his/her execution of the relevant documents to effect the
transfer from the trustee of the Share Award Scheme.

The Board shall not make any further award which will result in the
total number of ordinary shares awarded by the Board under the
Share Award Scheme representing in excess of 1% of the issued
shares of the Company as at 1 July 2017 (being 58,087,347 ordinary
shares, representing approximately 1% of the issued shares of
the Company as at the date of this annual report) unless the Board
otherwise decides. Unless terminated earlier or extended by the Board
in accordance with the Share Award Scheme rules, the Share Award
Scheme operates for five years commencing on 1 July 2017

No shares were awarded by the Company under the Share Award
Scheme during the Year.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 30 June 2017
for more details of the Share Award Scheme.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the Year was the Company,
or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Continuing Connected Transactions

On 29 December 2017 the Company and #HBB K AERE T A
A) (unofficial English translation being China Chengtong Finance
Corporation Ltd.) (“Chengtong Finance”) entered into a financial
services agreement (“Financial Services Agreement”), pursuant
to which Chengtong Finance agreed to provide the Group with a
range of financial services (including deposit services, loan services
and other financial services) for a term from 1 January 2018 to 31
December 2020.

According to the terms of the Financial Services Agreement, the
daily balance of the Group’s deposits (including any interest accrued
therefrom) with Chengtong Finance for each of the three years ending
31 December 2018, 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020 shall
not exceed an amount equivalent to RMB116 million. Such maximum
daily balance of deposits had not been exceeded during the Year.

The interest rates payable by Chengtong Finance to the Group for
any deposits made with Chengtong Finance shall (i) be 20%-50%
higher than the deposit interest rate prescribed by The People’'s Bank
of China for deposits with the same term and of the same type; (ii)
not be lower than the interest rates offered to the Group by the major
commercial banks in the PRC for deposits with the same term and of
the same type; and (iii) not be lower than the interest rates offered
by Chengtong Finance to any third party for deposits with the same
term and of the same type. Further details of the Financial Services
Agreement are set out in the Company's announcement dated 29
December 2017

As Chengtong Finance is a subsidiary of CCHG, which is the ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Company, Chengtong Finance is
therefore a connected person of the Company within the meaning
of the Listing Rules and the transactions contemplated under the
Financial Services Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As at 31 December 2018, the deposits placed with Chengtong

Finance amounted to approximately RMB98,542,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$112,338,000).
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The Company has established certain internal control procedures to
ensure that the transactions with Chengtong Finance were conducted
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Financial Services
Agreement. For example, before entering into individual transaction for
the deposit services with Chengtong Finance, the finance department
of the Group will compare the interest rate offered by Chengtong
Finance to the Group with the corresponding deposit benchmark
interest rates prescribed by The People’s Bank of China and the
interest rates offered by leading independent commercial banks in
the PRC. The Company has followed the above policies and guidelines
when determining whether to enter into individual transaction for the
deposit services with Chengtong Finance during the Year.

The Group's risk management department has conducted reviews
on the above continuing connected transactions during the Year and
issued an internal control review report in relation to the Group's
continuing connected transactions. All independent non-executive
Directors have also reviewed the internal control review report of the
risk management department and confirmed that the above continuing
connected transactions have been entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them, and
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders as a whole.

The Directors also confirm that the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The Company’s auditor, BDO Limited, was engaged to report on
the Group's continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. BDO Limited has issued an unqualified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
abovementioned continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules and confirmed that:

(@) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the above continuing connected transactions have not been
approved by the Board;

(b)  nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreement governing
such transactions;
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(c)

with respect to the aggregate amount of the above disclosed
continuing connected transactions, nothing has come to
their attention that causes them to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transactions have exceeded the annual cap
as set by the Company.

A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

Connected Transactions

(1)

On 29 March 2016, the Company entered into a guarantee
agreement (“Guarantee Agreement”) with Chengtong Coal,
pursuant to which the Company agreed to procure its wholly-
owned subsidiary, Chengtong Development Trading, to issue
a guarantee letter in favour of EFEALIE B AR SR ARZER
(the Supreme People's Court of Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous
Region) (“Guangxi Court”) and use certain office premises
in Beijing which are owned by Chengtong Development Trading
with an aggregate gross area of 1,275.06 square metres as a
guarantee ("Guarantee”) to the extent of RMB53,539,767
("Guaranteed Amount”) for a period of three years in support
of a property preservation order issued by the Guangxi Court
against certain respondents in a legal proceeding brought by
Chengtong Coal in the Guangxi Court. An annual arrangement
fee of 1% over the Guaranteed Amount is payable by Chengtong
Coal to the Company during the term of the Guarantee.

On the same day, Chengtong Development Trading also entered
into a deed of counterindemnity (“Indemnity Deed”) with
CCHK, pursuant to which CCHK agreed to, among other matters,
indemnify Chengtong Development Trading for its liabilities and
loss which may arise from the Guarantee.

Chengtong Coal is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of CCHG,
the ultimate holding company of the Company. CCHK is an
indirect holding company of the Company and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CCHG. As each of Chengtong Coal and CCHK is
a connected person of the Company, the entering into of the
Guarantee Agreement and the Indemnity Deed by the Company
and Chengtong Development Trading respectively constitutes
a connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. Further details of the Guarantee Agreement
and the Indemnity Deed are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 29 March 2016.
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The Directors confirm that the related party transactions during the
Year as disclosed in notes 39(a) and 39(d) to the financial statements
fall under the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing
connected transaction” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company has, where
applicable, complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Directors confirm that the related party transactions during the
Year as disclosed in notes 39(b) and 39(c) to the financial statements
do not fall under the definition of “connected transaction” or
“continuing connected transaction” (as the case may be) in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, (i) no contract of significance was entered
into by, and/or subsisted between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries with the controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries
during the Year; and (i) no contract of significance in relation to
provision of services by the controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries to the Group was entered into and/or subsisted during the
Year.

LOAN AGREEMENT WITH COVENANTS
RELATING TO SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OF
THE CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

On 23 March 2017 the Company, as borrower, entered into a facility
agreement (“Facility Agreement”) with a licensed bank in Hong
Kong in respect of a revolving loan facility granted to the Company up
to a principal amount of HK$200 million (“Commitment”). Save as
otherwise provided in the Facility Agreement, all outstanding principal
of the loan granted thereunder and the interest accrued thereon would
become due and payable on the date falling three years from the date
of the Facility Agreement. Pursuant to the Facility Agreement, the
Company has undertaken that it shall, amongst other matters, ensure
that there shall be no concentrative or dilutive corporate event or
circumstance (including subdivision, consolidation or re-classification
of the Company’'s shares, bonus or rights issue but excluding any
cash dividends) which will directly or indirectly result in CCHG, which
is the controlling shareholder of the Company, (a) holding less than
40% of the Company's shares after such event, or (b) ceasing to be
the single largest shareholder of the Company or ceasing to have the
management control on the Company (“Control Event”). Upon the
occurrence of a Control Event or if, at any time, there exist an event
or circumstance that can result or has already resulted in a Control
Event, the bank may immediately cancel the Commitment, and all
loans together with accrued interest and all other amounts accrued
under the Facility Agreement and other related finance documents
may become immediately due and payable by the Company.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

At the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report,
based on information that was publicly available to the Company and
to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that
the Company had maintained sufficient public float as required under
the Listing Rules.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the Group’s results and its assets and liabilities for the

Year and the past four financial years is set out on pages 227 to 228 of
this annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the Year
have been audited by BDO Limited.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the Company
to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

Zhang Bin
Acting Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 February 2019
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Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

IBDO

: +852 2218 8288

BEE
{5H : +852 2815 2239

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA CHENGTONG DEVELOPMENT
GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Chengtong Development Group Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages 90 to 224,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Valuation of investment properties

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies on note 4.4.

Management estimated the fair value of the Group's investment
properties to be HK$101,528,000 as at 31 December 2018 with a fair
value gain for the year ended 31 December 2018 of HK$3,535,000
recorded in the consolidated income statement. Independent external
valuations were obtained in order to support management’s estimates.

Valuations of the Group's investment properties are based on
income approach and dependent on certain key assumptions that
require significant management judgement, including reversionary
yield potential of the property units, expected vacancy rates and the
discount rates used. Valuation techniques have been substantially the
same as 31 December 2017.

Our response

Our procedures in relation to management’s valuation of investment
properties included:

o evaluation of the independent external valuer's competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

° assessing the methodologies used and the appropriateness of
the key assumptions based on our knowledge of the property
industry; and

° checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and relevance of the
input data used and determination of fair value.

We assessed the key assumptions against the available evidence.
The fair market rents were assessed by recent renewals of rental
agreement, expected vacancy rate and reversionary yield potential of
the property units.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the Company's
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FORTHE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors of the Company in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FORTHE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report

18 17 % 26 ¥ &5

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,

we exercise

professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lui Chi Kin

Practising Certificate Number: P06162

Hong Kong, 25 February 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 | HE-Z—\AF+=-A=+—HILEE

Consolidated Income Statement

& O\ EWa
e A

2018 2017
—E—)\F —F—
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 BETIT BT T
Turnover - 11 6 1,020,892 1,353,119
Cost of sales SHE KA (911,992) (1,227.387)
Gross profit X 108,900 125,732
Other income E Al A 7 58,579 54,833
Selling expenses HEZE R (14,057) (14,591)
Administrative expenses THEHR (92,337) (99,420)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—MMHBARIZKZE 37 110,799 =
Fair value gain on investment REMEZ AFERT
properties 17 3,535 100
Fair value loss on held-for-trading HIEEERHRFZ
securities NEEEE - (106)
Finance costs =Y #N 8 (6,505) (12,948)
Profit before income tax BxFrS Mgl 168,914 53,600
Income tax expense FriS#iF X 9 (57,499) (30,049)
Profit for the year FERRF 10 111,415 23,551
Profit/(loss) for the year BERER
attributable to: (B1R) :
Owners of the Company RRABER A 113,440 23,363
Non-controlling interests IR E R (2,025) 188
111,415 23,551
Earnings per share BERA 13
- Basic — B HK1.96 centsi#&(il HKO0.40 cent/& 1l
- Diluted —#E HK1.96 centsi#&{ll HKO0.40 cent/& 1l
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 | BZ=—Z—N\F+-A=+—HLEE

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

ROz BWm

2018 2017
— N\ —E—+F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BY¥TIT B FoT
Profit for the year FEREF 111,415 23,551
Other comprehensive income Hti2mka
Items that will not be reclassified HEe B aEfoEs
subsequently to profit or loss: b= Ega| E
Net change in fair value of equity EAFEE E‘l‘)\ﬁﬁﬂ
investments at fair value through %Eqﬂl E’WE £ 12 B HY
other comprehensive income NEEFEE) (66,040) =
ltems that may be reclassified ﬁ?é—fﬁui%? HE
subsequently to profit or loss: Bm2HEA :
Exchange differences arising on MEZ25EEEER
translation to presentation ME X =5
currency (141,787) 179,072
Exchanges differences reclassified B E— R B AR
to profit or loss on disposal EOoBEERN
of a subsidiary fEH =% 486 =
Transfer to profit or loss upon disposal ﬁﬁhiﬁz@?ﬁ” A
of debt investments measured H2EKkaEsr 20
at fair value through other BEREREREER
comprehensive income 1,746 -
Net change in fair value of ERAFEZETA
debt investments measured at Eﬁﬂiﬁ%?&?ﬁiﬁ’]
fair value through other BEEEZ AT EFEE
comprehensive income 7,421 -
Net change in fair value of available- AHHESREEY
for-sale financial assets NEEFEY - (41,470)
Transfer to profit or loss upon HEAHLESRHEER
disposal of available-for-sale EEiEs
financial assets - 483
Total comprehensive income FRAZAEAKELE
for the year (86,759) 161,636
Total comprehensive income EA2EE S8 :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company PN/ ﬂ%ﬁ/\ (77,969) 151,541
Non-controlling interests e AR HE A (8,790) 10,095
(86,759) 161,636
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As At 31 December 2018 | R=Z—N\E+=-B=+—8H

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

fn O M IS IR R R

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+4F
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
B & E¥TFIT BT T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAR
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment YE - BB MR G 15 187,803 202,715
Prepaid land lease payments TEAT LR & 3K 16 38,592 196,781
Investment properties -/ ES 17 101,528 63,816
Deposits paid BEftiEe 19 - 4,966
Loans receivable JE W E K 24 245,700 383,902
Other financial assets EtemEE 26 4,984 =
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHESHEE 26 - 5,246
578,607 857426
Current assets mEBEE
Properties held for sale FEHENE 20 202,005 251,688
Properties under development ERPYE 20 152,233 109,824
Properties held for development FEERYZE 21 281,386 296,196
Inventories T8 22 15,970 4,281
Trade and other receivables B R E b EWFKIE 23 186,706 129,040
Loans receivable JE W E K 24 421,236 358,359
Amount due from a non-controlling &Y — & M B A 7] — & 3E 4%
shareholder of a subsidiary % A% 5 3R IE 25 - 18,000
Prepaid land lease payments T A E A R 16 2,011 5,665
Other financial assets HEihSmEE 26 840,612 =
Available-for-sale financial assets AP ESHEE 26 - 700,231
Held-fortrading securities FIEEEXE S 26 - 1,173
Taxation recoverable A] U B F5 18 2,119 3,004
Pledged bank deposits BEBRITER 28 3,815 4,006
Deposits in other financial institution M H b & B ##E 17 3 27 112,338 86,200
Bank balances and cash RITHEFERES 28 791,265 749,708
3,011,696 2,717.375
Current liabilities nBAR
Trade and other payables B 5 I H i fE 5 FUIR 29 120,726 156,869
Contract liabilities SHEE 30 207,096 =
Deposits received from sale of HEMEZERIEZS
properties - 128,921
Taxation payable JE < %118 38,843 5,929
Bank borrowings RITIEE 31 274,100 214,400
Unsecured other loan ERAREMER 32 600 600
641,365 506,719
Net current assets mEEERE 2,370,331 2,210,656
Total assets less current HEERRDAR
liabilities 2,948,938 3,068,082

92 2018 Annual Report FERE



As At 31 December 2018 | R=Z2—N\E+=-B=+—H

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

O ISR IR R

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
Notes HK$'000 HK$ 000
B 7 BY¥TIT B FoT
Non-current liabilities JERE &R
Deferred tax liabilities FEFHIBEE 33 51,794 81,635
51,794 81,635
Net assets EERE 2,897,144 2,986,447
EQUITY Ega
Equity attributable to owners #H2FHEABEZES
of the Company
Share capital & 7 34 2,185,876 2,185,876
Reserves G 575,829 652,738
2,761,705 2,838,614
Non-controlling interests JEERES 135,439 147833
Total equity HiEa 2,897,144 2,986,447

The consolidated financial statements on pages 90 to 224 were H90BHE224BMNGAMERREN - —NF
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on —A-+HBAMESSENRRERET WHA

25 February 2019 and are signed on its behalf by: TEERREFTSHFE:
Zhang Bin Wang Tianlin
iR EXE
Director Director
EF -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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For the Year Ended 31 December 2018 | B Z=-Z—\&+-A=+—HALEFE

Consoliduted Statement of Cash Flows

||-7.|' () Iﬁ ﬁ /L g %‘%

2018 2017
—I\E§ T—+4F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BETIT BT T
Cash flows from operating activities EETHEEZHERE
Profit before income tax B P15 B Bl & 168,914 53,600
Adjustments for: BLLATIER A% :
Interest income A BA (46,034) (50,334)
Interest income from entrusted ERZEE R ZF BWA
loan receivables - (537)
Interest expense FMEMAX 6,505 12,948
Depreciation of property, ME BEREEIITE
plant and equipment 14,735 14,371
Amortisation of prepaid land TEA & 40 78 & R 5
lease payments 5,471 5,429
Fair value gain on investment properties KEWMHE 2 AFEKE (3,535) (100)
Fair value gain on other financial Eﬂ')\ﬁﬁ?’iﬁ'\]ﬁ@%@ﬁéz
assets measured at profit or loss NEERE (4,005) =
Fair value loss on held-for-trading BIEEEZ A2 AT EEE
securities - 106
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEWE WER&EEE
plant and equipment /() 275 (155)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FB ARz ks (110,799) =
Loss on disposal of debt investments tﬁg?ﬁ’/}¥1§§ A
measured at fair value through HE2EKEFTELZ
other comprehensive income BBIRE 2 BB 1,746 =
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale HEMNHLESHEE BB
financial assets - 483
Written off of property, Y2 B R
plant and equipment 303 380
Reversal of other payables & [8] H {th & {5 308 (326) (1,629)
Impairment loss on financial assets TREERBEREE 55 =
Written off of prepayments and TEAS 308 R B b B W R IB AR 8E
other receivable - 4,464
Operating profit before working R EESEHMEZEN
capital changes 33,305 39,026
(Increase)/decrease in properties BRERAPWE GEM) OB
under development (46,872) 5,047
Decrease in properties held for sale FEEHE M ER D 42,261 77,886
(Increase)/decrease in inventories HFE Ogm md (11,689) 2,208
Increase in trade and other receivables 85 RH A R IR L 0 (64,361) (25,697)
Decrease/(increase) in loans receivable FEWE TR A, () 55,232 (30,370)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 K E th FE 1 FRIEIE AN 48,954 15,770
Increase in contract liabilities AR B &M 22,308 =
Increase in deposits received from HEYE 2 B BIRS
sale of properties - 48,676
Cash generated from operations BEEBEEZR S 79,138 132,546
PRC enterprise income tax paid EXftzRBEERSH (25,603) (23,507)
PRC land appreciation tax paid Bz P B E R (2,111) (3,783)
Net cash generated from BETHEEZHEBH
operating activities 51,424 105,256
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

.ﬂ:liﬁﬁ)ﬁ%%

2018 2017
AL —F e
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BETIT BT T
Cash flows from investing activities RETHEEZHERE
Interest received 2 UHE 45,838 52,385
Interest received from entrusted EHW’H&? SEENAE
loan receivables - 545
Disposal of a subsidiary, HE—FHINB AR
net of cash disposed of HMBREHE2H® 231,783 =
Purchase of available-for-sale BEAHIESREE
financial assets - (509,849)
Purchase of other financial assets BEEMEREE (715,686) =
Settlement of available-for-sale HEEAHEESRHEE
financial assets - 296,924
Settlement of other financial assets EEHEMERMEE 480,959 =
Settlement of short-term investments HERHKE - 13,800
Decrease in entrusted loan receivables Fﬁﬂﬁl%ﬁg > - 8,050
Settlement of amount due from a BEREK—ENB AR —RIEE
non-controlling shareholder of %Hﬁ%%’uﬁ
a subsidiary 18,196 -
Repayment from a related party RE—BBES ZERK - 37,950
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEEY % - BE K& E (30,857) (2,845)
Purchase of investment property BEREME (39,162) (544)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE MEREKER
plant and equipment Fri3 8 250 252
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, g BE ) % P%&?&ﬁiﬁﬂ’\]
plant and equipment biraca - (4,759)
Decrease in structured bank deposits HEIBERITE IR D - -
Decrease in pledged bank deposits R RITETOR D (134) (2,155)
Decrease/(increase) in short-term time R=18A thﬁﬁ—ilﬁqiu B Y
deposits with maturity beyond three RETEBRERORD (1B m)
months but within one year 12,000 (12,000)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BREEZHEE (FA)Z
investing activities R&BE 3,187 (122,246)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

moOREMNER

2018 2017
—N\§E T—+4F
HK$’'000 HK$ 000
BT BT T
Cash flows from financing activities B EHEEZHERE
Interest paid EAHE (9,039) (16,925)
New bank loans raised MEBEZRITER 77,350 200,000
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (14,280) (65,550)
Repayment of corporate bonds EEARES - (678,000)
Dividend paid to non-controlling interests AT SRR R 2 R (3,604) =
Net cash generated from/(used in) MEFHEE (FA)Z
financing activities Reasd 50,427 (560,475)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HR&RFA&EFE MBI (KD)
cash equivalents BE 105,038 (577,465)
Cash and cash equivalents REMZHERALERY
at beginning of year 823,908 1,358,089
Effect of foreign exchange SFEEFSTHEE
rate changes (25,343) 43,284
Cash and cash equivalents RERZEERALERY
at end of year 903,603 823,908
Analysis of cash and cash BeRBaFEB®BMH:
equivalents:
Bank balances and cash as presented ?E\ﬁﬁﬁkﬁkﬁﬁzﬂz
in the consolidated statement of RITHEFRE®
financial position 791,265 749,708
Deposits in other financial institution O H Ath <2 Bl 4 17 3K 112,338 86,200
Less: short-term time deposits with BB EREBE=EA
maturity beyond three months but BR—FAZEH
within one year (note 28(a)(iii)) E B 7E R (B 5128 a) i) ) - (12,000)
Cash and cash equivalents REXZHEERESEED
at end of year 903,603 823,908
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Notes to the Financial Statements

GENERAL

China Chengtong Development Group Limited (the
“Company”) is a limited company incorporated in Hong Kong.
The address of its registered office and its principal place of
business is Suite 6406, 64/F, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong. The Company is an investment holding
company. The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively known
as the "Group”) are principally engaged in investment holdings,
property development, property investment, finance leasing, bulk
commodity trading and hotel and marine travelling services.

The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
As at 31 December 2018, the Company's immediate holding
company is World Gain Holdings Limited, which is incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands and the directors of the Company
consider the Group's ultimate holding company to be China
Chengtong Holdings Group Limited (“CCHG"), a company
incorporated in the PRC.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars (“HK$") and the functional currency of the
Company is Renminbi (“RMB"). The directors consider that HK$
is the appropriate presentation currency since the Company is
incorporated in Hong Kong with its shares listed on the Stock
Exchange.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BnEEMERSEN([FE

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) MEEREER])
2.1 Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs 21 BRAHMITREEBIZEEUERE
8

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the following new standards, amendments and
interpretations (“the new HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA"), which are relevant to and effective for
the Group's financial statements for the annual period
beginning on 1 January 2018:

Amendments to HKFRS 1,
First-time adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 28,
Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Clarifications

to HKFRS 15)

Amendments to HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

Other than as noted below, the adoption of the new
HKFRSs has no material impact on the Group's financial
statements.

HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”)

The adoption of HKFRS 9 resulted in changes in accounting
policies and adjustments to the amount recognised in
the financial statements. As permitted by the transitional
provisions of HKFRS 9, the Group elected not to restate
comparative figures. Any adjustments to the carrying
amounts of financial assets and liabilities at the date of
transition were recognised in the opening accumulated
profits and reserves of the current year.

2018 Annual Report FERE

RAFE AEBERERRAEES
FEiAE ((EEERMAE|)RMG
Z NHFRRT A AERT K2 2 ([#h
EBMBHREEN ) ZFEH
BHAEER _Z-N\F—A—BH
M FREBZ BB HRERABLE
R

EBYBRE
HR| =T —PF
E-T—RF

BRI RELE
AIZ15% 2 &
7] BRI

A2 FE e %ﬁ%%ﬁ%
Al
EBMBRE ESgr£RE
EH—F—FE 285 2B
E-E—RE iR /NCTPN
BEZ FEE z%a%%&
BB HRE LA RS A7 & E 5 1
AR ZE25% 2 KRS ZH
] EhE
EBMBRE £RIA
ZE R 958
EBYBRE REHEEFAEL
AEBI| 551555 Z Wz
EBMBRE REHEREFE
HEBIZE155E 2 Bz Wz (F
&3] I RS
BI| 55 1558 H) &
)
BB EL HELEYE
FA0SR 21T

78 (BRMBER INERH RIAN
sRELZBRE) [KE
— B REE225R

BT SRS - AT BB T
525 22 ) 1 2K S 9 7 9 0 9
EARE-

BEMBHRSEREIR-2HMTR
([ERBHMBHEERFEIH])

RABAVBHREENFOWHSIHE
ST IR R 3R 8 B % 00 B 7% SR 5K P T
REBEMAHE - ANTEHBRS
ERFOHRHBRIGXABF A%
BEEISEIILBRHF - NBEA
HEMHSREENABREER
HZ R aRAFE 2 BNREE
) R fot A PO BB
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.1 Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (Continued)

The changes in the accounting policies and the effects of
the resulting changes are summarised below:

(1)

Classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities

HKFRS 9 categorises financial assets into three
principal classification categories: measured
at amortised cost, at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) and at fair value
through profit or loss (FVPL). These supersede
Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS") 39's
categories of held-to-maturity investments, loans and
receivables, available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets measured at FVPL. The classification
of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is based on
the business model under which the financial
asset is managed and its contractual cash flow
characteristics.

At initial recognition, for financial assets not at FVPL,
the Group measures them at their fair value plus
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets. For financial assets
measured at FVPL, transaction costs are expensed in
profit or loss.

Non-equity investments held by the Group are
classified into one of the following measurement
categories:

(1) At amortised cost only if both the following
conditions are met:

- it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

- the collection of contractual cash flows
which represent solely payments of
principal and interest.

Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest method.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(Continued)

2.1 Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(i) Classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities (Continued)

(2)

FVOCI (recycling), if the contractual cash flows
of the investment comprise solely payments
of principal and interest and the investment is
held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both the collection of contractual
cash flows and sale.

Changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income, except for the
recognition in profit or loss of expected credit
losses, interest income (calculated using the
effective interest method) and foreign exchange
gains and losses. When the investment is
derecognised, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from equity
to profit or loss.

FVPL, if the investment does not meet the
criteria for being measured at amortised cost or
FVOCI (recycling).

Changes in the fair value of the investment,
including interest income, are recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.1 Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(1)

Classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities (Continued)

Equity investment is classified as FVPL unless the
equity investment is not held for trading purposes
and on initial recognition of the investment the Group
makes an election to designate the investment at
FVOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent changes
in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Such elections are made on an instrument-
by-instrument basis, but may only be made if the
investment meets the definition of equity from the
issuer’'s perspective. Where such an election is made,
the amount accumulated in other comprehensive
income remains in the financial assets at FVOCI
reserve (non-recycling) until the investment is
disposed of. At the time of disposal, the amount
accumulated in the financial assets at FVOCI reserve
(non-recycling) is transferred to accumulated profits.
It is not recycled through profit or loss. Dividends
from an equity investment, irrespective of whether
classified as at FVPL or FVOCI (non-recycling), are
recognised in profit or loss.

There is no change in the classification and
measurement of the Group's financial liabilities and
the financial liabilities continue to be measured at
amortised cost at the date of transition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 | HE-Z—\AF+=-A=+—HILEE

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(Continued)

2.1 Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(i) Classification and measurement of financial assets

and financial liabilities (Continued)

The following tables summarised the impact of
transition to HKFRS 9 on the opening balances of
accumulated profits and reserves as of 1 January

2. RMERMBBEEN([FE

MEBEREEN]) (F)

2.1 BRHTRESTZEEMERS
B8 ()
FEMBHELRAEH ()

) ZHEERELHEENSER
iE (&)

TERBMERERBHBRS
EAFIREH T —N\F— A
— B RV HIE) R A8 7 5 o K%

2018; Bewe:
Notes HK$'000
B 5 JEMF T
Accumulated profits RArEF
Accumulated profits as R—E—tF+=-A=+—H
at 31 December 2017 8 2 51 A 650,060
Transfer from available-for-sale BIEATFEFAERZ
financial assets revaluation reserve SREEAAHEE SR
relating to financial assets now BEEHRHEEL
measured at FVPL 2.1(i)(d) 192
Remeasurement of financial assets EFFTEREAFERTA
now measured at FVPL Bl o@EE 2.1(i)(e) 1,310
Recognition of additional expected AT IE B R EE SN A H
credit losses on: EEFBE:
— trade and other receivables — B 5 K HE MK FIE 2.1(ii) (17)
— loans receivable — W E K 2.1(i) (233)
Restated accumulated profits as RZZE—-N\F—H—-BNE
at 1 January 2018 25t A 651,312
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BnEEMERSEN([FE

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") MEBREEN]) (&)
(Continued)
2.1 Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued) 21 BAHITREEIZCEEUBRSE
#R (&)
HKFRS 9 (Continued) FEHEERESEFH (1B)
(i)  Classification and measurement of financial assets (i) Z=HEERLEHEENTER
and financial liabilities (Continued) iz (8)
Notes HK$'000
B 5 JBEMEF T

Available-for-sale financial assets T HE M S ES A E M

revaluation reserve

Reserve as at 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+=A=+—8
B 1% 1 (34,585)
Transfer to financial assets AR AFEEB T AEM 2.1()
at FVOCI reserve FTHEN T ERMEERE (a)&(b) 34,777
Transfer to accumulated profits for RIZAFEFAERZ
financial assets now measured SEMEEE AR E A
at FVPL 2.1(i)(d) (192)

Restated reserve as at 1 January 2018 W—-_Z— ) \F—H—H
K E 5 =

Financial assets at FVOCI reserve HZ2FEEE G A KM

EHBRSHERMEERRG
Reserve as at 31 December 2017 R—ZE—+&+-_HA=+—H
EofEAT -
Transfer from available-for-sale financial BRIt HE S M EES 2.1()
assets revaluation reserve R (a)&(b) (34,777)

Restated reserve as at 1 January 2018 R-_Z—\F—H—H

W EIFE (34,777)
The following table shows the original classification TREVNAEESHCREERBEES
for each class of the Group’s financial assets under ST R FE395 M R L 5 5 - LA RFLRIR
HKAS 39 and reconciles the carrying amounts of BB ERERAENZTEREE
those financial assets measured in accordance with BRE E AR IR B A I 15 S E R E 9% AT
HKAS 39 to those measured in accordance with ENSREERMEETHER

HKFRS 9.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BnEEMERSEN([FE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”) MERESERN]) (B)
(Continued)

2.1 Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued) 21 BRAHITREEIIZEEUBRSE
A (&)
HKFRS 9 (Continued) FEBHEEESEFH (1B)
(i) Classification and measurement of financial assets (i) Z=HEERLEHEENTER
and financial liabilities (Continued) iz (E)

HKAS 39 HKFRS 9

carrying carrying

amount at amount at

31 December Reclassifi- Remeasure- 1 January

2017 cation ment 2018

R-E—t% AZE-\E

+ZB=+-H —A—H

FReHER FEMERE

B39 TR ERERT

REE ENRE ENHE MIREE

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

i ERTT ERTT ERTT ERTT

Financial assets at amortised BRERRFARNEREE

cost
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E th W IE 2.1(ii) 129,040 - (17) 129,023
Loans receivable ERER 2.1ii 742,261 - (233) 742,028
Amount due from a non-controlling B W — P B A 1A
shareholder of a subsidiary — &I BRI R 18,000 - - 18,000
Pledged bank deposits BEEBEATR 4,006 - - 4,006
Deposits in other financial institution ~ R EM £ BEERH 86,200 - - 86,200
Bank balances and cash BITEGTRES 749,708 - - 749,708
1,729,215 - (250) 1,728,965
Financial assets measured BATEEHHALM
at FVOCI (non-recycling) 2EREZEMEE
(RAIBAES)
Other financial assets Hitn &R
- Equity investments —EnkE 2.1(i)(a) - 175,426 - 175,426
Financial assets measured BATFEEHHARM
at FVOCI (recycling) 2EhBCEMEE
(TEARE)
Other financial assets HiemEE
- Debt investments -EBRE 2.1()(b) - 167,180 - 167180
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2. RMERMBEBEEN([FE
MBREEN]) (8)

2.1 Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued) 21 BMFITRECITIZCEEBMERS

#A (&)
HKFRS 9 (Continued) TEHBEBREEREIH (F)
(i) Classification and measurement of financial assets () THREERTHEENSIER
and financial liabilities (Continued) itE (8)
HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
carrying carrying
amount at amount at
31December  Reclassifi- Remeasure- 1 January
2017 cation ment 2018
RZZ—-t§ RZE—)\§
+=B=+-H —-A—AH
FEEHER FEMERE
E395 T ERAFEIRET
BEE ENNE EfitE MR E
NO@S HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
Financial assets measured BROTEHABRZ
at FVPL EREE
Other financial assets HitemEE
- Shares listed in Hong Kong -REBLTRARG  2.10) (0 = 1,173 = 1,173
- Fund investments —HeRE 2.1() (d) - 41,27 - 41,271
- Unlisted investments -k EmRE 2.1(i) (e) = 321,600 1,310 322,910
- 364,044 1,310 365,354
Financial assets designated as B % & & it £ 0 $39%
at FVPL under HKAS 39 KERBRATERHA
REZeMEE
Held for trading securities FIEEEES 1,173 (1,173) = =
Financial assets classified as REEEGHENER
available-for-sale under PEHITHHE
HKAS 39 SMEE 705,477 (705,477) - -
Notes: it -

AREBEREMABEDEA
AL ESHEEZ SR
BHEBRZAFEESNEM
2EK=E2Y) BZERED
NREENFE Bt %E
CRHEERRAREESS
175.426,0007T & A] #t i & &
MEEEFTHDERKATE
BB AHEMEAREZ S
BMEE-RN=_FT—/\F—H—
B 2 AFEEBBHBE
9,167,0007T F A] fit H & & &t
BEMERBEENOERER
FEZHT A MDA
ZEBMEERKEG (TAEAR

) e

The Group elected to present in other comprehensive
income the subsequent changes in fair value of all its
equity investments previously classified as available-for
sale financial assets because these investments are held
for strategic purposes. As a result, the financial assets
were reclassified from available-for-sale financial assets
with original carrying amount of HK$175,426,000 to
financial assets measured at FVOCI. Cumulative fair value
loss of approximately HK$9,167.000 was reclassified from
the available-for-sale financial assets revaluation reserve to
the financial assets at FVOCI reserve (non-recycling) on 1
January 2018.

(a)

China Chengtong Development Group Limited FEHEREREBRER LT

107



108

For the year ended 31 December 2018 | HE-Z—\AF+=-A=+—HILEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

87} 5 ¥ 2% Bfd 5%

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(Continued)

2.1 Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(1)

Classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

Under HKAS 39, listed debt investments with fair value
of HK$167,180,000 were classified as available-for-sale
financial assets. They are reclassified to financial assets
measured at FVOCI under HKFRS 9 as these financial
assets are held within a business model whose objective
is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling the listed debt investments in open market, and
the contractual terms give rise to cash flows in specific
dates that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding. Cumulative fair value loss of
approximately HK$25,610,000 was reclassified from the
available-for-sale financial assets revaluation reserve to
financial assets at FVOCI reserve (recycling) on 1 January
2018.

The Group reclassified the financial assets designated as
at FVPL to financial assets measured at FVPL and there is
no change in their measurement on 1 January 2018.

Unlisted fund investments classified as available-for-
sale financial assets of HK$41,271,000 measured at fair
value at 31 December 2017 These investments were
not held of solely for payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding. Accordingly, these
unlisted fund investments were measured at FVPL upon
the application of HKFRS 9. Available-for-sale financial
assets revaluation reserve related to these investments of
HK$192,000 were transferred to accumulated profits on 1
January 2018.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.1 Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(1)

(i)

Classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(e) Unlisted investments of HK$321,600,000 were classified
as available-for-sale financial assets and stated at cost
at 31 December 2017. These investments were not
held solely for payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding. Accordingly, these
unlisted investments were measured at FVPL upon the
application of HKFRS 9 and additional fair value gain of
HK$1,310,000 was recognised in accumulated profits
upon remeasurement on 1 January 2018.

Impairment

The impairment methodology of financial assets
has been changed from the incurred loss model
under HKAS 39 to the expected credit loss model
under HKFRS 9. Under the new expected credit loss
approach, it is no longer necessary for a loss event
to occur before an impairment loss is recognised.
Impairment is made on the expected credit losses
("ECL"), which are the present value of the cash
shortfalls over the expected life of the financial
assets. The Group assesses on a forward looking
basis the ECL associated with its financial assets.
The impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

The Group applies the new ECL model to the
following items:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost;
and

- debt investments measured at FVOCI
(recycling).
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.1 Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (Continued)

(i)

Impairment (Continued)

Under HKFRS 9, the loss allowance is measured on
either of the following bases: (1) 12 months ECL:
these are the ECL that result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the reporting date;
and (2) lifetime ECL: these are ECL that result from
all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9 and has
calculated ECL based on lifetime ECL.

For other financial assets measured at amortised cost
and debt investments measured at FVOCI (recycling),
the ECL are based on the 12 months ECL. The 12
months ECL is the portion of the lifetime ECL that
results from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.1 Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (Continued)
(i) Impairment (Continued)

The following table reconciles the prior period’s
closing impairment allowance measured in
accordance with the HKAS 39 incurred loss model
to the new impairment allowance measured in
accordance with the HKFRS 9 ECL model at 1
January 2018:
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TREJEBTHEAREETES
FHEERIFE39RE E L BIBER
SAEMHIRBERE 2R
T N\F—-A—BREEFEY
B S ERNFRRMERE
BEAFRER B HR:

HK$'000
JBEMEF T
Loss allowance as at 31 December IRIEFHESHERFEI9HER
2017 under HKAS 39 —ZE2—tE+=-HA=+—H®
5 15 % iR -
Additional expected credit loss recognised W THBERZ=-Z—N\F—HA—H
at 1 January 2018 on: ERABEINBHEEEE:
Trade and other receivables B 5 RE M EWFKIE 17
Loans receivable FE W E K 233
Loss allowance as at 1 January BEFEMBEHREERFMR
2018 under HKFRS 9 R-E—N\E—BF—HOEBERER 250
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(Continued)

2.1 Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (“"HKFRS 15”)

HKFRS 15 supersedes HKAS 11 Construction Contracts,
HKAS 18 Revenue and related interpretations. HKFRS 15
has established a five-steps model to account for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15,
revenue is recognised at the amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

Revenues are recognised when or as the control of the
asset is transferred to the customer. Depending on the
terms of the contract and the laws that apply to the
contract, control of the asset may be transferred over time
or at a point in time. Control of the asset is transferred over
time if the Group's performance:

- provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

- creates and enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

- do not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised
at a point in time when the customer obtains control of
the asset. The progress towards complete satisfaction
of the performance obligation is measured based on one
of the following methods that best depict the Group's
performance in satisfying the performance obligation:

- direct measurements of the value transferred by the
Group to the customer; or

- the Group's efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the
performance obligation.

2018 Annual Report FERE

2. RMERMBBEEN([FE

MBREEN]) (8)

2.1

RMFIRECITZERMERE
=R (&)

EFEMBHEEERFE155 —FEHE
EREVZIKRE ([ERHBEHREE
BIE 158 /)

BEVBEREEREFRMAEL
SR ERFEIREREAN FEG
R85 s R AR R RE - BIER
B & ER FE16RET —fH R SR
A UAARKERPANN KR 1R
BB BN REERE 165 - IR
ERRERENRRNEFEESE
X AR 75 A HE A R AR (B
TEREITHER

WERNEERHREBRERFPET
ARER - BT A WK BERR AL
RG] BB 2 IR T REBE R 3k
RE—BSHER - HAKE 2 BOB
PATNE R, » RV B 2 422 il 428 T B B
B

- RERFRBKE SRS
FEpIEn

- BAKEEOMAEMARE
FEHIMNEE: %

- UTEAR-EHAEEASH
RARZEE YEAKE
T BREKZBRIER AT
ZSASHER o

MEEZGEERREE  kaan
BHRER2ECETKENEEL
EEHER DA WSS ETFES
BEZEHREHER - TKBENRT
2 HEE AR T 51 &R B ) i N S M
i%%%ﬁ&%%ﬁ%ﬁ$—ﬁﬁ
ERTE

- HEFEAKEEBERFH
BEE: %

- ARBEREKEHEETNEN
FIRA



For the year ended 31 December 2018 | HE=-ZE—\F+-A=1+—HILEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

87} 55 ¥ 2% Bf 5%

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2. RMBERMBBEEN([FE
MBREEN]) (8)

2.1 Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued) 21 BAHITREEIZCEEUBRSE

HKFRS 15 (Continued)

Incremental costs incurred directly attributable to obtain a
contract, if recoverable, are capitalised as contract assets
and subsequently amortised when the related revenue is
recognised.

HKFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust the transaction price
for the time value of money when a contract contains a
significant financing component, regardless of whether
the payments from customers are received significantly in
advance of revenue recognition or significantly deferred.

The Group has elected to use the cumulative effect
transition method and has recognised the cumulative
effect of initial application as an adjustment to the
opening accumulated profits at 1 January 2018. Therefore,
comparative information would not be restated and
continues to be reported under HKAS 11 and HKAS 18. As
allowed under HKFRS 15, the Group has applied the new
requirements only to contracts that were not completed
before 1 January 2018.

The Group has reassessed its business model and contract
terms to assess the effects of applying the new standard
on the Group's financial statements. The management of
the Company considered that HKFRS 15 did not result in
significant impact on the Group's accounting policies.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(Continued)

2.1 Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 15 (Continued)

Under the requirements of HKFRS 15, revenue from sale
of goods and provision of services by the Group will be
recognised when the customer obtains control of the
promised goods or services in the contract. The Group has
assessed that the adoption of HKFRS 15 would be relevant
to the recognition of revenue relating to the Group's sale
of properties, under which the revenue from the sale of
properties during the accounting period is recognised in the
Group's consolidated statement of income statement on
the basis that control over the ownership of the property
has been passed to the customer during the current
accounting period. Taking into account the contract terms,
the Group's business practice and the legal and regulatory
environment of mainland China, the property sales
contracts do not meet the criteria for recognising revenue
over time and therefore revenue from property sales
continues to be recognised at a point in time. Previously,
the revenue from the sale of properties was recognised
upon delivery of property to the purchaser pursuant to the
sales agreement, which was taken to be the point in time
when the risks and rewards of ownership of the property
had been passed to the customer.

However, reclassifications were made as at 1 January 2018
to be consistent with the terminology used under HKFRS
15 as follow:

- Deposits and instalments received on properties
sold prior to the date of revenue recognition of
HK$128,921,000 that were previously presented as
deposits received from sale of properties have been
reclassified as contract liabilities.

- Advances received of HK$55,867,000 that were
previously included in trade and other payables have
been reclassified as contract liabilities.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2.1 Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 15 (Continued)

The amount by each financial statements line items
affected in the current period and period to date by the
application of HKFRS 15 as compared to HKAS 18 that was
previously in effect before the adoption of HKFRS 15 is as
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follows: REBMSEENT
As at 31 December 2018
R-ZZ-N\§+ZA=+-H
Without Reclassifications Effects of
adoption under adoption of
of HKFRS 15 HKFRS 15 HKFRS 15 As reported
ik 373 BEMBRE FREMERE
BEMEBEE BRI %155 BRI %155
BRI$15% BTZEHSE mEE BEH
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Consolidated statement of GARMBRAR (WR)
financial position (extract)
Trade and other payables B SR EMmERTE 164,556 (43,830) - 120,726
Deposits received from sale of properties  HENE 2 EMiR S 163,266 (163,266) - -
Contract liabilities AHEE = 207096 = 207096
Consolidated statement of GRARKER (1K)
cash flows (extract)
Operating profit before working Rt EEESEEA
capital changes: LERT:
Trade and other payables EO & 36,917 - 12,037 48,954
Deposits received from sale of properties  HEME 2 Bk 34,345 - (34,345) -
Contract liabilities ANEE - - 22,308 22,308
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”)
(Continued)

2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to
the Group's financial statements, have been issued, but are
not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the

Group.
HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of financial
statements?
HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes
in Accounting Estimates and
Errors?
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations?
HKFRS 16 Leases'
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments’
Amendments to Prepayment Features with
HKFRS 9 Negative Compensation'
Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associates
HKAS 28 and Joint Ventures'
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 3,

HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle Business Combinations'

Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKAS 12,
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle Income Taxes'

Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKAS 23,
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle Borrowing Costs’

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

3 The amendments were originally intended to be effective for
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 The effective
date has now been deferred/removed. Early application of the
amendments continue to be permitted.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these new/revised HKFRSs is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far the Group
has identified some aspects of the new standards which
are likely to have significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements. Further details of the expected
impacts are discussed below.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

2. RMBERMBBEEN([FE
MBREEN]) (8)

2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but 22 CHEMERKERZHIT EET

are not yet effective (Continued)
HKFRS 16 - Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede
HKAS 17 “Leases” and related interpretations, introduces
a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term
of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is
of low value. Specifically, under HKFRS 16, a lessee is
required to recognise a right-of-use asset representing
its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease
liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recognise depreciation of the
right-of-use asset and interest on the lease liability, and
also classifies cash repayments of the lease liability into a
principal portion and an interest portion and presents them
in the statement of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset
and the lease liability are initially measured on a present
value basis. The measurement includes non-cancellable
lease payments and also includes payments to be made
in optional periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to
exercise an option to extend the lease, or to exercise an
option to terminate the lease. This accounting treatment
is significantly different from the lessee accounting for
leases that are classified as operating leases under the
predecessor standard, HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in
HKAS 17 Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its
leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to
account for those two types of leases differently.

As set out in note 38, the total operating lease
commitment of the Group in respect of rented premises
as at 31 December 2018 amounted to HK$8,685,000. The
directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption of
HKFRS 16 would not result in significant impact on the
Group's result but expect that the above operating lease
commitments will be recognised as right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities in the Group's financial statements.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption
of other new or revised standards would not result in
significant impact on amounts reported in the Group's
financial statements.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

3.1

3.2

4.1

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the "HKFRS") issued by the
HKICPA and the provisions of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance which concern the preparation of financial
statements. In addition, the financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial instruments that are measured at fair value, as
explained in the accounting policies set out in note 4
below.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Group. Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies
together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in which
case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income from the effective dates of
acquisition or up to the effective dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4. FEEHBE (F)

4.1 EHEHRESEEEE (&)

4.1 Business combination and basis of consolidation

(Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for
using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date
fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.
The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis,
to measure the non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary either at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(a maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about
the fair value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration classified as an
asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interest
and the non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of the
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.1

4.2

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would be
required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed
of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus such non-controlling
interest’'s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-controlling
interests even if this results in those non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is
able to exercise control. The Company controls an investee
if all three of the following elements are present: power
over the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect
those variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever
facts and circumstances indicate that there may be a
change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company's statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4. FEEHBE (F)

4.3 Foreign currencies translation 4.3 HSh¥EmHE
Transactions entered into by the consolidated entities in HEBERNERBLCEMENEEL
currencies other than the currency of the primary economic BRENEE ([ThieE¥ ) Uiz

environment in which they operate (the “functional
currency’) are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and
liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value

EMETR S HAETR SEEA
ZERTR INEEEEENBER
E.i&%,ﬁﬂ%%?EiZiEﬁﬁEE@Tﬁ%ﬁE
NEBEUIINEAR ZIEEBIAF 1%
EEATEEAZIERRE - ZFES

that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated BARAINE ST E 2 IEEHEIE B E
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value EFBRE-

was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured

in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of HEERMEEKIBEEMEE ZER

monetary items, and on the translation of monetary items,
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period except for differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income, in which case, the exchange differences are also
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the
average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the rates approximating to those ruling when the
transactions took place are used. All assets and liabilities
of foreign operations are translated at the rate ruling
at the end of reporting period. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange
reserve (attributed to minority interests as appropriate).
Exchange differences recognised in profit or loss of group
entities’ separate financial statements on the translation
of long-term monetary items forming part of the Group's
net investment in the foreign operation concerned
are reclassified to other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the foreign exchange
reserve relating to that operation up to the date of disposal
are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the profit or loss
on disposal.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.3

4.4

Foreign currencies translation (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in the foreign
exchange reserve.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation. These include land
held for a currently undetermined future use.

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted for
as an investment property on a property-by-property basis.
Any such property interest which has been classified as
an investment property is accounted for as if it were held
under a finance lease.

On initial recognition, investment property is measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property
is stated at fair value, unless it is still in the course of
construction or development at the reporting date and its
fair value cannot be reliably determined at that time. Fair
value is determined by independent professional valuers,
with sufficient experience with respect to both the location
and the nature of the investment property. The carrying
amounts recognised at the reporting date reflect the
prevailing market conditions at the reporting date.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the fair value
or the sale of an investment property are included in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

2018 Annual Report FERE

4. FEEHBE (F)

4.3

4.4

SheEmE (15)

R_FTRF-A A ZRBREWR
BEIEBMEEZAHAEE
BENATERE  RREZEINE

ZEXRBHME - AUEEZIELE
BN IME B RER -

BREME

REMEREARDES WAL,
HARENEEMIARE RSB K
HAML R, FREY BRI
PEAREERKBEFTEN L -

EASENREHEREMERES
PABRERE S WA K, R EAEE -
Bl EESRERMENEES
BRREYE BB RREMENE
a8 A S s 1) AR 77 =0 B2 DA
EHEREELS K-

NI HERE R EMEUARATE -
BREEMNEREER 1)L ER
% BRIFRBEMEERSE AHDAE
Ry MEERET MEBEQFE
TRER] e E - B AREMER R
FEIER AT EHREREM U
MtEARHERNBYEXRMGEE
RDEESE MR E B AR BV AR E(E -
RERA S B HIR & R iR -

ROANEATEEH RS ERE
) 32 P 2 £ ) £ ] BB 2 2 S
S AHRR -



For the year ended 31 December 2018 | HE=-ZE—\F+-A=1+—HILEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

87} 55 ¥ 2% Bf 5%

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4. FEEHBE (F)

4.5 Property, plant and equipment 4.5 ME - BEREME

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction-in-
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of property, plant and
equipment includes its purchase price and any directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’'s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised as expense in profit or
loss during the year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on the following property, plant and
equipment is calculated using the straight-line method to

M BERRE (ERIERIN)
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allocate their costs less their residual values over their E A UE/H\TJ@NTTE

estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 4% BF 4%
Furniture and equipment 10% to 33% R 2 7% A5 10% Z=33%
Motor vehicles and vessels 6.67% to 33% RE R MM 6.67%=33%
Facilities 5% R HE 5%

Marine travel facilities and equipment 6.67% to 20%

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each reporting date.

The gain or loss arising from retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and is recognised in the profit or loss.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Construction in
progress is reclassified to appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when the construction works
complete and ready for use.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.6

4.7

4.8

Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments represent up-front payments
to acquire the land use rights/leasehold land. They are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease/
right of use except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of benefits to be derived
by the Group from use of the land.

The determination if an arrangement is or contains a lease
and the lease is an operating lease is detailed in note 4.14.

Properties held for sale, properties held for
development and properties under development

Properties held for sale, properties held for development
and properties under development are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises the
cost of the land together with direct costs attributable to
the development of the properties and borrowing costs
capitalised during the period of development.

Properties held for development represented properties
which has not yet commenced development and mainly
comprises of leasehold land before commencement of
construction.

Properties held under development for future sale in the
ordinary course of business are included in current assets
and stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises the acquisition cost of land, aggregate
cost of development, materials and supplies, wages and
other direct expenses and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. On completion, the properties are transferred to
properties held for sale.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less estimated costs of
completion and estimated selling expenses.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is determined using
first-in first-out method, weighted average and actual cost
basis. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.9 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows presentation, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, bank and cash balances comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.

4.10 Financial instruments

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018

(i) Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component)
is initially measured at fair value plus, for an
item not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable
to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable
without a significant financing component is
initially measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

(1)

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised
cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest rate method. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any
gain on derecognition is recognised in profit or
loss.

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Debt
investments at FVOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value. Interest income
calculated using the effective interest rate
method, foreign exchange gains and losses
and impairment are recognised in profit
or loss. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

(1)

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

FVPL: Financial assets at FVPL include financial
assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at FVPL,
or financial assets mandatorily required to be
measured at fair value. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in
the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Financial assets
with cash flows that are not solely payments
of principal and interest are classified and
measured at FVPL, irrespective of the business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt
instruments to be classified at amortised
cost or at FVOCI, as described above, debt
instruments may be designated at FVPL on
initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or
significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

(1)

(ir)

Financial assets (Continued)
Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment
that is not held for trading, the Group could
irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in the investment's fair value in other
comprehensive income. This election is made
on an investment-by-investment basis. Equity
investments at FVOCI| are measured at fair
value. Dividend income are recognised in profit
or loss unless the dividend income clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of
the investments. Other net gains and losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and are not reclassified to profit or loss. All
other equity instruments are classified as FVPL,
whereby changes in fair value, dividends and
interest income are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for
expected credit loss (“ECL") on financial
assets measured at amortised cost and debt
investments measured at FVOCI. The ECL are
measured on either of the following bases:
(1) 12 months ECL: these are the ECL that
result from possible default events within the
12 months after the reporting date; and (2)
lifetime ECL: these are ECL that result from
all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The maximum
period considered when estimating ECL is the
maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

(ir)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss
allowances for trade receivables using HKFRS
9 simplified approach and has calculated
ECL based on lifetime ECL. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on
the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to
the debtors and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECL are
based on the 12-months ECL. However, when
there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since origination, the allowance will be
based on the lifetime ECL.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group's historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 30 days past due.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

(ir)

(ifr)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when: (1) the borrower is
unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any is held);
or (2) the financial asset is more than 90 days
past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial
assets is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset. For non credit-
impaired financial assets interest income is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities at
amortised costs are initially measured at fair
value, net of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade and other payables and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. The related
interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating
interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial asset or liability, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted
directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Company’'s own equity
instruments.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss
it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payment when due in accordance
with the original or modified terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract
issued by the Group and not designated as at
FVPL is recognised initially at its fair value less
transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issue of the financial guarantee contract.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contact
at the higher of: (i) the amount of the loss
allowance, being the ECL provision measured
in accordance with principles of the accounting
policy set out in note 4.10(A)(ii); and (ii)
the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
in accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows
in relation to the financial asset expire or when
the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 January

(B)

2018 (Continued)
(vii) Derecognition (Continued)

Where the Group issues its own equity
instruments to a creditor to settle a financial
liability in whole or in part as a result of
renegotiating the terms of that liability, the
equity instruments issued are the consideration
paid and are recognised initially and measured
at their fair value on the date the financial
liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair
value of the equity instruments issued cannot
be reliably measured, the equity instruments
are measured to reflect the fair value of the
financial liability extinguished. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability or part thereof extinguished and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss
for the year.

Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the consolidated statement of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Contracts to buy or sell a non-financial item that can
be settled net in cash or another financial instrument,
or by exchanging financial instruments, are accounted
for as if the contracts were financial instruments,
with the exception of contracts that were entered
into and continue to be held for the purpose of
the receipt or delivery of a non-financial item in
accordance with the entity’'s expected purchase, sale
or usage requirements.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(B) Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (Continued)

(1)

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for
which the asset was acquired. Financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and all other financial
assets are initially measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial assets. Regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. A regular way purchase or sale is
a purchase or sale of a financial asset under
a contract whose terms require delivery of
the asset within the time frame established
generally by regulation or convention in the
marketplace concerned.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

These assets include financial assets held for
trading. Financial assets are classified as held
for trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of sale in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments or
financial guarantee contracts.

Where a contract contains one or more
embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid
contract may be designated as a financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss, except
where the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear
that separation of the embedded derivative is
prohibited.

2018 Annual Report FERE

4. FEEHBE (F)

410 &M IR (&)

(B) B-—E—tF+-HA=+—H

BB ER (5
(i) EHEE
AEERFEEREZ

B - 1 2 AR A
HEeBMEENE LA
FEAABREZERE
EVFRRATVEFE:
mArAHEME R EE
& B4R 2 B DS 7%
CREEEREELENR
ZREGFE-HERE
ENEREERRHH
HIE R R R R E g
R-BREREEIER
BAENEEMEME
E-Mm&za ORI RE
AN — RIS HE R
5E ok 18 {7 #E 32 B I PR Y
RNEE-

BRFEAARDZE
BEE

ZEBEEBRBIERESR
TREE-NBEZ R
BEZBEMEEIHTH
EMEREREED
BRARKERERE-TET
E(BHEBRAANI
ETA) D BARKIER
B RERBEESEX
Hh TR TMERS
#) e

NASY

il

W—heaHNaa s
A EBRAXTET A
AIBMESBKNAEE
REBERKRBAFEA
ReeBEE HERA
XPTET AW EEHIR
EMHBRERES =X
BRREZE IE 5 SR A AT
T ARSI



For the year ended 31 December 2018 | HE=-ZE—\F+-A=1+—HILEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(B) Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (Continued)

Financial assets may be designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss if the following criteria are met:
(i) the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets
or recognising gains or losses on them on
a different basis; (i) the assets are part of a
group of financial assets which is managed
and its performance evaluated on a fair value
basis according to a documented management
strategy; or (iii) the financial asset contains an
embedded derivative that would need to be
separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They arise
principally through the provision of goods and
services to customers (trade debtors), and also
incorporate other types of contractual monetary
asset. Subsequent to initial recognition, they
are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment
losses.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(B) Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non-derivative financial assets
that are designated as available-for-sale or are
not included in other categories of financial
assets. Subsequent to initial recognition, these
assets are carried at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for impairment losses and
foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary
instruments, which are recognised in profit or
loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that
do not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked to and
must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity instruments, they are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses.

2018 Annual Report FERE

4. FEEHBE (F)

410 &M IR (&)

(B) B-—E—tF+-HA=+—H

BB ER (5
() ZHEEE)
TREEEHEE

ZEEBEBIEERAM
& X AF AR AL KR
ERMEEZHITEESH
BE - NP HRE &
SEERRATFEINNK:
HEAFEEFINEMS
SRR ER B R
THRZHEERRE
B ITAMINERZE R E
BRI -

I 5 BB T 35 2 T 5
BEmEAFERERSE
FAEZAHHERER
B UREZFERBE
R TEABAANR
NZETABEZITE
T A - 3R AR 7T 3 5
MEEEE-



For the year ended 31 December 2018 | HE=-ZE—\F+-A=1+—HILEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(B) Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (Continued)

(ir)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each
reporting period, whether there is any objective
evidence that financial asset is impaired.
Financial asset is impaired if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that has occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset and that event
has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include:

- significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- granting concession to a debtor because
of debtor’s financial difficulty;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an equity instrument below
its cost.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(B) Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
For loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss when there is objective evidence that
the asset is impaired, and is measured as
the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of financial asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account. When any part of
financial asset is determined as uncollectible, it
is written off against the allowance account for
the relevant financial asset.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods when an increase in the asset's
recoverable amount can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

For available-for-sale financial assets

Where a decline in the fair value constitutes
objective evidence of impairment, the amount
of the loss is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss.

Any impairment losses on available-for-sale
debt investments are subsequently reversed
in profit or loss if an increase in the fair value
of the investment can be objectively related to
an event occurring after the recognition of the
impairment loss.

For available-for-sale equity investment,
any increase in fair value subsequent to
an impairment loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(B) Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (Continued)

(ii)

(ifr)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
For available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

For available-for-sale equity investment carried
at cost, the amount of impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the asset and the present
value of estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss is not
reversed.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and financial liabilities
at amortised costs are initially measured at fair
value, net of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade and other payables and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. The related
interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

4. FEEHBE (F)

410 &M IR (&)

(B) B=-—E—tF+-HA=+—H

BB ER (5
(i) ZRHEEREFE(E)

(ifi)

R ESHEE (&)

SRR B 51 B 2 AT A
ERAKREME RE
B 2 BRE B 8% B ATR
BEBRUSREENTS
MEREIR Z hETARRR
TREBZHEZEF
Bt FRERBEMRE
BEmE -

ETHAE

AEERFREELZ
B HESBRARED
B-RAFEFABRR
ZEBBENTRAF
Bt & MZEHKA
AAEZERAERNNE
BRAFEMGREREN
FREL ZRAFE-

BEBHEXATSEZ L H
=

RBHKATEZ SR
BE(BEREZ REM
ENFEBERER) @ BEE&
R SHA AN R R BB A
BR8-S
XA EE P RERR o

BERERIEERE A
RE#HFERBRES W
HEEN B R P RER -

China Chengtong Development Group Limited FEHEREREBRER LT

139



140

For the year ended 31 December 2018 | HE-Z—\AF+=-A=+—HILEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

87} 5 ¥ 2% Bfd 5%

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(B) Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts or payments through the expected
life of the financial asset or liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted
directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Company’'s own equity
instruments.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

(B) Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (Continued)

(vi)

(vir)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss
it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payment when due in accordance
with the original or modified terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract
issued by the Group and not designated as at
fair value through profit or loss is recognised
initially at its fair value less transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of
the financial guarantee contract. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contract at the higher of:
(i) the amount determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with
HKAS 18 Revenue.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual right to the future cash flows
in relation to the financial asset expire or when
the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.11 Revenue recognition

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 January

2018

Revenue from contracts with customers is
recognised when control of goods or services is
transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services, excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes value added
tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or service is transferred
over time if the Group’s performance:

- provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

- creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

- does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over
time, revenue is recognised over the period of
the contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance obligation.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the goods or
service.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.11 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 January

2018 (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to
the customer for more than one year, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amounts
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract
inception. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under
that contract includes the interest expense accreted
on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For contracts where the period between the
payment and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is
not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS
15.

(1) Sales of properties

Revenue is recognised when or as the control
of the asset is transferred to the customer.
Depending on the terms of the contract and
the laws that apply to the contract, control of
the asset may be transferred over time or at a
point in time. If properties have no alternative
use to the Group contractually and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment from the
customers for performance completed to date,
the Group satisfies the performance obligation
over time and therefore, recognises revenue
over time in accordance with the input method
for measuring progress. Otherwise, revenue
is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the completed
property.

The progress towards complete satisfaction
of the performance obligation is measured
based on the Group's efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of the performance obligation, by
reference to the contract costs incurred up to
the end of reporting period as a percentage of
total estimated costs for each contract.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.11 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

(1)

(ir)

(111

(iv)

(v)

Sales of properties (Continued)

For property development and sales contract for
which the control of the property is transferred
at a point in time, revenue is recognised when
the customer obtains the physical possession
or the legal title of the completed property and
the Group has present right to payment and the
collection of the consideration is probable.

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration
for the effect of a financing component if it is
significant.

Rental

Rental is recognised in the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Sales of goods

Income from sales of goods is recognised at a
point in time when the goods are delivered to
customers and title has passed.

Service fees

Revenue from hotel operation and marine
travelling services fees are recognised when
services are rendered.

Interest

Interest is recognised on a time proportion
basis using the effective interest method.
When a receivable is impaired, the Group
reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable
amount, being the estimated future cash flow
discounted at the original effective interest rate
of the instrument, and continues unwinding the
discount as interest income. Interest income
on impaired receivables is recognised using the
original effective interest rate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.11 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(A) Accounting policies applied from 1 January
2018 (Continued)

(vi)

Dividend

Dividend is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group's right
to consideration in exchange for services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is
not yet unconditional. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’'s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is
due.

A contract liability represents the Group's
obligation to transfer services to a customer
for which the Group has received consideration
(or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

Contract asset is recognised when the
customers retain retention money to secure
the due performance of the contracts. Any
amount previously recognised as a contract
asset is reclassified to trade receivables at the
point at which it is invoiced to the customer.
If the considerations (including advances
received from customers) exceeds the revenue
recognised to date under the output method
then the Group recognises a contract liability for
the difference.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.11 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(B) Accounting policies applied until 31

December 2017

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of

discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when
goods are delivered and title has passed at which
time all the following conditions are satisfied.

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of

the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership nor effective control over the

goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits

associated with the transaction will flow to the

Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect
of the transaction can be measured reliably.

For contracts to buy or sell non-financial items
which was accounted for as if the contracts were
financial instruments (except for contracts that were
entered into and continue to be held for the purpose
of the receipt or delivery of a non-financial item in
accordance with the entity’'s expected purchase, sale
or usage requirements), the net income from the

contracts is recognised as revenue.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4. FEEHBE (F)

411 SR (8)

4.11 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(B) Accounting policies applied until 31 (B) W—Z—t&F+_-F=+—H
December 2017 (Continued) BIBEREs B F (&)
Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary AREBBIEFIEEME 2R

course of business is recognised upon delivery
of properties to the purchasers pursuant to the
sales agreements. Deposits received from the
purchasers prior to meeting the above criteria for
revenue recognition are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position under current
liabilities.

Rental income, including rentals invoiced in advance
from properties lent under operating leases, is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of
the leases.

Service income is recognised when services are
provided.

Revenue from hotel is recognised upon the provision
of the accommodation services. Revenue from food
and beverage sales and other ancillary services are
recognised upon the sales of goods and provision of
services respectively.

Interest income (as the case may be, including the
handling fees that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate) from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest income from a financial
asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’'s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment
have been established (provided that it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.12 Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on those
assets is deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

4.13 Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
appropriate to the expected manner in which the carrying
amount of the asset or liability is realised or settled and
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of reporting period.

An exception to the general requirement on determining
the appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax
amount is when an investment property is carried at fair
value under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless
the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts
on these investment properties are measured using the
tax rates that would apply on sale of these investment
properties at their carrying amounts at the reporting date.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.13 Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented
in net if, and only if,

(@)  the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities in net if, and only if,

(@) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

(b)  the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(i)  different taxable entities which intend either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.14 Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense
on the straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Where the Group has the right to use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss on a straight line basis over the
lease terms except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased assets. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rental are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.

4.15 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which will
probably result in an outflow of economic benefits that can
be reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4. FEEHBE (F)

4.16 Employee benefits 416 ERTEF

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes are charged as an expense when employees have
rendered services entitling them to the contributions.

Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
defined contribution plans.

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who
are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. The MPF
Scheme is a defined contribution retirement benefit plan
and contributions to the scheme are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ relevant income.

The employees of the Company's subsidiaries which
operate in the PRC are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute
certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme.
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4.17 Share-based payment transactions 417 BB EERZARES
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions BRBEFLURGSERZ T
&
Share options granted to employees RTIESZERIE

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (the employee
share-based compensation reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
employee share-based compensation reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in the employee
share-based compensation reserve will be transferred to
accumulated profits.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.17 Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Equity-settied share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Share award scheme

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in the employee
share-based compensation reserves in equity, over the
period in which the granted conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired
and the Group's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The income statement
expense or credit for a period represents the movement
in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and
end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits
expense.

When the share award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately.

4.18 Impairment losses of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment, prepaid land lease
payments and interests in subsidiaries are subject to
impairment testing.

All other non-financial assets are tested for impairment
whenever there are indications that the asset's carrying
amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset's carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market
conditions less costs of disposal, and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessment of time value
of money and the risk specific to the asset.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4. FEEHBE (F)

418 FEMRERMERR (5)

4.18 Impairment losses of non-financial assets

(Continued)

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
from those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generate
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As
a result, some assets are tested individually for impairment
and some are tested at cash-generating unit level.

4.19 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group's business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported
to the executive directors are determined following the
Group's major products and service lines.

The Group has identified the following reportable
segments:

- Property development — holding land for property
development projects;

- Property investment — providing rental services and
holding investment properties for appreciation;

- Finance leasing — providing finance leasing services
including arranging sale and leaseback transactions;

- Bulk commodity trade — trading of coal, steel and
non-ferrous metal; and

- Hotel and marine travelling services — providing hotel

RFERETS  WEEEEZRS
FARBA LB R LM EE - 7T
KEBER R T ELR S RA
2BIEEMES (NRSELBEN)
BT o Al 59 & E P ERETR
BRH SEBSRREEBME
TR

419 D EHE

REBRIBARTES 2 RAHRE
ERDEERERESERE D &
B ZF B RBELREZEH
MEPEA TS B # BRI & D 1B R R Y
DEER - MATEFE2RZ AN
BEARAZEBRMY DiIRAREE
REMNMRGRETE -

REBEBBIATAI 28D A :
- VERER-FAIMEMEE
RIAE A&

- DERE-RHEBEERE KRS
BREMEAFIEE:

- REHE-REREHEERS
(BRLHEROAEARS)

- AFBmEZ KR #M R
BEEEBES &

— BB RS —REE

and marine travelling services. JE G EpR 32 AR o
Each of these operating segments is managed separately HREERMEREETZTZTRAEIR
as each of the products and service lines requires different ARTSGHERE R A MZEREDE
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4.19 Segment reporting (Continued)

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those
used in its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs.
Segment results represent the results from each segment
without allocation of results generated by head office
and the inactive subsidiaries, directors’ emoluments and
fair value changes of investment properties. This is the
measure reported to the chief operating decision maker
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

Segment assets include all assets other than assets held
by head office and the inactive subsidiaries (mainly include
other financial assets and bank balances and cash) and
other unallocated assets that are not directly attributable
to reportable segments. Segment liabilities exclude
borrowings and liabilities incurred by head office and the
inactive subsidiaries (mainly include other payables and
deferred tax liabilities) and other unallocated liabilities that
are not directly attributable to reportable segments.

Segment assets of property investment segment include
investment properties but segment results exclude the
related fair value changes for the year.

Save as the aforementioned, no asymmetrical allocations
have been applied to reportable segments.

4.20 Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that
the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as revenue in profit or loss on
a systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the Group
for the cost of an asset are deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the asset
by way of reduced depreciation expense.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.21 Related parties

(a)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company's parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i)~ One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

(iii)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vi) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

4. *EE

87} 55 ¥ 2% Bf 5%

Bt (48)

4.21AEA

(a)

(b)

fisd /B8 S FIB I - B A L%
AT HYHT SR B AR &

HAREEEBEE

(i BHAEEFESIRExRE
[ 422 Il 42

il BAEBEEATE
ek

(i) ABAKEHARF

AlZEREEAER -

i TEMERBERER  AIRXE
BAREAKEARE

Efgm $‘§@J§H*
B B AR (A&
SN Y= NP
?ﬁﬁ%” AIEMRREE)

il —FHAEEAEZ—ETBN
/NI 3
(HAEBX—EBOHKER
AINEE RARHAEED
¥ mMzis—EEAI
FEMKE) -

(il MEERLARBE=
THAERE-

vy, —AEEZAESE

LB

%lﬁﬁ@%aﬁ%ﬁ

% | M 5% A B B 12 1@
=+ Z| o

(vi) ZEBX(a)BMREN
ALK RES -

(vii) (a)() 3B T 5 € B9 A & %
ZEBEEAVEN
FRER(HZERDY

REDHWEREEA

o

D]]IJI

\

China Chengtong Development Group Limited FEHEREREBRER LT

155



156

For the year ended 31 December 2018 | BZ=-Z—\F+-A=+—HLEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

87} 5 ¥ 2% Bfd 5%

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

4.21 Related parties (Continued)

(b)  (Continued)

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or

domestic partner.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, the
directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. Such estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:
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5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

5.1

5.2

5.3

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by independent professional valuers.
In determining the fair value, the valuers have based on a
method of valuation which involves certain estimates of
market condition. In relying on the valuation report, the
directors of the Company have exercised their judgement
and are satisfied that the assumptions used in the valuation
are reflective of the current market conditions. Changes
to these assumptions would result in changes in the
fair values of the Group's investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss
reported in the consolidated income statement.

Estimated net realisable value on properties
under development

In determining whether allowances should be made for the
Group's properties under development, the Group takes
into consideration the current market environment and the
estimated market value less estimated costs to completion
of the properties. An allowance is made if the estimated
market value is less than the carrying amount. If the actual
net realisable value on properties under development
is less than expected as a result of change in market
condition and/or significant variation in the budgeted
development cost, material provision for impairment losses
may result.

Estimated net realisable value for properties held
for sale

Management exercises its judgement in making allowance
for properties held for sale with reference to the existing
market environment, the sales performance in previous
years and estimated market value of the properties, i.e.
the estimated selling price less estimated costs of selling.
A specific allowance for stocks of completed properties is
made based on the estimation of net realisable value on
the completed properties if the estimated market value of
the property is lower than its carrying amount. If the actual
net realisable values of the stocks of completed properties
are less than expected as a result of change in market
condition, material provision for impairment losses may
result.
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5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

5.4 Impairment allowances on financial assets

5.5

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS
9 across all categories of financial assets requires
judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and
timing of future cash flows and collateral values when
determining impairment losses and the assessment of
a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are
driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result
in different levels of allowances.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures
since initial recognition by comparing the risk of default
occurring over the expected life between the reporting date
and the date of initial recognition. The Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort for this purpose. This
includes quantitative and qualitative information and also,
forward-looking analysis.

Valuation of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

The fair value of financial assets designated as at fair
value through profit or loss that are not traded in an
active market is determined by using external valuations
or valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of
methods and makes assumptions that are mainly based
on market conditions existing at each reporting date.
Valuation techniques used include the use of comparable
recent arm’s length transactions, discounted cash flow
analysis and other valuation techniques commonly used by
other market participants. Changes in assumptions on the
valuation techniques could affect the reported fair values of
these financial assets. Further details are contained in note
42 to the financial statements.
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5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

5.6

5.7

5.8

Estimated provision for inventories

In determining the amount of allowance required for
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, the Group would
evaluate ageing analysis of inventories and compare
the carrying value of inventories to their respective net
realisable value. A considerable amount of judgement is
required in determining such allowance. If conditions which
have impact on the net realisable value of inventories
deteriorate, additional allowances may be required.

Depreciation and amortisation

The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment
and amortises the prepaid land lease payments in
accordance with the accounting policies stated in notes 4.5
and 4.6. The estimated useful lives reflect the directors’
estimates of the periods that the Group intends to derive
future economic benefits from the use of these assets.

Estimated impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at each reporting
date. Non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management estimates the expected future
cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and
determines a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, who are the chief operating decision makers for the
purpose of resources allocation and assessment of performance,
is the financial information of the Group as a whole as reported
under HKFRSs. The Group's chief operating decision makers have

identified the reportable segments of the Group as follows:

(1) Property development — holding land for property

development projects

(2)  Property investment — providing rental services and holding
investment properties for appreciation

(3)  Finance leasing — providing finance leasing services

including arranging sale and leaseback transactions

(4)  Bulk commodity trade — trading of coal, steel and non-

ferrous metal

(5)  Hotel and marine travelling services — providing hotel and
marine travelling services

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results

by reportable segment:

For the year ended 31 December 2018

6. #WAEH

MARBIRTES (X2 EERRE)
P2 A D LB R R HERIRHOER T
REZEAVBHREENMEBFLRENHE
BYBER UTAAEETELERR
FORB 2 ARBHRED

(1) VERER-FELHMEVEERRE

B Mz

2 MERE-RUBERBEFER
B AR (A

() BMEME-RHBEBERY (25
ZHEREERS)

4) REBmES-Kx #kEes
BES

(6) JHJE G IR RS — 1R 4L 5 A
8 _E R RS

SHBERER

AT AREBEZREDRE D2 Wa M %
BN

BE_T—N\FE+-HA=1+—HLEE

Hotel and
Bulk marine
Property Property Finance ~ commodity travelling
development  investment leasing trade services Total
EEH
NERR nERE BEAR ATHEHS SLRERE ait
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
BRFT BRTT BRTT BRFT BRFT BRFT
Tumover as presented in consolidated FANERZI EXE
income Statement 60,993 2,638 53,264 865,237 38,760 1,020,892
Results E
Seqment results (note (3)) FBEE (W) 20,477 2,293 44,136 4,339 (4,108) 67,137
Fair value gain on investment RENEZATENE
properties (note (4)) (Hiiti) 3,535
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE-HNERA  Wa 110,799
Unallocated finance costs RAMBERE (4,333)
Unallocated corporate expenses AABLERR (52,153)
Unallocated corporate income AABEERA 43,929
Profit before income tax WS HAL R 168,914
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEEH(E)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) PEBMERER(H)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 (Continued) gFE—_FT—N\F+-BA=+—HLFE
(&)
Hotel and
Bulk marine
Property Property Finance  commodity travelling
development  investment leasing trade services Unallocated Total
EEN
NERR nERE BEHR ARHEHA SLRERE R ait
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKs'000 HKs'000 HKS'000
BRFT BRFT BARFT BRFT BRFT BRFT BRFT
Notes: Mt
a) Amounts included in the (o) PEEECHAZEE
measure of segment results
Interest income from deposits ~~ FHEELEBEEL
and other financial assets HEHA 2,365 - 2,952 320 1,304 38,897 45,838
Depreciation e (80) - (150) (26) (10,283) (4,196) (14,735)
Finance costs HERR - - (2,120) (52) - (4,333) 6,505)
Gainlloss) on disposal HENE BERREL
of property, plant and Wi/ (BR)
equipment - - - 1 (276) - (275)
(o) Amounts regularly provided to (b EHFEEEEEREER
the chief operating decision AR A ER
maker for the analysis of the RleH
segment’s performance
Fair value gain on investment RENME ATENE
properties - 3,535 - - - - 3,535

China Chengtong Development Group Limited FEBEHREBERAT
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017

6. SWAEH(FH)
SEHBRER ()
BE-2—tF+-A=+-HLEE

Hotel and
Bulk marine
Property Property Finance commodity travelling
development investment leasing trade services Total
BEM
NELE ESE HENE ATERERD BLRERE a3t
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000
BETT BETT BETT BEET BEET BEET
Turnover as presented in consolidated BARRRE2I EEE
income statement 109,212 2412 52,693 1,145,872 42,930 1,363,119
Results E
Segment results otz (3)) PREE (With) 24,253 2,151 44,630 9,523 (4.804) 75,753
Fair value gain on investment RENMEATENE
properties (note (b)) (Hii)) 100
Fair value loss on held-fortrading securities ~ #{FEEZ % AFEFE (106)
Interest income from entrusted BUZTEFLFEHA
loan receivables 537
Unallocated finance costs AORBENA (9,459)
Unallocated corporate expenses AORLERR (56,714)
Unallocated corporate income AABRERA 43,489
Profit before income tax BRE SR AR 53,600
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEEH(E)
Segment revenue and results (Continued) PEBMERER(H)
For the year ended 31 December 2017 (Continued) g#F—_F—tF+-A=+—HLEE
(&)
Hotel and
Bulk marine
Property Property Finance commodity travelling
development  investment leasing trade services  Unallocated Total
BEA
NERE EZE BERE ATEREZ ALRERS AR @i
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Notes: it
{a) Amounts included in the () PREEEHAZEE
measure of segment results
Interest income from deposits, ~ FHEHERER
short-term investments and RLESHEE
available-forsale financial ZFIEHA
assets 669 - 4.804 298 962 42,271 49,010
Depreciation ik (78) = (127) (24) (9,785) (4,357) (14,371)
Finance costs HERE - - (3,454) (35) = (9,459) (12949)
Gain/lloss) on disposal HENE BERREL
of property, plant and s/ (B#)
equipment - - - - 159 4) 155
Written off of prepayments BB S - - - - (4,464) - (4,464)
Reversal of other payables BEEENE - - - = 1,629 - 1,629
(o) Amounts regularly provided to () EHFEEEEERRER
the chief operating decision AR A ER
maker for the analysis of the ik
segment’s performance
Fair value gain on investment RENE DT ENG
properties - 100 - - - - 100
China Chengtong Development Group Limited FEBEHREBERAT
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

Unallocated corporate income mainly comprised interest income
from deposits and other financial assets (2017: interest income
from deposits, short-term investments and available-for-sale
financial assets and interest income from a related party) which
are not directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment.

Unallocated corporate expenses mainly comprised staff costs
and legal and professional expenses of the Group's headquarter
which are not directly attributable to the business activities of
any operating segment.

Segment results do not include income tax expense, while
segment liabilities include the current and deferred taxation
except for those recognised by the head office and the inactive
subsidiaries.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same
as the Group's accounting policies described in note 4. Segment
results represent the results from each segment without
allocation of results generated by head office and the inactive
subsidiaries, directors’ emoluments and fair value changes of
investment properties. This is the measure reported to the chief
operating decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. #¥EH(E)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities

SHRERAR

UTRARENEERABRRBRENEZ

by reportable segment: AT
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —FT—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BY¥TIT B FoT
Segment assets DEEE
Property investment* MERE* 101,528 63,816
Property development MEER 849,182 802,344
Finance leasing MERE 889,029 825,502
Bulk commodity trade ANEEmR S 188,112 142,818
Hotel and marine travelling services B JE T8 b B 5% AR 75 208,104 253,779
Total segment assets NEEERE 2,235,955 2,088,259
Unallocated ROHL
— prepaid land lease payments — A L E - 157,589
— other financial assets —Hivr o & E 695,666 =
— available-for-sale financial assets —nHEEEmEE - 645,477
- deposits in other financial institution — R E A BT R 15,026 78,566
— bank balances and cash —RITEFRRE 552,011 505,126
— other unallocated assets —HiRDEEE 91,645 99,784
Consolidated assets REBE 3,590,303 3,574,801
2018 2017
—E—\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
EB¥TFTT B TFor
Segment liabilities DEEE
Property investment MR E 9,065 8,651
Property development YR 247,059 194,302
Finance leasing MEHRE 91,494 18,965
Bulk commodity trade ARRBEmE 5 53,890 69,959
Hotel and marine travelling services B TE NG R AR A 37,005 42,180
Total segment liabilities NEBERRE 438,513 334,057
Bank borrowings RITHE 200,000 200,000
Other unallocated liabilities HibRkHEARE 54,646 54,297
Consolidated liabilities REAaR 693,159 588,354
o Segment assets of property investment segment include investment @ MERESENDBEERREREDE M

DEEENTBIEFAHERBRATE RS
#3,535,0007T (= F —+ 4 : A %100,000
JT) °

properties but segment results exclude the related fair value gain of
HK$3,535,000 (2017: HK$100,000) for the year.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEEH(E)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PEAERAR (&)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and BEESBERERNRDBEEOIRER

allocating resources between segments:

e all assets are allocated to reportable segments other than . RaEnERE R NERHNBATRSE
assets held by head office and the inactive subsidiaries; ZEBEIN FTEEEHIREZRES
and ¥Rk

e all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other . RaEnEE R NERNBATEA
than borrowings and liabilities incurred by head office and ZEERAEIIN FTEABEHSERE
the inactive subsidiaries. wEDHE-

For the year ended 31 December 2018 g#F_Z—N\F+_-_B=+—HLFE

Amounts included in the measure of segment assets: AN EEGE SR

Hotel and
Bulk marine
Property Property Finance  commodity travelling
development  investment leasing trade services Unallocated Total
EENEL
NERR nERE BEER ATRERHA ididit R ait
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKs'000 HKs'000 HKS'000
BRFT BRFT BARFT BRTT BRFT BRFT BRFT
Additions to non-current assets  REFAHEE
(other than financial assets) (RREBERIM) 14 39,162 85 - 35,652 72 74,985
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE_Z—tE+_-_A=+—HLEE
Amounts included in the measure of segment assets: AN HEEGFEZ SR
Hotel and
Bulk maring
Property Property Finance commodity travelling
development investment leasing trade services  Unallocated Total
BEREL
VL NERE HERE ATERES kER% RO faq
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
AEFT EBFT EEFT AEFT AEFr AETT AEFT
Additions to non-current assets  REFAHEE
{other than financial assets) (SREERMD) 24 b4 % 9 45,460 634 46,79
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Other segment information

The Group's significant operations, external customers and non-
current assets (other than financial assets) during the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 were mainly located in Hong
Kong (place of domicile) and the PRC. Geographical information
of revenue from external customers is based on the location of
the customers and the geographical location of the non-current
assets (other than financial assets) is based on the physical
location of the assets.

57} #5 ¥ 2= B 51

6. FWEH(EF)
it 5 R

REZ_ZE—N\EFER_ZT—+tF+=_A
=+ BLEFE AEBMZEEEKE I
BEERERDEE (SRMEERIMN) E
BURES (i) RPE - 2R EIMNEER
B2 W 2 s B R T AR IR B B B 7E
T IERBEE (SREERIN) ZnIEAL
ENREBEZEEEZERMEME -

Revenue from Non-current assets
external customers (other than financial assets)
RESBEEZHRE ERDEE(SMEERS)

2018 2017 2018 2017

—E-\%E —E—+tF —EB-N\E “T—+F

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

BETT EMF T BETT BT T

Hong Kong BB - - 348 586
The PRC H 1,020,892 1,353,119 327,575 462,726
1,020,892 1,353,119 327,923 463,312

There is no revenue from a customer contributing over 10% of
the total turnover of the Group for the years ended 31 December
2017 and 2018.

HE-_ZT—tER-_ZT—N\F+=-A
=+ BLFEREGRAEBRLEEHEE
10% A EHNEF BB 2 W2k
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group's turnover from

major products and services:

SWEH(F)

TXEIAEEREEIZERLRE 2E

RBZDHERR:

2018 2017

—ZE—)\f§ —T—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BE¥TIT BT T

(Note)

(H1:E)

Sales of properties s 60,993 109,212
Consultancy service income from BEMRELHE 2 BARKKA

finance lease arrangements 8,925 9,005

Bulk commodity trade ArREmES 865,237 1,145,872

Hotel and marine travelling services B JE MG R 52 AR 7 38,760 42,930

Revenue from contract with customers RBEEEF A 42 W 973,915 1,307.019

Rental income e WA 2,638 2,412
Interest income from finance lease REBMERELZBENF S WA

arrangements 44,339 43,688

Total revenue &5 MR 1,020,892 1,353,119

Note: During the year, the Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 using the
cumulative effect method. Under this method, the comparative
information for the year ended 31 December 2017 is not restated and
was prepared in accordance with HKAS 18.

Mt : FR - ANEBYFERAB AN BRELRE
165 M Rt &% BIRIER B SRS
1855 R L T EREE T —tF+=-A
=t+—ALFERBEINLERER -

7. OTHER INCOME 7. Hftlg A
2018 2017
—E—N\E§ —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETIT BT T
Interest income from: RENUTEE ZFERA:
— deposits and other financial assets —GEREkEMEREE
(2017: deposits, short-term —E—LF FER
investments and available-for-sale EHRKRERAHEE
financial assets) TEEE) 45,838 49,010
— entrusted loan receivables —EWEFTER - 537
- a related party ——ZEER - 346
- a non-controlling shareholder of ——EE AR —RIEE
a subsidiary R A% 3R 196 978
Fair value gain on other financial assets FTAEZMNEMEREEZ
measured at profit or loss NEERE 4,005 =
Government subsidies RS 46 B 4,508 128
Reversal of other payables & [ H {th fE 15 ZOE 326 1,629
Exchange gain, net PE 3 U a5 0 F 5B 104 =
Others HA 3,602 2,205
58,579 54,833
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FINANCE COSTS 8. MBERZE
2018 2017
—E—\F —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETIT BT T
Interest on corporate bonds RAEFHZFI B - 14,333
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEZFE 9,039 7,385
9,039 21,718

Less: Amounts capitalised on properties i : R R ¥ 2

under development BIEERN bz &8 (2,534) (8,770)
6,505 12,948

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% on the estimated
assessable profits for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT")
and Implementation Regulation, the PRC subsidiaries are
subject to tax rate of 26%. The current tax also comprised land
appreciation tax (“LAT") which is estimated in accordance with
the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and
regulations. LAT has been provided at ranges of progressive
rates of the appreciation value, with certain allowable
deductions.

9. FieMMX

B NIFT 05 /R (5 2 N Z (A EHE AR
it M2 16.5% 2 B K5t H o

REFPECEMEN ((RERBR]) X
REZEMETOEBRGD - B E AR
& /525% ° B AR IR 71 B 4% + 3R (B X
([EHIBER ) - LHIEEHTHIRIBEER
BB A M {5k B P88 2 AR TE b At o £ i IR
EBEHCREERZRERTBERE B
BETHMMERE -

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—L+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETIT BT T
The taxation charge comprises: RIBEZ LB
Current tax for the year: REFZHIE
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEABNER = -
PRC EIT PRI RGN 45,339 21,270
PRC LAT R - i 3 (E B 4,719 5,781
50,058 27051
Over-provision in prior years: BEFEBREEE:
PRC EIT PRI RGN - (190)
50,058 26,861
Deferred tax (note 33) RIERIE (f75£33) 7.441 3,188
Income tax expense FisHiAx 57,499 30,049

China Chengtong Development Group Limited FEBEHREBERAT
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9.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 9.

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting

FRSMMAX (&)

BERNEAE ZMERASEE S

profit at applicable tax rates: ZHEERMAT
2018 2017
—E—)\f T
HK$’000 HK$'000
EB¥TFTT BT T
Profit before income tax R BT 13 5 B & A 168,914 53,600
Tax calculated at PRC EIT rate of 25% BRRPERMEHE25%
(2017: 25%) —E—+%F:25%)
AEZBHIE 42,229 13,400
Effect of different tax rates of group TERR P BN A R A =
entities operating in jurisdictions other K& ZEBEETE Y
than the PRC TRAMETE 1,062 1,370
PRC LAT o i E 4,719 5,781
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for #4%% A IR FI 2 2
tax purposes BEeE 6,119 6,957
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax HBBREHWA ZHIETE
purposes (7,190) (5,811)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised  KFERR %RIEJEETEZM%%L 4,943 6,313
Tax effect of temporary difference not RERGRHEEE o RETE
recognised (940) (934)
Withholding tax for undistributed profits H BB A7 Z
of PRC subsidiaries AR A 2 B 6,557 3,163
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBBEREE - (190)
Income tax expense FTiS i F = 57,499 30,049
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10. PROFIT FORTHE YEAR 10. FREF
2018 2017
—E—N\E§ T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETIT BT T
Profit for the year is arrived at after FREMEMBR (FFA) :
charging/(crediting):
Auditor’'s remuneration % ERAD B &
— audit services — BT RTE 1,070 1,070
- non-audit services —JEFE T AR 180 220
1,250 1,290
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TEAT 30 78 & 15 )38
payments 5,471 5,429
Depreciation of property, plant and YME BEREEZITE
equipment 14,747 14,442
Less: Amounts capitalised on properties & : R R ¥ 2
under development BIEERN bz &8 (12) (71)
14,735 14,371
Minimum lease payments in respect of T EWE 2 ZFIEHEE X
rented premises 4,946 3,929
Contributions to retirement benefits BRRSBAGEER(BIEE
schemes (including directors’ EME)
emoluments) 10,740 9,141
Staff costs (including directors’ BIA (BEESEHES)
emoluments) 52,055 53,083
Total staff costs 8 TR A @5 62,795 62,224
Less: Amounts capitalised on properties i : ZEEH ¥ 2
under development BIEBERLz 28 (2,141) (1,969)
60,654 60,255
Cost of inventories recognised as BRAERZ 2 FEKA
expenses 881,467 1,207,683
Exchange (gain)/loss, net BN (W), BRFsE (104) 1,450
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant H&E%E  MELKZREZ
and equipment B (W) 275 (155)
Impairment on financial assets EREERE 55 -
Written off of prepayments TE BRIE 5 8 - 4,464
Written off of property, plant and Y B RS
equipment 303 380
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section 383
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622) and the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation (Cap.622G) (the Regulation) are as
follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2018

(a) EFH&

M. EEREREEEMS

RIEEB LD E6228F 8 A T1E5
F38IME R BB AN E622GE A A
(BEESEFEER) ROELZE
EMSERNAT

BE_ET—/I\F+ZA=+—HL

£E
Yuan Lee Man
Zhang Shaoli Wang Chang Chun,
Bin (note (a)) Tianlin Qing Tony He Jia Total
iR
L3 (HiE(a)) IXE R ZR2 {0f: #
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
ERTT ERTT E¥TT E¥TT E¥TT ERTT ERTT
Fees we 360 330 240 360 360 360 2010
Salaries & - - - - - - -
Contribution to retirement R {KiE |58/
benefits schemes - - - - - - -
Total emoluments EMe 360 330 240 360 360 360 2,010

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE_=—t¥+=-A=+—HL

£E
Wang Lee Man
Yuan Hongxin Wang Zhang Chang Chun,
Shaoli  (note (b)) Tianlin Bin Qing Tony He Jia Total
Fikfs
=#BE  (HEb) PN R, BE FE2 ffE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
BETFT  AETT  EEFT BT BE¥Fr BEFr BEFr EBETx
Fees ne 360 165 240 305 360 360 %0 2,150
Salaries %2 1,121 367 537 615 - - - 2,640
Contribution to retirement &Kk 5 &4 3K
benefits schemes 132 72 150 147 - - - 501
Total emoluments BHe 1,613 604 927 1,067 360 360 360 5,291
Notes: Htat -
(@) Mr. Yuan Shaoli has resigned as an executive director and ceased (a) RBELLEBHEDTESUTIBEEELR

to act as the chairman of the board of the Company with effect
from 1 December 2018.

(b) Mr. Wang Hongxin has resigned as an executive director with
effect from 15 June 2017
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, none (2017: three) of the director(s) of the
Company whose emoluments are included in (a) above. The
emoluments of the remaining five (2017: two) individuals
were as follows:

(b)

57} #5 ¥ 2= B 51

1. EEREREZEMS (5)

IEEEFMAL

AEBREGRRTMALTH W&
AT (ZE—tF : ZR)RAQA
BE HAMeRN EX(@BERE-LHE
(ZE—t+F - MB)ALZHE W
T

2018 2017

—E—N\F —E 4

HK$'000 HK$'000

EB¥TFT B F T

Salaries and other benefits Fre REAMmER 3,652 1,799

Performance-based bonus EWES 810 460
Contributions to retirement RARAE F 5T B84 50

benefits schemes 90 36

4,552 2,295

The emoluments of five (2017: two) of the highest paid
individuals were within the following bands:

AR (ZE—EF - MB) RS HMH
AL ZBE N FTHAER

Number of individuals

ABE®AB
2018 2017
—E—\F —T—+F
Nil to HK$1,000,000 B HE r £ % %1,000,0007T 3 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 71,000,001 T &
75 %1,500,0007T 2 1
5 2

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 no
remunerations were paid by the Group to the directors
or the five (2017: two) highest paid employees as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, three directors
of the Company, namely Mr. Zhang Bin, Mr. Wang
Tianlin and Mr. Yuan Shaoli, had waived their salaries of
approximately HK$800,000, HK$496,000 and HK$949,000
respectively (2017: none).

REBEEZZE—N\NFR_ZT—tF
+—A=+—HLEFE AEETE
MERNEZEEIRAEZ (ZE—tF: M
Z)EeHMNEE X NEMBE 1
BEEBEMAREE KN EMAR
SERN KRB SEREBB W

f&-

REBEE2=_Z—N\F+=-A=+—H
EFE ZZARAES (BIRE
TE - FTRHFEERRBELE) N
1% % 5 5l 4975 #800,0007T ~ /B K&
496,0007T & 78 #949,0007T B % &
(ZE—tF:E)-
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR M. EFREREEEME (&)
MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
(¢) Senior management’s emolument (c) EREEREEMS
The remuneration paid to the senior management (other RERN RSREERRE (B LXK
than the directors as disclosed in note 11 (a) above) for the N@EBEHESIN) ZHOMEN T
year fell within the following band: IZEEVE
Number of individuals
AR®H
2018 2017
—ZE—)\f§ —T—tF
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 7B %1,000,001 &
75 #1,500,0007T 1 1
DIVIDENDS 12. B2

12

13

No dividend in respect of the years ended 31 December 2018
and 2017 was proposed during the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2017, nor has any dividend proposed since the end of
the reporting period.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the
earnings for the year attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$113,440,000 (2017: HK$23,363,000) and on the weighted
average number of 5,796,985,000 (2017: 5,796,985,000) ordinary
shares in issue during the year excluding ordinary shares
purchased by the Company for share award scheme.

There were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding
during both years and hence the diluted earnings per share is the
same as basic earnings per share.
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BEREFN
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B F B #113,440,000c (—F—+HF 1 5
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14. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group participates in various defined contribution retirement
benefits schemes. The Group participates in the MPF Scheme
established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance
for those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of trustees.
Subject to a capped amount, the Group contributes 5% of the
relevant income for each employee to the MPF Scheme, the
amount of which is matched with that contributed by employees.
Contributions to the MPF Scheme vest immediately.

The employees of the Company's subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefits scheme
operated by the PRC government. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute 10% to 20% (2017: 10% to 20%) of payroll costs,
subject to a capped amount for each employee to the retirement
benefits scheme. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, contributions totalling
of HK$10,740,000 (2017: HK$9,141,000) were charged to the
profit or loss for the year.

14.

87} 55 ¥ 2% Bf 5%

iR ¢k ina #1512

AEE2 N AT BHEFTRKEMEE
AEERAERSERBLFE2EES
SR 158 i) 1 N TE 2 5T BRI RR L 2 92
HEREDEE - BREDFECEENBT
AARGZESHA YRAKEZEE
DR -AEERBEBAIEXNE25% (B L
R) RS 8 Mgt st 8I1FH #t50
& B INAE L ARE 2 HR - MR &5t
SMER N E AR 58 -

AARFEMNBEARIZEEA—TEFH
BREREzBERKNEIFEIZKE M
BRRIBEIERAZI0O%E20% (=
—tEF:10%FE20% ) [ R K18 F 5 2] £
K (BLEEHYE LR) - AEEHEKE
Fstglzc—EX_REHEEZHK-

RNBE_T—\F+ZA=+—HBIEF
& HB 110,740,000 (ZB—+ £
7 #69,141,00070 ) Z KRBT AFEEE

o

gt %

St
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. % - W= R ax s

Marine
travel
Furniture Motor facilities
and vehicles and Construction-
Buildings  equipment  and vessels  equipment in-progress Total
BLEBRER
L B BRRRR REREH B ERIE ait
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BETT BT BT BT BT BETT
Cost B¥
At 31 December 2016 RZE-"E+ZR=1-H 156,637 8,310 33,775 5,158 1832 205,712
Currency realignment ElRR 11,185 523 4,725 447 49 16,929
Additions AE - 882 43464 1,906 - 46,252
Disposals e - (117 1.942) - - (2,069)
Transfer 23 - - 1,501 - (1,501) =
Written-off i = = = = (380) (380)
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—tETZA=1-H 167822 9,598 81,523 7511 = 266,454
Currency realignment L 6,872) (376 (4,675) (372) 1,157) (13,452)
Additions AE - 200 8,114 - 27509 35,823
Disposals e (6,380 (718) (1,178) - - (8,276)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-RNELRR (27132) (29) - - - 27161)
Transfer B - - - - - -
Written-off i (2,574) - = = - (2,574)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NF+-B=1-H 124,864 8,675 83,784 7139 26,352 250,814
Accumulated depreciation RifE
At 31 December 2016 RZE-"E+ZR=1-H 20,707 8,025 15,551 2716 - 46,999
Currency realignment AR 1,759 196 2,330 (26) - 4,260
Provided for the year EnikE 6,438 888 6,342 7 - 14,442
Eliminated on disposals HERKH - (112) (1,850) - - 1,962)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+E+ZA=+-A 28,904 8,997 2373 3,465 - 63,739
Currency realignment gl 1,298 (632) (1578 (37) - (3,545
Provided for the year EnfkE 6,633 833 6,316 965 = 14,747
Eliminated on disposals HEREH 5,979) (663) (1,109) = = (7751)
Eliminated on disposal of a subsidiary &R B R AEHH (1,888) (20) - - - (1,908)
Eliminated on written-off il 221 - - - - (221
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\E+ZF=1-H 24,101 8,516 26,002 4,393 - 63,011
Carrying amounts FEE
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\E+-A=1-H 100,763 160 57782 2,746 26,352 187803
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tE+ZA=1-H 138,918 601 59,150 4,046 - 202,715

2018 Annual Report FERE
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16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

16. Mt LA R MK

2018 2017
—E-N\EF T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT JBEMEF T
Leasehold land in PRC: S L
- Medium-term leases — AL 40,603 202,446
2018 2017
—Z—-N\E —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BY¥TIT B TFor
Opening net carrying amount FYREFE 202,446 194,236
Amortisation charge for the year FANFEHET D (5,471) (5,429)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE KB AR (152,905) =
Currency realignment KRR (3,467) 13,639
Closing net carrying amount FRRHEFE 40,603 202,446
Analysed for reporting purposes as: AMIE2MAR
Current assets B & E 2,011 5,665
Non-current assets EMBEE 38,592 196,781
40,603 202,446

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017 the Group's prepaid land
lease payments represent up-front payments to acquire interest
in the usage of land situated in the PRC, which are held under

medium-term leases.

R_FB-N\EFR_F—tF+_A=+—
B AEEZEMN MBS N REEAL
P B R AR AR 2 T 2

FAT K e
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

17. BEME

2018 2017
ZE—\F Tt F
HK$'000 HK$'000
B¥TFIT B FoT
At fair value BAFE

At 1 January Rn—HA—H 63,816 58,934
Currency realignment Bk (4,985) 4,238

Gain on change in fair value RiBz ER
recognised in profit or loss NEBEE @Nﬁl 3,535 100
Additions NE 39,162 544
At 31 December R+=—A=+—AH 101,528 63,816

The carrying amount of investment properties shown above
represents properties situated in the PRC held under medium-
term leases.

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

The fair values of the Group's investment properties at 31
December 2018 and 2017 have been arrived at on the basis
of a valuation carried out on that date by Jones Lang Lasalle
Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited, the independent
qualified professional valuers. Jones Lang Lasalle Corporate
Appraisal and Advisory Limited are members of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors and have appropriate qualifications and
recent experience in the valuation of similar properties in the
relevant locations.
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group's
investment properties measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair
value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement is classified is
determined with reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

57} #5 ¥ 2= B 51

17. #BYE (F)

LFEEER

TREJIRREMRIZEEEEEFEN
REBKREMENRTE BRABFEM
BHRELRIFEIBRAFEAEEEN =&
RTEER RTVEAERENERELES
ZRETDETEANBAZBOABE L
NREZUEENT

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2018

RS- N\F+-A=+—AZATEHE

Fair value
as at
31 December
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2018
RZE-N\F
+-B=1+-—H
—iR —_& =% AN |
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
BETT BETFT ERTT BETT
Recurring fair value BEMHLOTFEHE
measurement
Investment properties: REME:
Property units - the PRC MEEN-FE - - 101,528 101,528
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2017
R-F—tF+-A=T-AZATEHE
Fair value
as at
31 December
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2017
RZE—+F
TZA=+-A
— — =8 2T
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000
BT BB BT BT
Recurring fair value BERLOTEME
measurement
Investment properties: REME
Property units - the PRC W B — = = 63,816 63,816

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, there were
no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out
of Level 3. The Group's policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period
in which they occur.

REBEZ2_ZTE—N\FEEK_FT—+F+_-A
=+ BLtHFE TE-—FHE_FZHEE
ERIR=ZFHNEAREL - REAEE
ZHE AFESHAFENERREELERN
B RIER o
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17. @M= (5)
BFEEH (#)

17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

REME 2 A FEB=REE LR FE
BE-FONRFRAFEHBBIHEMOT

The fair value of investment properties is a Level 3 recurring fair
value measurement. A reconciliation of the opening and closing
fair value balance is provided below.

2018 2017
—E—\EF —E—+tF
HK$ 000 HK$'000
BYETT BT T
Opening balance FHHRTE
(Level 3 recurring fair value) (ZHEEERFE) 63,816 58,934
Currency realignment BErRE (4,985) 4,238
Fair value change NEEE) 3,535 100
Additions NE 39,162 544
Closing balance FRHBTE
(Level 3 recurring fair value) (ZHEEERFE) 101,528 63,816
Change in unrealised gains for Rt+t-—B=+—8B#%
the year included in profit or loss BEFAEBZNEA
for assets held at 31 December REIE W 3,535 100

FR=HLFEAEZEH - RFREHY
HEL

Information about Level 3 fair value measurement -
Property units in the PRC

BHE-_Z—\FrR-_ZEZ—tF+=A
—t+t—HLEFE RAFEDEEERABRA
ERBEBEZSEME G HEEEEE
HEDEREURERAOREMSE LER

Fair value is determined by applying the income approach for
the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 and based on the
estimated rental value of the properties. The valuation takes into
account the expected vacancy rates and rental growth rates of
the respective properties which are supported by the terms of LA KON 8 0% (nRIAEY 36 2 TR 35 18
the existing lease, other contracts and external evidence such as SIZEBYMECEHREERRHEEER
current market rents of similar properties. &Ko
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurement -
Property units in the PRC (Continued)

87} 55 ¥ 2% Bf 5%

17. @YX (F)
SFEEH (#)

FR=ZRLFEAEZEH - RFEHY
HEM (F)

Relationship of unobservable

Significant unobservable inputs Range inputs to fair value
EXAABRRGANE il AUERBANBEACTEHZRE
Term yield 3.0% -4.0% The higher the monthly rent, reversionary vyield,
per annum expected vacancy rate and discount rate, the
(2017: 3.0% - lower the fair value
3.5% per annum)
G HAE BF3.0%—4.0% AME EEDHRX BHEEXRLMREDS 8
—E—tF: AFEDE
HF3.0%—3.5%)
Adjustment on term yield 1.0% (2017: 0.5%)
FHIE K 7 1.0%
(ZZE—tF:05%)
Expected vacancy rate 0% - 8.0%
(2017: 7.0% — 9.0%)
TREZEE X 0% —8.0%
(ZE2—+t%:70%—
9.0% )
Discount rate 3.5% -4.5%
per annum
(2017: 3.5% -
4.0% per annum)
AL IR & HFF3.5%—4.5%
(Z=—tF:8F

3.5%—4.0%)

There has been no change in the valuation technique used in
the prior year. In estimating the fair value of the properties, the
highest and best use of the properties is their current use.

RE—FERFBZGETEL EEE-
WEHMEZRAFER ERENEZRES
MRERGNASEERE-
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

For the Year Ended 31 December 2018 | B Z=-Z—\&+-A=+—HALEFE

18. RIFB AR ZHE

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEWBARGFHELT
Particulars of Equity
Place of paid-up capital/ interest
incorporation/ issued share owned by
Company operations capital the Company Principal activities
MR BMEEEX F /N
N EEME ERTREHEE HAZHE IEXH
%
Directly held:
HERS:
Galactic Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 Investment holding
HFONRE B R A A BB 27T & R
Indirectly held:
BESHH -
BB BR QA ** The PRC RMB50,000,000 100 Property development
H AR )% % R
50,000,0007T
BBEALBBREBRAA*  The PRC RMB 150,000,001 66.67 Property development
H AR Y
150,000,0017T
BEREHERR AR The PRC US$40,000,000 100 Finance leasing
H 40,000,000% 7T MEHEE
HAERESERAE]** The PRC RMB100,000,000 100 Bulk commodity trade
H AR ATREmR S
100,000,0007T
AL IRER AR A A ** The PRC RMB50,000,000 51 Bulk commodity trade
H AR ATREmR S
50,000,0007T
78 A 28 BE 2 Kt SRR bY The PRC RMB96,000,000 100 Provision of marine
AR AT ** A Y AR travelling services
96,000,0007T TR ik e AR 75
BERES KM FEE The PRC RMBS,000,000 100 Hotel business
BRAF** H AR #8,000,00070 B JE B R
o Established in the PRC as a Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise & RABIKY 2 FIMG BEE R E

*x A limited liability company established in the PRC

2018 Annual Report FERE
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results of the year or formed a substantial portion
of the assets and liabilities of the Group. To give details of
other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities as at 31
December 2018 and 2017 or at any time during the respective
year.

The following table lists out the information relating to #3& A %
EEREBERAR and FBERERAR AT, the subsidiaries
of the Company which have material non-controlling interests
(“NICI"). The summarised financial information presented below
represents the amounts before any inter-company elimination.

87} 55 ¥ 2% Bf 5%

18. RMIBARIZHE (5)

ERIHEARREERREIEZEAEH
FARXRBAWKAAEBABLEENE
BZARAMBAR -ARREEEEL
FRIEATIR - I |5 A I B A R 2 &

I o

RZEBE—N\ER_T—+F+_A=+—
A& FAEMEERE IWENE QR %
EEAEEES-

NRIIH AR R BFAERIFERE R
(THRRERRES ) NHMBERRNBENEE
BREERARRBBERERGR QA
MEF - AT 25 2 B E R R B RE
Ef] 2 ] EHE 85 AT 2 BUAE ©

HEXEBERRERLT BEREERERAF
2018 2017 2018 2017
—ZE-)\f —T—tF —E-N\§ —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKs$000 HK$'000
BRBTT BT BETIT BT
As at 31 December ®+=B=+—H
NCI percentage FERERE AL 33.33% 33.33% 49.00% 49.00%
Current assets RBAE 410,006 451,111 77,935 141,797
Non-current assets EnBEE 140 213 56 105
Current liabilities TEaE (79,615) (96,133) (24,681) (80,072)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE - = = -
Net assets BERE 330,531 355,191 53,310 61,830
Carrying amount of NCI FERERREE 110,166 118,385 26,122 30,297
For the year ended 8EF+-H=+—-H
31 December LEE
Turnover e 384 - 614,721 684,775
{Loss)/profit for the year FR(BR) & (7,209) (7.107) 771 5,218
Total comprehensive income MW &4 (24,659) 16,757 (1,164) 9,204
(Loss)/profit allocated to NCI DI EFFHEREL 2
(B#8) /&7 (2,403) (2,369) 378 2,557
Dividend paid to NCI BRIEERER ZRE - - 3,604 =
For the year ended 8EX+-HA=+—H
31 December LEE
Cash flows from REFHEEZHERE
operating activities 2,043 (923) 15,681 33,316
Cash flows from REEDEEZRERE
investing activities 196 5,607 24 (99)
Cash flows from BMERHEECHERE
financing activities - - (7,356) (35)
Net cash inflows BenAFE 2,239 4,684 8,349 33,182
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19. DEPOSITS PAID 19. EffE s
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—LF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Deposits paid for purchase of property, MEBEWE WENM
plant and equipment REENz2®RE - 4,966
20. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE/ 20. BEHEDE BRPHME
PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
Properties held under development comprise leasehold land BERPEBEREEERERTHELIK
and certain construction costs in the PRC under medium-term FERERABORTREZIENHEE it
lease for commercial use and long lease for residential use. The FETEEXNA - ZREREAERAEE
amount is expected to be recovered within the Group's operating o E BRI El - ALY AR ENE E o
cycle, thus, it is classified as current assets.
Upon completion of construction works, completed properties BRIBTI® TIMNERTMERLE
under development will be transferred to properties held for sale. AR EHEME -
During the year ended 31 December 2018, no properties under REEZE=ZZE-—NF+ZA=+—HIHF
development was transferred to properties held for sale (2017: B UEZEETDFEEASEHEEDE
HK$147.243,000). — T — 5 B#147243,0007T) °
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT 21. BFEZSRDE
The properties held for development mainly comprises leasehold REERVEZTEBEREBERERHHELIN
land in the PRC under medium-term and long leases without FEFE HMARKRELINEE %
commencement of construction works. The amount is expected FIBEF R —REEBHAWE - E it
to be recovered within the normal operating cycle and therefore P BmBNEE
classified as current assets.
22. INVENTORIES 22. &8
2018 2017
—E—N\E§ TE— 4
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Bulk commodities KR P 11,978 =
Merchandises and consumables 72 om X8 76 oh 3,992 4,281
15,970 4,281
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

57} #5 ¥ 2= B 51

23. RARAMEWHREA

2018 2017
—E—)\F —E
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Trade and bills receivables (note a) B S RN RIE K EREE
(Hiita) 8,475 20,659
Prepayments to suppliers I 44 JE 7 7B A5 R IE 111,353 71,493
Other prepayments and deposits (note b) EfbIBN KB ML S (#aEb) 43,747 7147
Other receivables H b fE UK SR IR 23,131 29,741
Total trade and other receivables (note ¢) B 5 K H b & U FUIE 42 58
(Ktite) 186,706 129,040

Notes:

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017 trade receivables mainly arose from
bulk commodity trading and no credit period was granted to customers
(2017: 0 day to 45 days) of bulk commodity trading business.

Bills receivables were due within 1 year (2017: 1 year) from the date of
issuance.

The Group normally grants credit terms to its customers according to
industry practice together with consideration of their creditability and
repayment history. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by
senior management.

The following is an ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

Hiat -

(a)

RZE-—NEFER=ZF—tFF+=_A=+—
B B2ORKAEXZREATEARES
MARRRESEXREIBER TRIES
(ZZ—LF:0845K) °

FUEEREETHARES —F(ZF—t
£ —F)RNEH-

AEEBEREBEEANTRLEZEEBEFHER
REREELE AFESRHREDR RN
[B ) sfe S L AR W B0 7 R M R R A A AR O 9
Hlo- MBS ERmRREEERR -

RBERRRERAH 2R E HRIKKIA
REWERZERERSTAOT

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+tF

HK$ 000 HK$'000

BYTFT BT T

Within 90 days 90K A 378 16,999
91 - 180 days 91E 180K 8,097 3,660
8,475 20,659
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23. SR HEMBEWRHRE(E)
(Continued)
Notes:(Continued) BoeE: (&)
(@) (Continued) (a) (%)
The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables presented that are not AERBEEREZE S EYGRERERE
considered to be credit-impaired is as follows: BZERERSMAT
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$ 000
BYTFIT B F T
Not yet past due i8] 7K 188 B 8,097 20,659
Less than one month past due BN —EA 378 -
8,475 20,659
(b) During the year ended 31 December 2017 the Group has written off (b) REBEE=ZT—+tF+-_A=+—BHLEFE"
prepayments of HK$4,464,000 which were considered as uncollectable. REE B —EHAR A EE KB M TE R K
1575 #54,464,0007T ©
(c) As at 31 December 2018, loss allowance of HK$177,000 (2017: nil) were (c) R=ZZ—NF+=-A=+—HB BE#ES
made against the gross amount of trade and other receivables. REMBRKRIBEBRETIREEREBAL

17700070 ( — T —H4F &) -

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade and other FRNE G R E A EYGRIER S ERERT R
receivables during the year is as follows: EHHBOT:
2018 2017
—E—N\E —T—tF
HK$000 HK$'000
BETFIT B F T
Balance at 31 December under HKAS 39 BEE B G ERIFE395
R+t=—A=+—B8&H - -
Impact on initial application of HKFRS 9 BRERAE AR RS2SR
(note 2.1) BRI HE (K:72.1) 17 =
Adjusted balance at 1 January R—A—BWNEAEER 17 =
Impairment losses recognised during the year RERNERNREEE 160 -
Balance at 31 December RT-_A=+—H®NE 177 =
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24. LOANS RECEIVABLE

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 11 (2017: 9) sale and
leaseback agreements pursuant to which the customers (the
“lessees”) sold their equipment and facilities to the Group and
leased back the equipment and facilities with the lease period
of 1 to 3 years (2017: 3 years) from the date of inception. In
addition, the ownership of leased assets will be transferred to
the lessees at a purchase option of RMB1 upon the settlement
of the receivable and the interest accrued under the sale and
leaseback arrangements. The lessees retain control of the
equipment and facilities before and after entering into the sale
and leaseback arrangements which do not therefore constitute
a lease for accounting purposes. Rather, the arrangements
have been accounted for as a secured loan in accordance with
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
in previous years and continues to be accounted for as financial
assets at amortised cost in accordance with HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments in current year.

87} 55 ¥ 2% Bf 5%

24. B E R

R-ZB-NF+_A=+—H AEEHK
*ﬁ”r*{ (Z2—tF: Nfp) EREER
#ZoEi 7P ([&RBF ) BERELR

M ETAREE W HEERZ BE—

E-F(ZE—tF:=F)cHEHRE
Bz ERERRE I REREEZR
BEE T RUGAR B A S AEBER  BE

gﬁﬁjﬂx/{/\ﬁm1ﬁfT@iﬁ%/\%m%ﬁT

EHEEENRBAESE T RME -5
T%EEREHEL AR AHE T RER
BRREHIESE gt REmME L
THEK—BAHE MARTHERNEESF
EREREGTERFIGE &R T A:
BRLE]ER—AAERERI K

I KEERANFERIBEF B IREER
Fo5 [ R T A | ABRRIASE A A SRR
M EREE

2018 2017
—N\E§E —ET—tF
HK$ 000 HK$'000
BYTTT JEBT T

Analysed for reporting purposes as: AMIE2MAR
Current assets MBNEE 421,236 358,359
Non-current assets FERBEE 245,700 383,902
666,936 742,261

As at 31 December 2018, effective interest rates ranged from
approximately 5.22% to 8.12% (2017: 6.50% to 8.20%) per
annum.

The loans receivable under the sale and leaseback arrangements
are secured by the land and buildings, leased equipment and
facilities and customers’ deposits and the Group has obtained
guarantees provided by the controlling shareholders or related
parties of the lessees. The Group is not permitted to sell or re-
pledge the collateral in absence of default by the lessees. The
lessees are obliged to settle the amounts according to the terms
set out in the relevant contracts.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017 the fair value of loans
receivable approximates to its carrying amount.

R_ZE—N\F+_A=+—8 BEERFFH
RANFH5.22%%E8.12% (—Z T — L4 :
6.50%%E8.20% ) °

%?&@TE;?%FIETJ?HSZE?ALAim&E
FT HERBRREARELFRIER
- BARE B S AT B E Hxﬁxﬁifﬁ
BEHRE R - EAED RBONE)
T AEETFEHEZERRLH Hf@
e AZMN BEBIRBIAME D PTEIGR
EERERIE

KT \FR-F—t&E+-A=+—
A RS RO AFEREEEERE
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24. LOANS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 24 BEWER(E)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of loans FREREZNEERERTNESFE
receivable during the year is as follows: R
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BY¥TIT BT or

Balance at 31 December under HKAS 39 1B1% % € 5t £ 8| F395%
Rt+-—A=+—B8%&E% = =
Impact on initial application of HKFRS 9 &)X & B3 & /4 B 765 3R &5 2 8|

(note 2.1) BOR B (Hfat2.1) 233 -
Adjusted balance at 1 January R—A—BREHELEH 233 =
Impairment losses reversed during NGANEEAE PRI SE

the year (105) -
Exchange difference N = (7) =
Balance at 31 December R+-—A=+—BW&% 121 =

25. AMOUNT DUE FROM A NON-CONTROLLING 25. [l — B 8 2 5] — 45 JF 2 B B

SHAREHOLDER OF A SUBSIDIARY L & ]

The amount due from a non-controlling shareholder of a FEM —FEIMT B A R — R IEERBRIRFIAR
subsidiary has been fully repaid during the year ended 31 REBEE-Z—\F+_A=+—HLFE
December 2018. THEE-

As at 31 December 2017, the amount due from a non-controlling R-ZE—+tF+-_A=+—H EK—M
shareholder of a subsidiary was unsecured, repayable on M8 A Bl — & FEIE AR AR R FRIE A i -
demand and bore interest at 5.70% per annum. BEREERIRFENES70%5T S °
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26. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS/AVAILABLE- 26. Hth&MEE "HHESME

FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS/HELD-FOR- E BEEEES
TRADING SECURITIES
At At At
31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
RZZ-I\E RZZE-N\& RZZF—+&
+ZR=+-H —HA—H +-A=+—H
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
ERTT BETFT BETT
Non-current: Fim:
Financial assets measured at FVOCI BROTEEHAALM2EAREZ
(non-recycling) SMEE (FTEARE)
- Equity investments -EaRE 4,984 5,246 -
Available-for-sale financial assets THHESHEE
- Unlisted equity investments, at cost ~URAARRNFE LR E - - 5,246
Current: bid 1
Financial assets measured at FVOCI BOTEERHARKMZAKEYZ
(non-recycling) SMEE (FIHARS)
Equity investments EaRE
- Shares listed in Hong Kong ~INEB ETRRG 104,140 170,180 -
Financial assets measured at FVOCI BROTEEHFAALMR2AREZ
(recycling) SMEE (THAER)
Debt investments BHHRE
- Term note with interest of 8.125% per -G REREML LT
annum, duak-listed in Singapore and RES.125%HH 8 2%
Ireland - 167,180 -
Financial assets measured at FVPL BOTEAARBCEMEE =
- Shares listed in Hong Kong -REBLTHRG 1,125 1173 -
- Unlisted investments (notefa)) ~FETRE (Hita) 421,847 322,910 =
- Fund investments ~HeRE - 41,271 =
Financial assets at amortised cost DHBRFEARHENEE
- Unlisted investments with interest ranging ~ — M TR F4.0% 2 7.0%FIf1 &
from 4.0% to 7.0% per annum FEMRE 74,100 - -
- Structured bank deposits with interest ~NTIRE2.9%Z4.5%HH 8
ranging from 2.9% to 4.5% per annum ERUERITER 239,400 - -

China Chengtong Development Group Limited FEBEHREBER LT
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26. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS/AVAILABLE-

26. Ht&MEE "THHESRE

FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS/HELD-FOR- E BEERRESF (&)
TRADING SECURITIES (Continued)
At At At
31 December 1 January 31 December
2018 2018 2017
RIB-\E RZE-\& WZE—t%&
+ZA=1+—-8 —-A-A +-A=+-H
HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000
BRTFT BEFT BEFT
Held-for-trading securities HEREES - - 1173
Available-for-sale financial assets HHESHEE (//F0)
(note (b))
Listed debt investments, at fair value: AATFBARN EMEBRE:
—Term note with interest of 8.125% per ~REMEREBE ML £ T
annum, dua-listed in Singapore and REB 12BN EE
Ireland - - 167180
Listed equity investments, NAFEARHLEHRERE:

at fair value:

- Shares listed in Hong Kong ~-REB LMORG - - 170,180
Fund investments, at fair value NATFEARHESRE - = 41,271
Unlisted investments, at cost URFAERELTRE

- Investment with interest ranging from ~NTHEE33%ETT%H

3.3% t0 7.7% per annum ME#kE - - 321,600
840,612 702,714 701,404
Notes: B &
(a) The balances represented the trust products issued by PRC banks and (a) RERT R RITREMEEETL

financial institutions which invested in underlying assets without open

or active quotations.

(b) Available-for-sale financial assets were reclassified to financial assets (b)
measured at FVPL and FVOCI upon the initial application of HKFRS 9 at

1 January 2018 (see note 2.1).
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DEPOSITS IN OTHER FINANCIAL
INSTITUTION

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company entered
into a financial services agreement with China Chengtong
Finance Corporation Ltd. (“Chengtong Finance"”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of CCHG, pursuant to which Chengtong
Finance agreed to provide the Group with a range of financial
services, including the deposit services, up to 31 December
2017. Such financial services agreement expired on 31 December
2017.

On 29 December 2017, Chengtong Finance entered into a new
financial services agreement (“New Financial Services
Agreement”) with the Company pursuant to which Chengtong
Finance agreed to provide the Group with a range of financial
services, including the deposit services, for a term from 1
January 2018 to 31 December 2020. Details in relation to the
New Financial Services Agreement are set out in the Company's
announcement dated 29 December 2017

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has had current deposits of
HK$112,338,000 (2017: HK$86,200,000) with Chengtong Finance
with interest ranged from 0.42% to 1.62% (2017: 0.42% to
1.62%) per annum.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND

27.

28.

87} 55 ¥ 2% Bf 5%

H fih & B2 48 7 &

BHE-_T—AF+-_A=1+—HLEE"
AREEBBHEEREETAR (([HRB
M) SEERZZEMB AR
SRR - Bt B BRERAE
BIRH RIS RRY BHRFRRE -
EE T tHF+=-A=+—HAl %
ERBRBHER T —tFT_A=1—
HEH-

R-ZTE—+tHE+-_A-+hB #HBETHH
BEARRNF R Er RS 7% ([ &Rk
Biglk) Bt BREBEVERERAAEE
RE—ZRIEBRY 2EFEIRS 5
BE_ZE—N\F—A—HEE_Z_ZTF
+=—A=+—HiE-EEFEBRE
ZHBERARBGBHA-_ZT &+
A-t+hBzZzRr&ER-

RZE—NE+=_A=+—RH K&
EEMRBBEMENEHERAES
#112,338,000c (= ZE— Lt F : B ¥
86,200,0007T) * F A XN F0.42% %
1.62% (ZZB—+4F:042%%1.62% ) °

BITHRERARLURECERRIT

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND OTHER EREHMBEREZTH
CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(a) Bank balances and cash and pledged bank (a) REeBFRASURECEMNSERTE
deposits =®
2018 2017
—E—N\E S
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETIT BT T
Bank balances and cash HITRERRS
Cash at banks and in hand RITEFHERE 791,265 749,708
Pledged bank deposits BEHRTER
Deposits pledged against banking MEBETFEBAZRITHE
facilities granted to mortgagees B2 FR 1,257 1,321
Other secured deposits E b AT 2,558 2,685
3,815 4,006

China Chengtong Development Group Limited FEBEHREBER LT
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28. BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND OTHER
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

(a)

Bank balances and cash and pledged bank
deposits (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

For the year ended 31 December 2018, bank balances
deposited in Hong Kong banks carry interest ranged
from 0.01% to 0.50% (2017: from 0.01% to 0.10%)
per annum.

Bank balances deposited in PRC banks carry interest
at benchmark rate offered by The People’'s Bank of
China.

Bank balances and cash and pledged bank deposits
held by the Company's PRC subsidiaries and
deposited with banks in the PRC amounting to
HK$560,614,000 (2017: HK$717,232,000) were
denominated in RMB which are not a freely
convertible currency in the international market. The
RMB exchange rate is determined by the Government
of the PRC and the remittance of these funds out of
the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions imposed
by the Government of the PRC.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had time
deposits of HK$12,000,000 placed with banks
with original maturity period of six months and
earned interest income at interest rate of 1.3% per
annum. The entire amount of time deposits as of 31
December 2017 was included in “bank balances and
cash”.

As required by the PRC State-Owned Land and
Resource Bureau, certain property development
companies of the Group are required to place in
designated bank accounts the pre-sale proceeds
of properties to finance the construction of the
related properties. The deposits can only be used for
purchases of construction materials and payments of
construction fees of the relevant property projects
when approval from the PRC State-Owned Land
and Resource Bureau is obtained. The directors
considered these bank deposits form part of the
Group's normal operating fund, which was included in
“bank balances and cash”, and was presented as part
of cash and cash equivalents.

The cash deposited in the designated bank
accounts for the aforesaid specific usage as at 31
December 2018 amounted to HK$16,746,000 (2017:
HK$33,421,000).
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BERBARLREERRIT
)

FRERAMAERERH (B

(a)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

HeRmERASLRCENRTE
®(E)

HE_Z—N\F+=-_A=+—81t
FEE - REBRITZETEENSF
FENF0.01%%E0.50% ( —F—+
F:NF0.01%%F0.10% ) °

R BZRITZRITEFZEPREA
RIRITAMZ ELEFIREE

RARABzHBEHBRARFESEA
75 #560,614,0007C ( =T —H 4
75 #6717232,00000) ZSRIT &£ 1F &
BEURERFRITFERIAARE
HE YERRFEZIET EAR
AT RBEBRMISE M AT AR
ZERAABEBGEE mETEE
HTEBESLETTFRBMNE K2
P& & HIl FT AR BR o

R=B—tF+=A=+—A"
A9 B R R AT 15 E B0 OB
12,000,0007T - [R B HR A7 ME A -
3 134 FI K 1.3% IR B IA - B
E_E—tEf-A=+—AZE
BERSS BRI [RITERE

il

RIFEPEE L+ EREBNRE  NEE
ETHERBERARARETERITP
OFAMEREMSHNZR  FRE
BEEDENES -ZEFXEATH
EBEEZEMBERTBEBELER
RHLERBYMERE R NEER
B-BEZRE BRARTHEIBRAE
SE-—REEESHN 20 XEF
ATRTEFERE | RIEREAEE R
ReFEMN—#modk-

R=ZE—NE+=—B=+—H 7
ERITEOGFRELEMBFEEAERZ
4 AE16,746,0007T (Z T —+
£ : 75 #33,421,0007T) °
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28. BITHFRBAKLURCENEBIT

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

Other cash flow information

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

FRERAMASRERH (&)

(b) HtR&FTERH

MERDEEANBEYR

Bank
borrowings
(note 31)
HMITHES
(BH&EE31)
HK$'000
B¥TFIT
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—-—N\F—H—H 214,400
Changes from financing cash flows: REMERSRENEEH)
Proceeds from new bank loans SIRITERTBRIA 77,350
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (14,280)
Interest paid B A8 (9,039)
Total changes from financing REMERSTENE B AT
cash flows 54,031
Exchange adjustments PE i 3 #& (3,370)
Other changes: H b & &)
Interest expenses A EFAX 6,505
Capitalised borrowing costs BEREEEKA 2,534
Total other changes Hibh &g ass 9,039
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F+-_A=+—H 274,100

China Chengtong Development Group Limited FEBEHREBER LT
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28. BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND
PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND OTHER
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued)

28. RITHERAEGLIRCIENRTT
FRERAMASRERH (&)

(b) Other cash flow information (Continued) (b) HtREREFH (&)
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: BMEETHEEMNBELYER . (8)
(Continued)

Bank
borrowings Corporate
(note 31) bonds Total
RITEE
(Mt3E31) NAREFH #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T B TFor
At 1 January 2017 R=—ZE—+tF—H—H 77,280 667,219 744,499
Changes from financing REBERSREME
cash flows: &
Proceeds from new bank MRITE RS RE
loans 200,000 - 200,000
Repayment of bank loans BERIRITER (65,550) - (65,550)
Repayment of corporate BERARESH
bonds = (678,000) (678,000)
Interest paid [EEREIES (7,385) (9,540) (16,925)
Total changes from REMERSRENEE)
financing cash flows B 127,065 (687,540) (560,475)
Exchange adjustments ME W, 8 & 2,670 5,988 8,658
Other changes: H b )
Interest expenses FERX 1,404 11,544 12,948
Capitalised borrowing costs & ZAR{b f& &k 7&K 5,981 2,789 8,770
Total other changes HanF B R 7,385 14,333 21,718
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+t&+=A
=+—H 214,400 - 214,400
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29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

29. RS R R FE T HRIR

2018 2017
—E—-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT B FoT
Trade payables (note (a)) B SN FIE (Hita) 13,030 14,941
Other payables and accruals i JE 1 5RIB K FE 5T B 52,516 40,547
Deposits received 2l e 14,820 =
Advances received B # 5K - 55,867
Accrual of construction costs JEETTIZER 40,360 45,514
120,726 156,869
Note: Bst -
(a)  The ageing analysis of the trade payables presented based on the (a) RBERRLZEZAHEROE S EN KA
invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as follows: RO -
2018 2017
—E—N\F —FT—tF
HK$°'000 HK$'000
BETFT BT T
Within one year —FR 10,105 11,500
Over one year but less than two years BB —FELRMF - 67
Over two years but less than three years BAMFEEIR=F 2,925 3,374
13,030 14,941

30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The Group has recognised the following revenue-related contract

30. a¥E®R
AEECRATIIKFHEELLEE:

liabilities:
1 January
31 December 2018 31 December
2018 (Note) 2017
—E—N\F
—ZE—-N\E —A—H —E—tF
+=—A=+—H (#e) +=-—A=+—8H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BY¥TrT JEMEF T JEMEF T
Contract liabilities related to BEYMEHEEN
property sales EHEE 163,266 128,921 =
Contract liabilities related to FRARAFTEmESN
bulk commodity trade EHEE 43,830 55,867 =
207,096 184,788 -
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 using the cumulative effect Kt : AEBENSERAEANBRELERIFE 155

method and adjusted the opening balances at 1 January 2018.

ERAMTEL UHRBER T /\F—H

—BEERe
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30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) 30. 8MAR (&)
Movements in contract liabilities SHARZED
2018
—E—)\F
HK$°000
BYFIT
Balance at 1 January »— B — B 184,788
— Decrease in contract liabilities as a result —EHNEERFRER
of recognising revenue during the REVFTAGHBE 2 KSR D
year that was included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the year (81,953)
— Increase in contract liabilities as a result —EHNEBERATERES
of billing in advance of bulk commodity AT A E M
trade 43,830
— Increase in contract liabilities as a result of —& 48 &R 4 A U EL
receiving sales deposits and instalments RZE—N\F+=ZA=+—8
during the year in respect of properties MEEMEZHERER
still under construction as at 31 2 B s m 42 o0
December 2018 60,431
Balance at 31 December R+ A=+—HHN&E# 207,096

As at 31 December 2018, the amount of HK$207096,000
unsatisfied performance obligations resulting from property sales
and bulk commodity trade were expected to be recognised as
income within one year.

R-ZE—NE+_A=+—H DEHEE
FRAREmE S EEMNEE207096,000
TTHRERBHNSTERR —FERNERE
WA e

31. BANK BORROWINGS 31. SRITHRE
2018 2017
—E—N\E —E—LF
HK$ 000 HK$'000
BYTIT BT T
Unsecured bank borrowings EIEHRITHESE
Short-term bank loans MERITER 274,100 214,400

The short-term bank loans were unsecured and repayable within
one year from the end of the reporting period.

The effective interest rates of the bank loans ranged from 2.67%

to 5.90% per annum at 31 December 2018 (2017: 2.62% to
5.22%).
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32. UNSECURED OTHER LOAN

33.

Unsecured other loan from third parties is unsecured, repayable
on demand and interest-free.
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32. MBI HAME R

FZTRHZEAREME R REE
B AEREREENRE

DEFERRED TAX 33.EERIA
Deferred tax liabilities BERBEAR
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities and RAFERNEFEEEZENEERIE
movement thereon during the current and prior year: BERESHHFINAT :
Revaluation
of prepaid
land lease Undistributed
payments profits of PRC
and properties subsidiaries* Total
FftLit
HEMFRR REMRE LT
MEER FAEFH it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB TFr BB TFr BB Fr
At 31 December 2016 R-ZB—RE
+=ZB=+-—H 55,113 17975 73,088
Charge to profit or loss (note 9) RIBEF N (H:#9) 25 3,163 3,188
Exchange differences BN ER 3,938 1,421 5,359
At 31 December 2017 R-Z—t%F
+=B=+—H 59,076 22,5659 81,635
Charge to profit or loss (note 9) Rz (H729) 884 6,557 7441
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 37) HE—RNBAR (A7:£37) (21,240) = (21,240)
Transferred to current tax payable EYEEMINRHE - (13,090) (13,090)
Exchange differences fEHERE (2,099) (853) (2,952)
At 31 December 2018 R-Z—N\%E
+=ZB=+-H 36,621 15,173 51,794

*

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends

declared in respect of profits earned by PRC entities to a non-PRC
holding company from 1 January 2008 onwards.

REFHECERERE BT N\F—A
— B e B Ak P2 v A 1) I o B AR
R EE KA BB IAEL
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33. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 33.BERT (&)
Deferred tax assets BERBERE
The Group has estimated unused tax losses not recognised in REB RN B RERPER 2R
the consolidated financial statements as follows: FAMEBESHYIT
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Estimated unused tax losses HErARE AR IBEE 138,426 140,828
No deferred tax asset in respect of the abovementioned =i == B =R B I i 23 A
estimated unused tax losses have been recognised due B ADAREBEEERELEHIEE
to unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in the E-AEREFADATEERETARE
unrecognised estimated unused tax losses are losses of 4778 #63,5643,000C (ZZF — L F : B
approximately HK$63,543,000 (2017: HK$67,133,000) that will 67,133,0007T) i R ¥ & B G A F A
expire on various dates within five years from the reporting T FRIBEAR|E 2 518 - et RB A
dates. Other estimated unused tax losses may be carried HEE ] R -

forward indefinitely.

34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. B®
THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY
FEEARELF
2018 2017
ZE-)\f ZE—+tF

Number of Number of

shares shares

RS E RiDEE
‘000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$ 000
F& BBTT TR BEFT

Issued and fully paid: BETREMR:

At 1 January and 31 December A—A—BRTZA=+—A 5,808,735 2,185,876 5,808,735 2,185,876
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE
AWARD SCHEME

(a)

Share option scheme

The Company has adopted the share option scheme
(the “Scheme"”) on 27 June 2013. The purpose of the
Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to participants
thereunder for their contribution to the Group and/or
to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-caliber
employees and attract human resources that are valuable
to the Group and any invested entity.

Eligible participants of the Scheme include (a) any
employee (whether full-time or part-time, including any
executive director but excluding any non-executive director
of the Company) of, or any individual for the time being
seconded to work for the Company, any subsidiary or
any entity in which any member of the Group holds any
equity interest (“Invested Entity”) or any employee or
officer of the controlling shareholder of the Company; (b)
any non-executive director (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Company, any subsidiary or
any Invested Entity; (c) any suppliers of goods or services
to any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; (d)
any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity; (e) any
person or entity that provides research development or
other technological support to the Group or any Invested
Entity; (f) any shareholder of any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued or
proposed to be issued by any member of the Group or any
invested entity; (g) any adviser (professional or otherwise)
or consultant to the Group relating to any area of business
or business development of any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity; and (h) any joint venture or business
partner of the Group who have contributed or may
contribute to the development and growth of the Group.
For the proposes of the Scheme, the offer may be made
to any company wholly owned by one or more eligible
participants. The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years commencing on the date it was adopted
and will end on 26 June 2023.

An offer of the grant of an option under the Scheme (the
"Option”) may be accepted within 21 days from the date
of grant together with a remittance of HK$1.00 by way
of consideration for the grant thereof. An Option may be
exercised during such period as the board of directors may
in its absolute discretion determine, save that such period
shall not be more than 10 years from the date of grant.
The maximum number of shares which may be allotted and
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes adopted by the Group shall not exceed
30% of the share capital of the Company in issue from
time to time.
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35. W Bx 42 51 8 & B {7 58 Wh &+ &1

(a)

iR st &

ARARERZZB—=F A=+t
BEtmiERcEst & ([etl]) - 518
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A ANEE/ER B A R Sk EM
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R ARAQTEMATES B
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IREIZAAR]  ANE B AR B A R
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7] A B A A S A E B A
ERERTESE (BIEBILIERIT
BE) c)ANEEEMKERQRISHE
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BEABI0FY R _TE—_=F A
i pAN= = S

FHEITE TR AR E ([RERRE )
AIRRE Z B#21HARES R
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SERMEMBRESTSER T
MATHENRZIRBEREETFER
Al AR B R BT R D R AEE N
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE
AWARD SCHEME (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Share option scheme (Continued)

The subscription price for the shares on the exercise of
the Option shall be determined at the discretion of the
board of directors which shall not be less than the higher
of (i) the closing price of the Company's shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date
of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the Company's
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations
sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of grant, and (iii) the nominal value of the Company's
shares (note). Holding period will be determined by
directors upon granting.

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no
share option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
under the Scheme. There was no option outstanding as at
31 December 2018 and 2017.

Note: Pursuant to the Companies Ordinance, which came into
operation on 3 March 2014, the shares of the Company have
ceased to have nominal value.

Share award scheme

The previous share award scheme of the Company (the
"Expired Scheme"”) was approved and adopted by the
board of directors on 25 April 2012. The Expired Scheme
had a term of five years from its adoption date and has
expired on 24 April 2017 On 24 April 2017, a total of
11,750,000 shares remain to be held by the trustee for the
purpose of the Expired Scheme.

In order to continue to provide a means to (i) recognise
the contributions by certain selected employees and
to give incentives to them for the continual operation
and development of the Group; and (ii) attract suitable
personnel for the growth and further development of the
Group, the Company has adopted a new share award
scheme (the “New Scheme"”) which became effective
on 1 July 2017 (the "Effective Date"”). Subject to any
early termination as may be determined by the board of
directors, the New Scheme remains valid and effective for
5 years commencing from the Effective Date.
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE

AWARD SCHEME (Continued)
(b) Share award scheme (Continued)

The board of directors or the trustee shall not make any
further award of shares to the selected employees which
will result in the total number of shares awarded by the
board of directors under the New Scheme exceeding 1%
of the total ordinary shares in the share capital of the
Company as at the Effective Date.

Upon the New Scheme becoming effective, the 11,750,000
shares held by the trustee under the Expired Scheme will
continue to be held by the trustee for the purpose of the
New Scheme.

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no
ordinary share of the Company was purchased by the
trustee for the purpose of the New Scheme or the Expired
Scheme and no award of share was granted to the selected
employees under the New Scheme or the Expired Scheme.

As at 31 December 2018, the trustee held 11,750,000
shares of the Company (2017: 11,750,000) for the purpose
of the New Scheme.

36. RESERVES

THE GROUP

Details of changes in reserves accounts of the Group are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 94
and 95.

Shares held for share award scheme

Shares held for share award scheme is comprised of the
consideration paid for the shares held for the share award
scheme.

Employee share-based compensation reserve

It represents the cumulative expenses recognised on the
granting of share-based compensation to the employees over the
vesting period.

Other reserve

It represents the difference between the consideration and the
carrying amount of the net assets attributable to the additional
interests in subsidiaries being acquired from non-controlling
equity holders.

Exchange reserve

It comprises all foreign exchange differences arising on
translation operation to presentation currency.

87} 55 ¥ 2% Bf 5%

35. W& Bx 42 51 8 & B {7 58 Wh &+ &1

(&)
(b) BRFEEMEE (&)

EEe X TATEREEE IR
HEREIINER IR 58 HES
IR EFETE AT AR 5 B BB
B AEB B HAR R B IR A A %
BEH % °

R B £ 1% SEARED EIH
=t 21 BT £ 8911,750,0000% A% 17 #
BERSZEARITTEEE

RBEBE_Z-—NFR_ZT—+F
TZA=t—HLFE" y\—E}\Iﬁ
SRETET SIS E R BB E AR A
BB BBUEREA &N 2IH
rEIMETEE TR EREMRD -

R—E—N\NE+-_A=+—8"
MEFETEMmME xﬂ%/\ﬁﬁ$@
711,750,000/ (=& — £ F :
11,750,0000% ) B 17 o

36. il

=%H
7 58 G 5 1 20 ) A ML S04 B 1295
SRS ST DER
BRI B E 2R

BIR 5 SR B 57 2 IR 15 4 3 B 5 12
B3t B T4 2 BB 15 0 2 4 O AR 1R -
LR S5 (1894 B B2 G515

SR R B IE T R B S
B RETRE) 2 AR -

e

BRERBIFERBRR BB E AR OER
IMERFBRNFEEREECENER-

[E X 1

BEZNEBTEMELNMAINEE
e

China Chengtong Development Group Limited FEBEHREBER LT

201



202

36. RESERVES (Continued)

For the Year Ended 31 December 2018 | B Z=-Z—\&+-A=+—HALEFE

Notes to the Financial Statements

87} 5 ¥ 2% Bfd 5%

36. ki@ (&)

THE COMPANY b. /N |
Financial
assets at Available-
Shares Employee fair value for-sale
held for share-based through other  financial assets
share award p i prehensi revaluation Exchange Accumulated
scheme reserve  income reserve reserve reserve profits Total
BATERA
BRARRHE DB G e AE2ENE M EER
REZRR RANGERE BRzemEE REEMRE EREHR it #it
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000
BEFT Vil EETT BT BETT BEIT BEFT
At 31 December 2016 RI8-AE+ZAZ1-A (6,494) 702 - 6,402 (68,519) 65,398 2511)
Profit for the year EREF - - - - - 31,008 31,008
Other comprehensive income: Efp2EiE:
Exchange differences arising on NERSIENELNESL 28
translation to presentation currency - - - - 28543 - 28543
Net change in fair value of e REEZATEFES
available-forsale financial assets - - = (14,894) = = (14,894)
Transfer to profit or loss upon disposal of HET{HELBEERETER
available-forsale financial assets - - - (483) - - (483)
Total comprehensive income for the year ERZEKEEE - - - (15,377) 28543 31,008 44,169
At 31 December 2017 RZB-tE+ZAZ+-ANFES
as originally presented 6,494) 702 - (8,975) (39,976) 96,401 41,658
Effect of adustment on adoption of OB B BAS L FRMIRTE
HKFRS 9 = = (9,167) 8975 - 192 -
At 1 January 2018 (restated) RZB-\E-A-H (BEJ) 6,494) 702 (9,167) - (39,976) 96,593 41,658
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - 10,565) (10,565)
Other comprehensive income: A2ENE:
Exchange differences arising on FESyERELNELEE
translation to presentation currency - - = = (64,725) = (64,725)
Net change in fair value of financial RATEEHH AEpRANENEHEE
assets at fair value through other JATEEEY
comprehensive income - - 7421 - - - 4N
Transfer to profit or loss upon disposal of & KATELH ALK 2EREH &
debt investments measured at fair ERREREZER
value through other comprehensive
income = = 1,746 = = = 1,746
Total comprehensive income for the year ERZEKEEE - - 9,167 - (64,725) 10,565) (66,123)
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NE+ZAZ+-H 6,494) 702 - = (104,701) 86,028 (24,465)
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37. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 29 October 2018, the Group entered into a property
rights transaction contract with an independent third party
to dispose of its 100% equity interest in Haikou Cuidao
Hotspring Resort Hotel Company Limited (“Haikou Cuidao”)
at cash consideration of RMB195,864,000 (approximately
HK$233,079,000). Haikou Cuidao is principally engaged in hotel
management services in the PRC. The disposal was completed
on 14 December 2018 and the Group recognised a gain on
disposal of a subsidiary of approximately HK$110,799,000.

The net assets of Haikou Cuidao at the date of disposal were as

87} 55 ¥ 2% Bf 5%

37. HE—RMME LT

R-ZE—NE+A=+hB KAEEHEE
YE=HURERKEAR195,864,000
7T (#9574 #233,079,0007T ) H & H W E
DREARERBEARAR ([BAE
BZI00%ERITIVEER AL 8
OREXERNFEAEBREEERS - H
EEERN_ZT—\F+-_A+HEHZEKIL
BAEERRALE —RHBAR 2 RELD
A78%110,799,0007 °

BORBRNHERMZEERENT:

follows:
HK$'000
BT T
Property, plant and equipment Y BB REE 25,253
Prepaid land lease payments A T A E TR 152,905
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BT FIH « 1% & & EH b fE L FR I8 505
Bank balances and cash RITEFEERE 192
Accruals and other payables JE 5T 5K I8 K E M FE A+ 5/ I8 (36,925)
Deferred tax liabilities BRIERIAEEE (21,240)
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE 120,690
Total consideration — satisfied by cash BRE-URESIT 233,079
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMEATZkE
Consideration A 233,079
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE (120,690)
Release of exchange reserve % bR O 5 (R 1 (486)
Amount payable to the buyer in respect of the A% B Fr&AE = B EIE 2458
post agreement date results borne by the ERE 7 2 5 IE
Group (1,104)
Gain on disposal i P15 U 110,799
Net cash inflow arising on disposal of HE—RNBAREELEZEERAFRE:
a subsidiary:
— Cash consideration received —BUEeRE 233,079
— Amount paid to the buyer in respect of the —FLANSKEFTAEHZBHEES
post agreement date result borne by the BENERZRE
Group (1,104)
— Bank balances and cash disposed of —BHERTEHEELES (192)
231,783
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38. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 38. EEHVKIE
(a) Operating lease commitments as lessee (a) *BRBEAZESHHEE
At 31 December 2018, the Group has commitments for RZE—NFE+_A=+—H &&
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable BT RERAAE O T T 5 H
operating leases in respect of rented premises which fall MM HENFE 2 R REHES
due as follows: FRAFET -
2018 2017
—ZE-N\E —E—LF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BY¥TT BT T
Within one year —F RN 5,049 5,043
In the second to fifth years inclusive % —E % A4
(BIEEEMT) 3,636 8,055
8,685 13,098
Leases are negotiated for terms ranging from one to HAOBEZHRANT—F2HF (=
five years (2017: one to ten years). None of these leases T—+tF:—FE+F) - ZFEHEY
include contingent rentals. HABEXEHLY -
(b) Operating lease commitments as lessor (b) #EBEHBEAZEEHNHRE
At 31 December 2018, the Group has contracted with RZZE—N\FE+ZA=+—H K&
tenants for the following future minimum lease receivables: EEEBFEIA  ARRKEEWIES
PUNNE
2018 2017
—E—\F¥ —F—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETIT BT T
Within one year —F A 1,183 2,829
In the second to fifth years inclusive % —Z%F AF
(BHEBEMSE) 4,070 5,911
Over five years HBBAE 855 900
6,108 9,640
Leases are negotiated for terms ranging from one to ten HABECHAN T —FE+F (=
years (2017: one to ten years). E—tF:—FETF)
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

Transactions and balances with related parties

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements,
during the year, the Group had also entered into the

39. HEAXH

(a)

HREAZXHRER

BRI R A D0 T EE & 5
FR - ANEBEIRE T BETTETTIA

following significant transactions with the following related TERRS:
parties:
Nature of
Name of related parties transactions/balances 2018 2017
WELEB X5/ HBHHE ~B-N\F —EtF
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETT JEEFr
The wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the ultimate holding company:
BRRERAFAZZEMELR:
FREES (5E) Q7 Interest income - 346
FEHA
Other receivables 380 465
H fth e W 7108
Chengtong Finance (note 27) Deposits 112,338 86,200
HBEH (H227) (e
Interest income 1,445 4,961
FEKA
Hainan Huandao Taide Hotel Property Property management
Management Co. Ltd expenses 271 5153
BHERRGRENEERERAA MEERER
Other payables - 949
Hh fE A4 508
China Paper Industry Investment Trade receivables
Company Limited - 6,406
FEAXREERAAF B 5 R0
Sale of coal 6,861 8,245
HER K

Save as disclosed above, other balances with related
parties at the end of the respective reporting dates are set
out in the consolidated statement of financial position and

note 25.

B EXATEREEIN RS RERE

RAE 7 2 E b SRR B

SUER DA R M £ 25 -

fr A MR
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b)

Transactions and balances with other
government-related entities

The Group itself is part of a larger group of companies
controlled by CCHG (CCHG and its subsidiaries are referred
to as the "CCHG Group"’) which is a stated-owned
enterprise under the direct supervision of the State Council
of the PRC. The directors of the Company consider that the
Company is ultimately controlled by the government of the
PRC and the Group operates in an economic environment
currently dominated by entities controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by the PRC government
(“government-related entities”).

Apart from transactions with CCHG Group, the Group
has transactions with other government-related
entities including but not limited to the finance lease
arrangements.

Details of the transactions and balances with relevant
government-related entities are set out below:

39. AEARS (&)

(b)

HEAMBRAERBZIXHRER
AEEE S ATEBEBREREE

Z BB ERBLR GRBERR
M A 2R A S ) i
FEARAAEEZ 35 A2
AEFRA AR AEPABARE
4] - 757K S8 B 20 A 6 A0
BT WA B AL
EApE ER ((RRRERE))
5o

FRELEBIZA SR B 2 X 54N AN [E
EREGBNMEBERETIRS &
BRETRRNBEHEE L -

HAEBNAEER IR AR
R FFHIEEIIT

2018 2017
—EZ—N\F —ET—LF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BETIT BT T
Transactions with HBEFREREZXS:
government-related entities:
Interest income FEWA 44,339 43,688
Consultancy service income from AN E T EAE AR A
finance lease arrangements 8,925 9,005

In addition, the Group has entered into various
transactions, including other purchases and operating
expenses with other government-related entities. In the
opinion of the directors, except for the transactions and
balances disclosed above, other transactions and balances
are considered as individually and collectively insignificant
to the operation of the Group for both years.

In addition, the Group has bank deposits, financial
assets investments, and other general banking facilities
with certain banks and financial institutions which
are government-related entities in its ordinary course
of business. In view of the nature of those banking
transactions, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that separate disclosure would not be material to
the financial statements.
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

87} 55 ¥ 2% Bf 5%

39. AEARS (&)

The remunerations of key management (c) FRAEEEBEAB(NER)ZHFMH
personnel, which are the directors during the mF:
year, were as follows:
2018 2017
—E—\F§ —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
B¥Tr BT T
Short-term employee benefits HHEEREF 2,010 4,790
Post-employment benefits BEB: 18 18 A - 501
2,010 5,291
In March 2016, the Group entered into a guarantee d R=ZZE—R"F=H &

agreement with China Chengtong Coal Investment
Limited (“Chengtong Coal”), a subsidiary of the
ultimate holding company of the Company. Pursuant
to the agreement, the Group has provided a guarantee
by pledging its office premises with net book value of
approximately HK$45,367,000 (2017: HK$50,812,000) as at
31 December 2018 and issuing a guarantee letter to the
extent of approximately RMB53,540,000 (approximately
HK$61,036,000) for a period of three years (or such shorter
period as may be approved by the court). The Group also
entered into a deed of counterindemnity (“Indemnity
Deed"”) with China Chengtong Hong Kong Company
Limited (“CCHK"), an intermediate holding company of
the Company, pursuant to which CCHK agreed to indemnify
the Group in full for its liabilities and loss, if any, which may
arise from the above guarantee provided by the Group.
Further details of the guarantee agreement and Indemnity
Deed are disclosed in note 43 (b).

Pursuant to the guarantee agreement, Chengtong Coal
shall pay an annual arrangement fee of 1% over the
guarantee amount to the Group. During the year ended 31
December 2018, the Group recognised guarantee income
of HK$633,000 (2017: HK$614,000) to the profit or loss for
the year.

%

A REIER AR AW B
ﬁ@k%%&éﬁﬁﬁaﬂm;ﬁﬁ
RV ERBZE - BEZHBZE
AEEFRERER=_ZT—NF
+ A=+t BEREFEHNBE
45,367,0000 (=T — & B
50,812,0007C) M AW 3 - I A
LA#) A R #53,540,0007T ( #)74 #&
61,036,0007T ) 4 PR A9 & 1R K LA 32
HER HRAZ=ZF (KA EHEZE
F?ﬁ%tt;&aﬁﬁiﬁﬁliﬁ) N [E R R
TEPM EARIFRBEBBEE SR
N ([REER )T BERE
(Hﬁﬁi@ﬁn Bt #HBEER
ErEBMEANEETRRA LA A
E@Fﬁm MERMELENEER
BB (E) - ERipELRBERE
R — S BRI E43(b) P I 55 -

BEERDE HBEKEEARER
BN BEAEEBSTNFELHEE
B-HE—ZT— )\¢+—H_+ =]
¢¢F REBRFEANBRFHER
B #633,0000T (ZE—+F B
614,0007‘5)6’9%%4&2\0

China Chengtong Development Group Limited FEBEHREBER LT

207



For the Year Ended 31 December 2018 | B Z=-Z—\&+-A=+—HALEFE

Notes to the Financial Statements

87} 5 ¥ 2% Bfd 5%

40. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40. EXxEBEER

208

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the total debt to
total assets ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt divided
by total assets. Total debt is calculated as bank borrowings and
unsecured other loan disclosed in notes 31 and 32 respectively.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
a continuous basis. As part of this review, the directors of the
Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors of the Company, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share
issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt.

The total debt to total assets ratio at the end of reporting period

AEENENEE S ERRAEE AR
FEROUKELE RNEBBLER
RN GEHRBBERRFKEZAEH 8 £—
FEE AEEZEBRBRIFIE -

NEBF B EEREEE 2t REER
HER W RIZREFBERUNEEE
FrE ERARE S R A FES RI2H FEHY
RITEERERFELMER

AAREE RS E RN AR RBET
il BT —HANALTEEY
BARARGEERNABRRETE
%o BREAATNEFORBES ARES
B B3 1 AR B, B 7T 2 AR - BB AR £ bR
BITHES PR EARE RS T

R RN A S ERBEEY LR

was as follows: T
2018 2017
—E—\F —E—+tF
HK$ 000 HK$'000
B¥TFIT BB F T

Current liabilities mE AR

Bank borrowings RITIEE 274,100 214,400
Unsecured other loans EREEMMER 600 600
Total debt [ERE ] 274,700 215,000
Total assets BEE 3,590,303 3,574,801
Total debt to total assets ratio BISREEREE 2R 7.7% 6.0%

2018 Annual Report FERE



For the Year Ended 31 December 2018 | H#Z =2 - N\E+=-A=+—HILEE

Notes to the Financial Statements

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

87} 55 ¥ 2% Bf 5%

41. MERBEER

Categories of financial instruments SMIARE
2018 2017
—E—N\F —E—+F
HK$ 000 HK$'000
B¥TFT JBEMEF T
Financial assets SREE
Measured at FVPL RAFEGTABRGTE 422,972 1,173
Measured at FVOCI ERAFEERFA
B2 EW RS 109,124 =
Measured at amortised costs LB SH ARG 2 1,959,296 =
Available-for-sale financial assets A EEHEE - 705,477
Loans and receivables (including cash ER Kk ERFIE (B
and cash equivalents) RekReEEY) - 1,651,492
Financial liabilities SREaE
At amortised costs 85PN 395,426 315,733
Financial risk management objectives and policies HERREEERRBE

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, loans receivable, other financial assets, pledged
bank deposits, deposits in other financial institution, bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables, bank borrowings
and unsecured other loans (2017: trade and other receivables,
loans receivable, amount due from a non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary, available-for-sale financial assets, held-for-trading
securities, pledged bank deposits, deposits in other financial
institution, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables,
bank borrowings and unsecured other loans). Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include currency
risk, price risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management of the Group manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

As at 31 December 2018, except for the following, the Group
do not have significant financial assets or financial liabilities
denominated in currencies other than their functional currencies
at the end of the reporting period.

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets
denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies
of the respective group companies as at 31 December 2018 and
2017 are as follows:

AEBNEESMIADER S LA ME
R RS RS RAE SR
ROTGEH ELBBBER BRTET
EHS E5REMETRE BTEE
REEMEMER (-2 L5 BHR
B R PR R e — B
DR — 2 FREB RSB A E S
AE BEEEES SEMRIER R
e RmBEER BOIEFRAS B
T LA 6 4 308 © 2847 5 B R A A E A
E3) - ST AR E M EHE - 8
SoMTAEBNARBEREAR &
HER MEAR EEARRADAES
LR - 75 B8 20 B2 3% 5 L R O B L5
RIX - AEHEREEERRELRER
0 AR 5 R R & 48 5 -

REmpE

RZE-—NF+ZA=+—8B BRATAHA
MEIN NEBRRE ARG EIARLTIGE
BB ERFTECERETREERS
BEE-

RZEBE—N\FER_FT—+tF+_A=+—
B ALEENUZEERFNEEEUINE
MtEZEMEEZREERIWOT
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

41. MBERBER (&)

Financial risk management objectives and policies MERBEEAREREE (B)
(Continued)
Currency risk (Continued) KEwmp (&)
Assets
BE
2018 2017
—E—)\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
B¥TIT BT T
usD =TT 216,051 235,389

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy but the management monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, financial assets denominated
in USD belongs to the group companies of which their functional
currency is HK$. As HK$ is pegged to USD, the Group considers
that the currency risk arising from transactions in USD is not
significant.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Price risk

Certain of the Group's other financial assets (2017: the Group's
held-for-trading securities and certain available-for-sale financial
assets) are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
date with reference to the quoted prices. Therefore, the Group is
exposed to equity price risk and the management of the Group
will monitor the price movements and take appropriate actions
when is required.

Sensitivity analysis is performed by management to assess the
exposure of the Group's financial results to price risks of listed
other financial assets (2017: available-for-sale financial assets
carried at fair value) at the end of each of the reporting period.
If the prices of the respective instruments held by the Group
had been 5% (2017: 5%) higher/lower as at 31 December 2018,
the profit for the year and other comprehensive income would
have been approximately HK$56,000 and HK$5,207000 (2017:
other comprehensive income HK$18,932,000) higher/lower
respectively.

Interest rate risk

The cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to the Group's
variable rate deposits and bank balances, loans receivable, other
financial assets/available-for-sale financial assets, amount due
from a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary and bank
borrowings. The fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to
these respective instruments. The Group currently does not have
an interest rate hedging policy. However, the management of the
Group monitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group has exposure to cash flow interest rate risk due to the
fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate. The directors
consider the interest bearing instruments are with maturity
within 1 year and their interest rate risk is not significant as
these financial assets are within short maturity period and thus it
is not included in sensitivity analysis.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates after considering the impact
of the interest expenses being capitalised as properties under
development at the end of the reporting period. A 50 basis
points (2017: 50 basis points) increase or decrease is used
which represents management’'s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

As at 31 December 2018, if interest rates on interest bearing
instruments with maturity over 1 year had been 50 basis points
higher/lower and all of other variables were held constant,
the post-tax result would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$805,000 (2017: HK$746,000).

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables, loans receivable, other financial assets, deposits in
other financial institution and bank balances. In order to minimise
the credit risk, the management of the Group has reviewed the
recoverable amount of each aforesaid individual assets at the
end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
management of the Group considers that the Group's credit risk
is significantly reduced.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)
Impairment and provisioning policies

The Group’s policy requires the review of individual outstanding
amounts at least monthly or more regularly depending on
individual circumstances or market condition.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018, where
the impairment requirements under HKFRS 9 are based on
an expected credit loss model. The Group applies simplified
approach to measure ECL on trade and bills receivable; and
general approach to measure ECL on deposits and other
receivables, loans receivable, other financial assets at amortised
cost, deposits in other financial institution and bank balances.
Under the simplified approach, the Group measures the loss
allowance at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. Under the general
approach, financial assets migrate through the following three
stages based on the change in credit risk since initial recognition:
Stage 1: 12-month ECL, Stage 2: Lifetime ECL — not credit-
impaired and Stage 3: Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired.

When determining whether the risk of default has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on the
Group's historical experience and expert credit risk assessment,
including forward-looking information. The trade and other
receivables and loans receivable use the number of days past
due (“DPD") and loan-to-collateral value (“LTV") to determine
significant increase in credit risk.

The ECL are assessed by the Group on semi-annual basis. Based
on DPD, LTV and internally derived credit ratings, deposits
and other receivables, loans receivable, other financial assets
measured at amortised cost and bank balances are classified into
3 stages.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)
Impairment and provisioning policies

When estimating the ECL on loan and advances to customers,
the Group has incorporated forward-looking economic
information through the use of industry trend and experienced
credit judgement to reflect the qualitative factors.

As at 31 December 2018, other than those financial assets
whose carrying amounts best represent the maximum exposure
to credit risk, the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group arising from
the amount of financial guarantees provided by the Group is
disclosed in note 43. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks associated
with its financial assets, except that the credit risks associated
with loans receivable as disclosed in note 24 respectively.

Financial assets with credit risk exposure
Trade and bills receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than
the industry or country in which the customers operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, no trade and bills
receivables was due from the group’s largest customer as well
as the five largest customers within the Group's business.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to
customers for whom there was no recent history of default.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)
Loans receivable

Before accepting any new lessee under sale and leaseback
arrangement, the Group assesses the credit quality of each
potential lessee and defined limits for each lessee. The Group
also demands certain lessee to provide corporate guarantees
from their respective shareholders or related parties or land
and building as collateral to the Group at the time the sale and
leaseback arrangement is entered into. In addition, the Group
has reviewed the repayment history of sale and leaseback
payments from each lessee with reference to the repayment
schedule from the date of loans receivable to determine the
recoverability of the loans receivable. Also, the Group take
into account information specific to the customers as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the customers
operate.

Bank balances, deposit in other financial institution and other
financial assets at amortised cost

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group has bank balances
and cash, deposits and other financial assets in certain
corporations and banks in the PRC and Hong Kong. The credit
risk on these deposits and other financial assets is insignificant
as the counterparties are financial institutions with high credit-
rating or with good reputation.

As at 31 December 2018, trade receivables of HK$378,000
was past due but not credit-impaired. All other trade and bills
receivables are not past due as at 31 December 2018.

87} 55 ¥ 2% Bf 5%

41. MBERBER (&)

MERRETEZERREE (&8)

ERmE (&7)

R ER B R PEE T EAH A AGEA
ZH AREEFESBEABRAZER
A WA EBAEANZRIE - ERTLE
1& DA 2 PR A - AN ER B R BRI LLAGE A
AASERMESERAMES 2 BEE
R S RS VE B AR an o BESN » ARE
EE2REWE R E R EREFHEK -
BAZAAAZ EREAEREBE A
% - LAETE U E 5K 2 ATUR B K @ b S -
AEEEHEEPREEMRERFEY
FEZEBERERBNER -

RiTETF Rt BB 7R
AR Btz & E

REZ--NFR=_F tFF=_H=+—
B AEERPEEERE TR RRT
BRERGTHEFERAS FRAREMSHE
E-REFAkEMEREERBIEE
RERTEBEXN AARSYHITRAKSE
BB REZaRA2omEE-

R—_E—NE+_A=+—H BH5E
U 5% I8 7 #378,0007T B E HA HE R 1= B R
BE-FTAEME S EKRFIERERZEER
—E-NE+-A=+—BEKEH-

China Chengtong Development Group Limited FEBEHREBER LT

215



216

For the Year Ended 31 December 2018 | HZ=%

— K= A= LRI TS

Notes to the Financial Statements

87} 5 ¥ 2% Bfd 5%

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41.

(Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The expected loss rate applied is approximately 0.1%.
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade

MERRER (&)

MERRETEEERREE (&8)

ERmE (&7)

FrrE A FAMEIER B40.1% - FRE S
R EL A WK IR LA e JE IR & SRR S 1R B

and other receivables and loans receivable during the year is as BRAPAREEFIBOT
follows:
2018 2017
—N\E§E —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETIT BT T
Balance at 31 December under HKAS 39 1R &6 @5 % 8 5395
R+-—A=+—HB8&"F - -
Impact on initial application of BAERB BT R EER
HKFRS 9 (note 2.1) BFE 2B (H5E2.1) 250 -
Adjusted balance at 1 January R—RA—BZ&RARET 250 -
Impairment losses recognised during REAERHREEE
the year 55 -
Exchange difference N ER (7) =
Balance at 31 December R+ZA=+—Rz&"F 298 =
The origination of new trade and other receivables and loans it E 5 Nk H M e W R IE R R E K (0
receivable net of those settled resulted in an increase in loss REAEMD)ERHE_T—\F+=

allowance of HK$55,000 during the year ended 31 December
2018.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has concentration of credit
risk with (a) six (2017: two) customers from bulk commodities
trading, with aggregated amount of trade and bills receivables
of HK$8,097000 (2017: trade receivables of HK$15,728,000);
(b) eleven (2017: nine) lessees from sale and leaseback
arrangements, with aggregated amount of loans receivable of
HK$666,936,000 (2017: HK$742,261,000). To monitor the credit
risk exposure, the management of the Group has reviewed the
recoverability of each debtor periodically.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management of the Group to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
The management of the Group monitors the utilisation of bank
loans and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

Liquidity table

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The tables have been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be demanded for
repayment. The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows.
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity table (Continued)

At 31 December 2018

==
=]

41. MBERBRER (5

MERRETEEERREE (&8)

RBELmE (E)

mBE2F (E)

R-E-NF+-A=+—H

Weighted
average Within Total
interest rate 1 year or undiscounted Carrying
per annum on demand cash flows amount
RURA&
MEFEYFEHE —FREKREX n Bkt BEE
HKSs000 HKS$000 HK$'000
BARTT EETT BAETT
Trade and other payables BoHREMENTIE - 120,726 120,726 120,726
Bank borrowings RITRE 3.80% 284,496 284,496 274,100
Unsecured other loan BEREMER - 600 600 600
405,822 405,822 395,426
Financial guarantee issued Bl Az BER
Maximum amount guaranteed EEREESLE 211,918 211,918 =
At 31 December 2017 RZFE—tF+=ZA=+—H
Weighted
average Within Total
interest rate 1 year or on undiscounted Carrying
per annum demand cash flows amount
AERRS
MEFHENE  —FARRER mE @t RHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
BETFT BETFT BETFT
Trade and other payables 85 REMERTR - 100,733 100,733 100,733
Bank borrowings RIEE 2.75% 220,307 220,307 214,400
Unsecured other loan BEREMER - 600 600 600
321,640 321,640 315,733
Financial guarantee issued BHAZHBER
Maximum amount guaranteed EERESLE 124,639 124,639 =
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42. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

(a)

Financial assets measured at fair value

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group's financial instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised
into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is classified
is determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Quoted prices in active markets
for identical items (unadjusted);

Level 2 valuations: Inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.
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42. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

42. EMTIRZAFE(E)

(a) Financial assets measured at fair value (Continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

(a) BM2AFEABRHSMEE (F)

(i)

RFEEER (F)

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2018
RIE-NF+ZAZ+—-HMAFEIHE

Fair value as at
31 December

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2018
R-Z—\£
+ZBA=+-H
- ot = BATE
HK$'000 HKs'000 HKS000 HKSs000
ARTFT BRTFT BRTFT BRFT
Recurring fair value BERLOTEHE
measurement
Financial assets: SRAE:
Other financial assets: HitemEeE:
Financial assets measured at FVOCl A TFEE Bt ALt 2 @S
(non-recycling): JEBEE (TUBAER):
Unlisted equity investment FETRERE - - 4,984 4,984
Financial assets measured at FVOC| HRAFEZH:HF A2 AR E
(non-recycling): JEBEE (TABALER):
Shares listed in Hong Kong REELTRRH? 104,140 - - 104,140
Financial assets measured at FVPL: BRATE; ABEZSREE:
- shares listed in Hong Kong —REB LTHRG 1,125 - - 1,125
- unlisted investments —FETRE - - 421,847 421,847
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42. EMTIRZAFE(E)

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets measured at fair value (Continued) (a)

(i)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (i)

DAFEARHESMEE (&)
LFEFH(FE)
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2017

R-F-tFt-A=t-BHATEHE
Fair value as at

31 December
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2017
RZF—+F
+=A=t-H
-5 -} =% MATE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 00 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
Recurring fair value BERLOTEHE
measurement
Financial assets: SRAE:
Available-for-sale financial assets A HESBEAE
(note) (Hiit) 378,631 - - 378,631
Held-fortrading securities REEEEHA 1,173 - - 1,173

There were no transfers amongst Level 1, Level 2 and
Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy during both years.

Note:

Available-for-sale financial assets measured at fair value were
reclassified to financial assets measured at FVOCI and financial
assets measured at FVPL respectively upon the adoption of
HKFRS 9 at 1 January 2018 (note 2.1).

RBEFEARNFESFEN R =
BB =z B EERS -

Hiat -

R-Z—N\F— A—BRMEBHIEHEE
RIS (MiHE2.1) - A FEARM T
HESBAESFEH A MARATESH
SAEMSENS Y S BEE MDA T @
AEHTSWEE-
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42. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL 42. EMITAZLAFEH(E)

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Financial assets measured at fair value (Continued) (a) MDAFEARHEMEE (8)
(ii) Valuation techniques and inputs used in (ii) =8 FEFEFEHGGES
Level 3 fair value measurements ERBAEKE
Significant
Valuation unobservable
techniques inputs Range
EXFUHE
HEHE BARE #E
Financial assets: eMEE:
Other financial assets: HiteREE:
~ financial assets measured at ~ — & A FEZ ) AELH Discounted cash flow Discount rate and Discount rate: 15.3%;
FVOCI: 2ANGEZERHEE: discount for lack of  Discount for lack of
unlisted equity investment FEmRERE marketability marketability: 20%
#RALTRE BRERBZTERE BIRE:16.3%  HRe W5
33 MENHERLE : 20%
- financial assets measured at ~ — A F{Ezf ABiZ  Discounted cash flow Expected yield and  Expected yield:

FVPL: SHEAE: discount rate 3.30%-8.90%;

unlisted investments EEmKE HERERE BHERRERE  FEHER:3.30%8.90% :
Discount rate:
2.57%-4.90%
BB & 2.67%-4.90%
(b) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (b) BRAFELUNIIENHNEMNEERE

222

carried at other than fair value

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of the Group's financial instruments that are not
measured at fair value are approximate to their fair values.

43. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

At 31 December 2018, the Group had contingent liabilities
in relation to guarantees of approximately HK$211,918,000
(2017: HK$124,639,000) given to banks in respect of
mortgage loans granted to purchasers of certain property
units.

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default in
mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group is
responsible to repay the outstanding mortgage principals
together with any accrued interest and penalty owed by
the defaulted purchasers to the banks, and the Group is
entitled to take over the legal title and possession of the
related properties. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the financial impact arising from providing the
above financial guarantees is insignificant and accordingly,
they are not accounted for in these financial statements.
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43. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

44.

(b)

On 29 March 2016, the Group entered into a guarantee
agreement with Chengtong Coal, a subsidiary of the
ultimate holding company of the Company, pursuant to
which the Group has provided a guarantee by pledging
its office premises (categorised as buildings in note 15)
with net book value of approximately HK$45,367,000 as at
31 December 2018 (2017: HK$50,812,000) and issuing a
guarantee letter to the Supreme People’s Court of Guangxi
Zhuang Autonomous Region to the extent of approximately
RMB53,540,000 (approximately HK$61,036,000) for a
period of three years (or such shorter period as may be
approved by the court). The guarantee was for the purpose
of supporting a property preservation order on certain
subject assets under litigation between Chengtong Coal
and its debtors.

On 29 March 2016, the Group also entered into the
Indemnity Deed with CCHK pursuant to which CCHK
agreed to indemnify the Group in full for its liabilities and
loss, if any, which may arise from the above guarantee
provided by the Group.

Details in relation to the guarantee agreement and
the Indemnity Deed were set out in the Company's
announcement dated 29 March 2016.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
financial impact arising from providing the above financial
guarantees is insignificant and accordingly, they were not
accounted for in these financial statements.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group was not involved

in any litigation or arbitration of material importance and there

was no litigation or claim of material importance known to the

directors of the Company to be pending or threatened against

87} 55 ¥ 2% Bf 5%

43. HF/ARK (E)

(b)

pi -

R-ZE—XNE=ZA-t+hB &X&
BHEFBEEE(KARARREEZERA
AR BAR)I Y ERDE B
I AEEESEBEHRENR TN
E+ - A=+—HEREFEHEE
45,367,000c (=ZZF — £ F : &
50,812,0007T) K ¥t AR EWE K A
ERftEEREE R ARZERHA
£ 54 AR #53,540,0007T (49748
#61,036,0007T ) ABR BILR K - HABR
A = (Bk A BT AT AE L B B HE
PR+ DASR AR IEAR o (A o i 1E S SR 41
MERBEXHLIBAKERESF
BEANFAFETEZEEENTE
REL-

RZZE-—RFE=RA=1+NEB £5H
TR ER R A B R] S E R - Rtk
HBEEERBTZHBAEARERA
SEREHEAERMAEELENA
BRER(WAE) -

FRERBBALBERBOFBSR
RAARBHMA-_FT—X"F=A
ZTAHMRE-

ARAEERA R RS BRER

ELNPBZEMTRE WA KRE
HZEWHREP AR

F-N\FR-F+tHF+ZA=1—

H -7 & B & P N AE fA] B2 K FF 7R 3T
BOARBEENTABEEMAMHEART 4
IRHHAREMRENERFAIE

the Group. =
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 44. BEXRKIE
2018 2017
—E—N\E T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE¥ETT B FoT
Contracted but not provided for: BEET#E R -
Purchase of property, plant and BEWME BWEKMZE
equipment 21,601 4,472

China Chengtong Development Group Limited FEBEHREBER LT

223



For the Year Ended 31 December 2018 | B Z=-Z—\&+-A=+—HALEFE

Notes to the Financial Statements

87} 5 ¥ 2% Bfd 5%

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 45. XA FM#ERRE

THE COMPANY

2018 2017
—B—\F .
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
My aE B¥TFIT B For
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ZHERE&®E
Non-current assets FEREEE
Property, plant and equipment  #1% B /E & & & 289 512
Interests in subsidiaries NN E - =
Amounts due from subsidiaries & Uzt B A & 78 173,044 173,043
173,333 173,555
Current assets mEEE
Other receivables, H b fE W FRIB - FE S FUE
prepayments and deposits Kiz® 3,040 4,316
Available-for-sale financial AtHESREE
assets - 208,451
Amounts due from subsidiaries & U Ht B A &) FIE 1,965,734 2,008,157
Bank balances and cash RITHEGFELRRS 222,234 35,746
2,191,008 2,256,670
Current liabilities b4 IR-Ki ]
Other payables H b fE A 5RIB 2,930 2,691
Bank borrowings RITIEE 200,000 200,000
202,930 202,691
Net current assets mEEEFE 1,988,078 2,053,979
Net assets BEFE 2,161,411 2,227534
EQUITY #E
Share capital % 34 2,185,876 2,185,876
Reserves ] 36 (24,465) 41,658
Total equity B 2,161,411 2,227534
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on HESER _ZT—NWF_A-+HAHE

25 February 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

REFEETUARERRESR:

Zhang Bin Wang Tianlin
R EXH
Director Director
BE EFE
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Principal Properties

T2YFE

A. REME

Group's Approximate
effective Approximate gross Category
Location e interest site area floor area Usage of lease
FEEZ i BnagE
Ruga HEEHE mRk R# AHER
(sq. m.) (sg. m.)
(F5K) (F5x)

Phase I, Chengtong Xiang Xie Li, No. 1 HEREFAT 100% Note (a) 4,849  Commercial  Medium-term
Mizhou West Road, Zhucheng City, MR —5 Hidta) G lease
Shandong Province, the PRC HBEEREF—H sbeay ko)

Phase Ill, Chengtong Xiang Xie Li, No. 1 HE L REFERT 100% Note (a) 2,716 Commercial  Medium-term
Mizhou West Road, Zhucheng City, TR - Hizta) [GES lease
Shandong Province, the PRC HBEHEE=H FHRY

Hanan Building HEEEEEOT 100% 27590 1,339 Commercial ~ Medium-term
No.5 Guoxing Avenue, Bl & A EHH [GES lease
Haikau City, BEAE RHEY
Hainan Province, the PRC

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT B. SEERM%X

Group's
effective Approximate
Location e interest site area Usage Category of lease
FEEZ i
RE#a hEEHE BE BBER
(sq. m.)
(FHx)

A piece of land situated at HETEHEAET 66.67% 549,600  Industrial Medium-term lease
south of Shugang Highway, i yN o] I% ik
Dafeng City, —BLi
Jiangsu Province,
the PRC

Lot No. 1, Port Serviced Ares, RET&E AL H 66.67% 84,648 Residential and Commercial -

Dafeng Ocean Economic ABBFLERER commercial Medium-term lease
Development Area, OFREE 1Tk FEREE Residential - Long lease
Dafeng City, mE-R AL

Jiangsu Province, FE-RERY

the PRC

South Portion of Lot No. 2, ET&E AL H 66.67% 28,956  Residential and Commercial -

Port Serviced Area, ABBFEERER commercial Medium-term lease
Dafeng Ocean Economic 0= REE25H FEREE Residential - Long lease
Development Area, el mE-P AL

Dafeng City, FE-RERY

Jiangsu Province,

the PRC

Lot No. 3, Port Serviced Area, HETHEAED 66.67% 244,248  Residential and Commercial -

Dafeng Ocean Economic LEEEERER commercial Medium-term lease
Development Area, AR &35k FEREE Residential - Long lease
Dafeng City, BE-RHEL

Jiangsu Province, FE-RERY

the PRC

China Chengtong Development Group Limited FEBEHREBER LT
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For the Year Ended 31 December 2018 | HZ=%

Principal Properties

F2YE

— K= A= LRI TS

C. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT C. BERPYE
Group's
effective  Approximate Category Stage of Expected
Location i} I;:Eszt site area Usage of lease completion  completion date
{1 b WRER R2 BNER RRER AxERAH
(sq.m.
(FiA)

North Portion of Lot No. 2, HETEEAE 66.67% Note (b)  Residential and - Commercial - Part of Remaining Section Il
Port Serviced Area, AEEEEERER W) commercial  Medium-term Section I is expected to be
Dafeng Ocean Economic AEREELS frEREF lease work in completed in year
Development Area, ib 1A Residential - progress 2019
Dafeng City, longlease  HH-ERIRE ﬁﬂ $ in‘Equ
Jiangsu Province, HE-rERn AT I-NETK
the PRC Fx-REHY

A parcel of land designated RELREEATEN 100% Note () Residential ~ Long lease Phase Il Phase Il is expected to
as No. 01213003 and located BRREILA 2 Mt % S5 ik work in be completed in year
on the northern side of —RLi (BERER progress 2020
Mizhou West Road Eastern Section, ~ £012130035%) SHIRETR ZBEHR
Zhucheng City, ZEIEERR
Shandong Province,
the PRC

D. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE D. BFHEME
Group's Approximate
effective  Approximate saleable gross Category

Location i} interest site area floor area Usage of lease
.31 4 #ih e

RE#S WEEH #REER R2 BEH
(sg. m.) sg. m.)
(3 F/}L ) 7?/7 )

North Portion of Lot No. 2, HEIGLAEMAL 66.67% Note () 20,470 Residential and Commercial -

Port Serviced Area, MEEERYEOR M (Section land Il commercial Medium-term lease
Dafeng Ocean Economic HsE2 R 0410 FEREE Residential - Long lease
Development Area, (—E3R HE-ERY

Dafeng City, —ER) fFE-RERH
Jiangsu Province,

the PRC

A parcel of land designated RELFEEATEN 100% Note (2] 30,795  Residential and Commercial -
as No. 01213003 and ABER 7 Wit (Phase |, commercial Medium-term lease
located on the northern side of —Rti (AR andll)  FERER Residential - Long lease
Mizhou West Road £01213003%) 30,7% RS
Easter Section, (-4--8 fFE-RERH
Zhucheng City, R=#)

Shandong Province,
the PRC

Note (a): Part of a parcel of land designated as No. 01213003 and located on Kiat(a) : BB BE L 3R 4 = 9 Th 25 ) 7 B BR ER AL A

the northern side of Mizhou West Road Eastern Section, Zhucheng 2 — W8 1 b (3 ER 4% 5% 550121300355 )
City, Shandong Province, the PRC, total site area is 146,006 sq.m. 2 —#B 5 - M AR T & /3146,006°F 75
}K °
Note (b): Part of North Portion of Lot No. 2, Port Serviced Area, Dafeng Ocean Hitb) : BHREIHE KNS ALEFEBERHRE

Economic Development Area, Dafeng City, Jiangsu Province, the

PRC, total site area is 118,974 sq.m.
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A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 and the last four
financial years, as extracted from the audited financial statements and
reclassified as appropriate, is set out below. This summary does not

form part of the audited financial statements.

Financial Summary

&7

5 ik 2

AT RASEHE_Z-—/\F+-_H=+—H
LTEERBENETBRFEZENHRERE

ERBECHME RS
YEELEE 2EHOE-
REGZUBREZ—HD -

A

1y

A ST WL

BRI RE

R B A%

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-)\§ “E—+F “T-RE “Z-HF “F-lmE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BYFT BETT BETTL BB BETT
RESULTS 2R
Turnover BEE 1,020,892 1,353,119 716,559 576,533 3,224,100
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners KAAREAAREER/ (BE)
of the Company 113,440 23,363 63,804 81,830 (51,417)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERAR
Non-current assets ERDEE
Property, plant and equipment nE- BEREE 187,803 202,715 158,713 179,059 187722
Prepaid land lease payments BN HEENR 38,592 196,781 188,949 206,579 51,760
Investment properties REME 101,528 63,816 58,934 58,468 58,086
Deposits paid BEffks - 4,966 37027 39,341 29,181
Loans receivable EWER 245,700 383,902 353,654 261,493 194,173
Other financial assets EtemEE 4,984 = = = =
Available-forsale financial asset HHELREE - 5,246 = = =
Current assets RHEE
Properties held for sale FEHEENSE 202,005 251,688 159,716 242,917 287498
Properties held for development BEERME 281,386 296,196 276,450 293,728 311,006
Properties under development ERAME 152,233 109,824 241,042 169,581 160,469
Inventories FE 15,970 4,281 6,145 22,922 23,191
Trade and other receivables g 5 REMEKFIE 186,706 129,040 97879 73,492 403,444
Loans receivable EWRER 421,236 358,359 309,545 162,969 85,538
Prepaid land lease payments BN THHEENR 2,011 5,665 5,287 5,414 2,007
Entrusted loan receivables ERETER - - 7840 59,140 107525
Other financial assets EtemEE 840,612 = = = =
Available-forsale financial assets THEHESHEE - 700,231 513,130 410,136 -
Held-fortrading securities KEEERS - 1173 1,279 1,234 1,703
Short-term investments RHRE - = 13,440 16,660 594,720
Tax recoverable R EHE 2,119 3,004 = = =
Structured bank deposits EEERTER - - - 167790 662,760
Pledged bank deposits BERRTER 3,815 4,006 1,640 1,737 1,774,816
Deposits in other financial institution L mlETR 112,338 86,200 428,186 355,650 -
Bank balances and cash RIOEFRRE 791,265 749,708 929,903 1,048,218 728,127
Amount due from a non-controlling EY-HEHBAR—%
shareholder of a subsidiary FRRRRE - 18,000 21,318 21,641 21,686
Loan to a related party BT-ZBEFNER - - 36,823 38,888 54,454
Total assets BEE 3,590,303 3,674,801 3,846,900 3,837,057 5,739,866
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Financial Summary

Brf 55 ek 2

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\g Tt CZE-R§ E-1F T-MOF
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BBTT BEFT JBEFT BEFT JBEFT
Current liabilities bid =
Trade and other payables BHREMENTE (120,726) (156,869) (127834) (107333)  (2,798,209)
Contract liabilities aHEE (207,096) - - - -
Deposits received from sale of HENE 2 Blkize
properties - (128,921) (72,920 (53,294) (58,728)
Taxation payable ERHIE (38,843) (5,929) (3,148) (2,218) (26,029)
Bank borrowings RITEE (274,100) (214,400) (77,280) = (68,157)
Unsecured other loans BEEREMER (600) (600) (600) (600) (600)
Corporate bonds ARlEH - - (667.219) - -
Non-current liabilities ERDAR
Deferred tax liabilities ERHBAE (51,794) (81,635) (73,088) (74,608) (52,584)
Corporate bonds ARlEH - - - (694,757) (721,610)
Total liabilities BEAH (693,159) (588,354)  (1,022,089) (932,810)  (3,725,917)
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